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CHARTERED ACGOUNTANTS

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Members of GMR Enterprises Private Limited

Report on the Consolidated Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying Consolidated Financial Statements of GMR Enterprises Private

Limited (hereinafter referred to as the Holding Company' or 'GEPL'), its subsidiaries, jointly

controlled entities and associates (coliectively heieinafter referred to as the Group') comprising of

the consolidated Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2018, the consolidated Statement of Profit and

Loss, the consolidated Cash Flow Statement for the year then ended and a summary of significant

accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as the Consolidated

Financial Statements').

Management's Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial Statements

The Holding Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of these consolidated

financial statements in terms of the requirements of the Companies Act, 2013 ('the Act')that give a

true and fair view of the consolidated financial position, consolidated financial performance and

consolidated cash flows of the Group in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted

in India, including the Accounting 
-standards 

specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with

Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014. The respective Board of Directors of the

companies included in the Group are responsib
in accordance with the provisions of the Act;
preventing and detecting frauds and other
appropriate accounting policies; making judg
pr,ra.ttt; and the desig-n, implementation and maintenance nancial controls

ih"t *.r" operating Jffectivlly for ensuring the accuracy the accounting

records, relevant tJtne prepaiation and presentation of th that give a true

and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error' which have

been used for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial statements by the Directors

of the Holding Company, as aforesaid.

Auditor's ResPonsibilitY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our

audit. While conducting ihe audit, we have taken into account the provisions of the Act, the

accounting and auditin-g standards and matters which are required to be included in the audit

report tnJ.t the provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder'

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing, issued by the Institute of

Chartered Accountants of India, as specified. under Section 143(10) of the Act. Those Standards

require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain

reasonable """rr".""- 
aUout whether the consolidated financial statements are free from material

misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and the

disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the

auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the

consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal financial controls relevant to the Holding Company's
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in order to

i""ig.r audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. An audit also includes
evaluating tha appropriateness of the accounting policies used and the reasonableness of the

accounting estimales made by the Holding Company's Board of Directors, as well as evaluating the

overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.
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we believe that the audit evidence obtained by us and the audit evidence. obtained by the otherauditors in terms of their reports referred to in the other Matters f"r"g."pt, is sufficient andappropriate to provide a basis for our quali ied audit opinion on the consolidated financialstatements.

Easis.for Qualifie d Opinion

1. As detailed in Note 45 III (u), GMR Chha
losses. Based on the ualuation assessmenf
ended March 3 j, 2018, GIL had" not account
inuestment in GCEL as at March 31, 20jB
accounting treatment is not in accord.ance
management accounted for the aforesaid
the gear ended March 31, 2018 tuould. ha
impact on the consolidated reserues of the Gro
comment on ana consequential impact that mag aise pursuant to the outcome of the resolutionp-rocess being undertaken for GCEL as per the circulai "Resolution of Stressed Assefs - reuised.
frameutork" issued bg the Reserue Bani of India dated. Febntary 12, i01B (,RBI circular,).

2. As detailed in Note 45 III (iu), GMR
Limited (GWGL'), subsidiaries of
associate of the Group haue ceased
erosion of net utorth resulting from the unau
haue rescheduled the repagment of project
Strategic Debt Restntcturing Scheme to conuert part of the d.ebt outstanding into equitg and the
lenders and the management are e_xploring ,oiort iptions for reuiual of the proleit is per the
resolution plan specified in the RBI cirantar as stated.- aboue. Continued. uncertanntg e;asfs as /othe auailabilitg of adequate supplg of natural gas which rs necessary to conduct operations in
these entities at uarying leuels of capacitg in 7he future and the ap-propiaten 

"" by the going
concerrl assumption of these entities is dependent on the abititg 

-of 
tfie aforesaid entities to

establish consistent profitable operations as well as raising ad.equlate'nnance to meet short term
and long term obligations and accordinglg u)e are unable to comient in the carrying ualue of the
Group's assefs (including aduances) / obtigations in these entities as at March 3 j, 2b 1 B

3' As detailed in note 31(1), the tax authoities of Matdiues haue disputed. certain transactions not
considered by the management of GMR MaIe International Airport priuate Limited. (,GMIAL'), a
subsidiary of the group' in the computation of business profit taxes and" uithholding tax and. haue
issued notice of tax dssessments on business profit taxes and. uithhotding tax together with the
applicable fines and penalties. The management of the Group is of the uleut thai such disputes
from the tax authorities are not tenable and. haue disclosed. the iax exposures as a contingent
Iiabilitg in the accompanAing consolidated. IGAAP financial statements for the gear end.ed. Mlarch
31' 2018' In the absence of comprehensiue analgsis on the aboue tax eiposures, u.)e are unable to
determine uhether ang adiustments might be necessary to the o"io^ponging consolid.ated.
IGAAP financial statements for the gear end.ed March S j, 201g.

QualiJied, Opinion

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations giuen to us and. ,
based on the consideration of reports of other auditors on separate finincial statements and. on the
other financial information of the subsidiaries, associaf es, joint uentTtres, except for, the effects of the
matter in paragraph 1 and possible effects of the matters in paragraph 2 & 3 d.escnbed.in the Basis
for Qualifi.ed opinion aboue, the aforesaid. consolidated financial statements giue the information
required bg the Act in the manner so required and giue a true and" fair uiew ii conformitg rl)ith the
accounting pinciples generallg accepted in India, of the consolidated state of affairs of the Group, its
associafes, joint uentures cs at March 31, 2018, its consolidated" Ioss and. iis ionsotid"ated. statiment

Continuation Sheet No.
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Emphasis of Matter

we draw attention to the foliowing matters in the notes to the accompanying IGAAP consolidated

financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2018 which have been emphasized by the

auditors of speciai prrrpo"" ionsolidated financial statements of GIL and its subsidiaries, joint

ventures, associatesln tteir audit report (amended as appropriate):

1. Note 45 II (i) and he ongoing arbitr
being incurred b arh ExPressways

CVIn UYderabad s Private Limited
Company since the commencement of commercial operations, for reasons as detailed in the

aforesaid notes. Pending outcome of the aforesaid arbitration and based on management's

internal assessment and an external legal opinion obtained by the management of GACEPL

and GHVEpL, the management of the Group is of the view that the carrying value of the

intangible assets as at March 31, 2018 in GACEPL and GHVEPL is

the auditors of these subsidiaries have included an emphasis of mat

audit reports issued for the year ended March 3I,2018 with regard to

2. Note 45 I (iv) regarding the recovery/adjustment of costs incurred towards residential
('CISFJ by GMR Hyderabad International

s as detailed in the aforesaid note out of the

['PSF SC] by GHIAL and Delhi International
ision from the Honble High Court of respective
from the Ministry of Civil Aviation'

3. Note 45 III (vi) with regard to the cessation of construction of the 300 MW hydro based

power plant on Alaknanda river, Uttarakhand being constructed by GMR Badrinath Hydro
power Generation Private Limited ('GBHPL), a subsidiary of the Group. The Hon'ble

Supreme Court of India ('the Supreme Court'), while hearing a civil appeal in the matters of

a hydro power company, directei that no further construction work shall be undertaken by

certain projects until further orders. The management of the Group is confident of obtaining

ttre requisite clearances and based on a business plan and valuation assessment by an

external expert during the year ended March 31, 2018, is of the view that there is no

adjustment required to be done in the consolidated financial statements.

4. Note 45 V and 45 III (ix) in connection with certain claims/counter-claims receivables as

detailed in the aforesaid notes from customers of GMR Warora Enerry Limited ('GWEL) and

GMR Kamalanga Enerry Limited ('GKELJ and GMR Power Corporation Limited ('GPCLJ'

subsidiarie" oith" Group pending settlement/ realisation as at March 3I,2O1B' The

management of the Group based or, it" internal assessment, legal expert advice and certain

interim favourable regulatory orders is confident of a favourable outcome and accordingly

no adjustments have been made in the accompanying consolidated IGAAP financial

statements for the year ended March 31, 2018. Further, the auditors of these subsidiaries

have included an e-mphasis of matter in their respective audit reports issued for the year

enderl March 31, 2018 with regard to the aforesaid matters.

5. As detailed in Note a5 V (v) of the consolidated financial statements explaining the position

of Kakinada Refinery and Petrochemicals Private Limited('KRPL) on the aspect of delay in

execution of contemplated petroleum refinery project which brings in significant uncertainty

on the ability of KRFL to continue its operations in the absence of any significant progress

in implementation of the project, notwithstanding the above the financial statements of

KRPL, have been prepared as a going concern'

6. Note 34 with regard to the ongoing arbitration and the uncertainty, regarding the

conversion/settlement of Class A bompulsorily Convertible Preference Shares ("CCPS A'),

issued by GMR Airports Limited ('GAL) to the Private Equity Investors ('the Investors'),

subject to obtaining the requisite regula
initiated arbitration proceedings against
CCPS A. In view of ongoing arbitration a
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conversion/ settle
exercised by the en made for the cat optionaforesaid note' c reasons. as exprained in trrethe company con shares ("ccps B") issued to

T. GEpL has
equity .h "t 

mvestment of R:',31194.99 lakhs in
noraings(na l1;?-8.,lakhs loan
accumulat r_:tvtL), a step dow
Iakhs). GE s4.million as at 31"t
mvestment ?"t1rj."g its investme
period and tosldlary is expected to offset the accum
the GEpL ieholder,s investmr

'HML. 
__-.__..,,ent. Hence, no provisi n is considered by

B. GMR Infratech private LimitedRs.t24.5o crore^s in cnai-iitia 1 ?f ..t1. Group has an investment ofGIPL has classified ,h;;;tji;v ._j.11.oltL;, a-"ur"idiary of the GrpL.rosses as stipurat,a i"1r,JiJ;: 
*iiffi,",,#Hl":f,ytih*::, e*f::

:l{+:liillk'"TJ..."'il::iT:'#""TlfL:0" in. 
rearizabre ,,.ri.'or investment in the

;li;T",...,srnvestme;;A;;5"ffi#JiX,:S"::T:.",::.&o;il?.;l?;J,1i:::f :li?;
our opinion is not quarified in rer pect of the aforesaid matters.

Other Matters

2.
her financr
ts of Rs . 4 r

'ffi"T*; .
3. We did not audit

subsidiaries (includ inf<o.".-0..--sr',"2orz', t r"',iil1jl'trltr$lrttl
operating revenue of t March "sr, iofi'iot"ramounting to Rs. 2

the Group,s share. 
"f ?"1?,il"jt"?K.[T:rf,

statements and other ritt"""iJiiiormation or ended These financialhave been audited bv otrrei- urJiror", *t o* cintly controlled entitiesmanagement and our opinion on tn. consoli rrnished to us bt il;the amounts and. oi""jo"rr.""-i""j"a.a i" in so far 
"" l, Lt"i"" ,Jentities and associ"t.", 

"rJ-J".'r."o"r, in terrns

Continuation Sheet No.

1. GMR Infrastructure Ltd (GIL) , a subsidiary of the Corff:t*::llllir nna iat siatelents"incruains the "^-"^,,T::ll1nd 
it1 step down subsidiaries

$::f,ld[:]_#,J?,,:le"*;."##il'{lt?:"::1"".,.*??kl:d,:t,1ffi ;Ti8iii::
iiriffii"1'u'r#*;tk,L* jTJ:1-#,*T":li'*i',13"f i.::n*:*;*it"tistatements of GrL."ali" 

"""f,"i0i",i,"X1. 

rnd AS principles, The said a;;d;il; ;i":?#
ft:^i,f 

t^1*-t;,T1. said speciur p.,.po"X::'"::il:1"r'3**^::lf*.-"* 'i""*- *r"^ ^-,- ,preJtrflT iX*il|'"::'g :e':;,.;;'.; ; ::""::i::?T H"fi tr T:se 
m e n r,, s i n o . 

" ^ ^-, -, ;il
furnishcrl *r; o^_^_ire audited / reviewed by an iij"-...,--+ p€r
IGAAP principles w 

-- vrvvrqr vqrPOSe consolrdated financial sta pres

3T!h.ii'ffi"-*"::L1i:":i-{ ;?"'ff,l.i:n; l;;;'J.;i *.j
il#:Ei?ii:ru;'r;:-tri:nni:i:::ri:,"+rjif:4ff l!,r,,"r".r,he""-o.",xTli.l':;:i.?:'l:.H,x-.:xm:!,::":,::','##,i$!!l#,:i'rf ,:#1:""."#T:#reried on the said Repo?i ;i;. r#:p.#;lf 

"ff:i:l,tT::::ftXTt

tr'eext,,,lapll;""#j:ii;::..11',:,iT:,'il.:S:
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and our report on Other Legal and
of the above matters with respec-t to our
ditors and the financial state-ments and

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

reports

in the

(a) s describe
s we have opinion paragraph, we /the other

the best d obtained all the information and
our audit of the aforesaid consolidated financi 

were necessary for the purpose of

(b)
n paragraph, in
of the aforesaid

rs; examination of

(c) Balance sheet, the consolidated statement of profit and Loss and theFlow statement dealt with by this Report are in 
"gre.-e.rt with the relevantmaintained for the purpose of preparation of ihe consolidated financial

(d) e effect of the matters described in the Basis for eualified opinion paragraph, inthe aforesaid consolidated financial statements comply with thl e"-"orrrtirrgecified under section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 orin! companies (Accounts)

(e) The matters described in the Basi^s for Qualified opinion paragraph and the Emphasis ofMatter paragraphs above and Qualifiea opinion p*"gLpr, of Ann-exure I,to this report ,in ouropinion, may have an adverse Ltrect on the rurrctionilng or trr" Group 
".rd 

it" associates , jointventures and joint operations;

(0 Mr. Srinivasan
disqualified from
his inclusion in t

Continuation Sheet No.
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Place: Hyderabad
D ate: 29h September,2O | 8
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September 2017. The defaulting company has filed an application with the Registrar of
Companies under Condonation of Delay Scheme, 2OI8. Based on the wfitten representations
received from the other directors of the GIL as on March 31, 2018, and taken on record by the
Board of Directors of the GIL and the reports of the other statutory auditors who are appointed
as per Section 139 of the Act, of its subsidiaries, jointly controlled entities and associates
incorporated in India, other directors of Group companies, its associates and jointly controlled
entities are not disqualified as on March 31, 2018 from being appointed as a director in terms
of Section 164 (21of the Act.

(g) The qualification relating to the maintenance of accounts and other matters connected
therewith are as stated in the Basis for Qualified Opinion'paragraph above.

(h) With respect to the adequacy and the operating effectiveness of the internal financial controls
over financial reporting with reference to these consolidated financial statements of the Holding
Company and its subsidiaries, jointly controlled entities and associates incorporated in India,
refer to our separate report dated 29th September,2018 in "Annexure I " to this report;

(i) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditor's) Rules, 2OI4 as amended, in our opinion and to
the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us and based on the
consideration of reports of the other auditors on separate financial statements and the other
separate financial information of the subsidiaries, associates , joint ventures and joint
operations as noted in the 'Other Matter Paragraph' :

i. The consolidated financial statements disclose the impact of pending litigations on the
consolidated financial position of the Group- Refer note 35,36, 45l, 45 II ,45 III,45 IV to the
consolidated financial statements;

ii. The Group, its subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures has made provision as required
under thJ applicable law or accounting standards for material foreseeable losses, if any on

long-term contracts including derivative contracts during the year ending 31"t March 2OI8'

iii. There have been no delays in transferring amounts, required to be transferred, to the

Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Holding Company, its subsidiaries, jointly
controlled entities and associates incorporated in India.

No.
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ANNEXURE I TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THECONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF GMR ENTERPRISES PRIVATE LIMITED

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section143 of the Companies Act, 2Olg (3the Act'f

To the Members of GMR ENTERPRISES PRIVATE LIMITED

In conjunction with our audit of the consolidated financial statements of GMR
ENTERPRISES PRIVATE LIMITED as of and for the year end.ed March 31, 2018, we have
audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of GMR ENTERpRISES
PRIVATE LIMITED (hereinafter referred to as the 'Holding dompany, or ,GEpL), its
subsidiaries, jointly controlled entities joint operations ind associates, which are
companies incorporated in India, as of that date (together referred to as the ,Covered
entities' in this report).

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial controls

The respective Board of Directors of the Covered entities, which are incorporated in India,
are responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on the
internal financial control over financial reporting criteria established by the Holding
company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India ('ICAI'). These responsibilities include the
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were
operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including
adherence to the respective company's policies, the safeguard.ing of its assets, th;
prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required
under the Companies Act, 2013 ('the Act').

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls
over financial reporting with reference to this consolidated financial statements based on
our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the "Guidance Note") and the
Standards on Auditing, specified under section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable
to an audit of internal financial controls, both issued by the ICAI. Those Standards and the
Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the
audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether ad.equate internal financial controls
over financial reporting with reference to this consolidated financial statements was
established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material aspects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of
the internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to this consolidated
financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial
controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal hnancial
controls over financial reporting with reference to this consolidated financial statements,
assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design
and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures
selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained and the audit evidence obtained by the,

t"



B. Punushottam & Co..
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

sufficient and appropriate to provide
controls over financial reporting with

Meaning of Internal Financial controls over Financial Reporting with reference tothis consolidated financial statements

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting with reference to thisconsolidated financial statements is a to provide
regarding the reliability of financial rep paration of
statements for external purposes in generally
principles. A company's internal financial co ancial repo

those policies and procedures that (1)
onable detail, accurately and fairly reflect
of the company; (2) provide reasonable

consolidated financial statements in """ord"X"".";:n"?".lit,ri'lTj:r#Tt::::TI JJprinciples, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only inaccordance with authorisations of management and directors of the 
"o-p".ry; and (3)provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised

acquisition' use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on
the consolidated financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting with
reference to these consolidated financial statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reportingwith reference to these consolidated financial statements, including the possibility oT
collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error
or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal
financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these consolidated financial
statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over
financial reporting with reference to these consolidated financial statements may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Qualified Opinion

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on the report issued
by other auditors on internal f,rnancial controls over financial reporting with reference to
these consolidated financial statements in case of its subsidiary 

-compinies, 
its associate

companies, joint ventures, which are companies incorporated in india, the following
material weakness has been identified in the operating effectiveness of the subsidiar!
Company's internal linancial control over financial reporting with reference to these
consolidated financial statements as at March 31,2018.

(a) The GIL's internal financial control with regard to assessment of carrying value of
investments in certain associates and joint ventures as more fully explained in note
45 III (ii), 45 III (iv) and note 45 III (v) to these consolidated financial siatements were
not operating effectively and could potentially result in the Group not providing for
adjustments that may be required. to be made to the carrying value of such
investments.

A 'material weakness' is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal financial
control over financial reporting, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material
misstatement of the holding company's annual consolidated finanlial statements will not be
prevented or detected on a timely basis.
In our opinion, the Holding company has, in all material respects,
internal financial controls over financial reporting as at March 31,

Continuation Sheet No

a basis for our audit opinion on the internal financial
reference to this consolidated financial statements.
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internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Subsidiary Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note issued
by the ICAI, and except for the possible effects of the material weakness described above on
the achievement of the objectives of the control criteria, the Holding Company's internal
financial control over financial reporting with reference to these consolidated financial
statements were operating effectively as at March 31, 2018.

Other Matters

Our report under Section 143(3Xi) of the Act on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of
the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Holding Company. in so far as
it relates to these 121 subsidiaries, 3 associates and 9 joint ventures, which are companies
incorporated in India, is based on the corresponding reports of the auditors of such
subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures incorporated in India.

Place: Hyderabad
Date: 29tt' September,2OIS

No.

2JlA rj' n Br,:]!.i

Boai, I lii':id,
Cheni'ti j00 01 i
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List of Covered Entities:

Continuation Sheet No.

S.No Name of the Entity
GMR Enterprises private Limited

GMR Infrastructure Limited

GMR Ener$z Limited

-

GMR Power Corporation Limited

Ot*,""Orrru,n, 
"r..o 

ro*.. O.r...Uffi
GMR Mining & Energr Private Limited

I

Nature of
relationshio

1 Holding
company

2 Subsidary

3 Subsidary

4 Subsidary

5 Subsidary

6

8

9

10

11

Subsidary

Subsidary

GMR Kamalanga Energr Limited Subsidary

GMR Energr Trading Limited Subsidary

GMR Consulting Services private Limited Subsidary

GMR Coastal Energr Private Limited Subsidary

T2
GMR Bajoli Holi Hydropower private Limited Subsidary

13
GMR Londa Hydropower Private Limited Subsidary

T4
GMR Kakinada Energr Private Limited Subsidary

15
Rampia Coal Mine and Energr private Limited

Jointly
controlled

entitv

I6
GMR Chhattisgarh Energr Limited (GCEL) formerly
(GCHEPL) Associate

T7
GMR Rajahmundry Energr Limited Associate

18
SJK Powergen Limited Subsidary

I9
GMR Warora Energr Limited (formerly known as
EMCO Energr Limited) Subsidary

20 GMR Maharashtra Energr Limited Subsidary

27
GMR Bundelkhand Energr Private Limited Subsidary

22
GMR Rajam Solar Power Private Limited ( formerly known
as GMR Uttar Pradesh Energr Private Limited) Subsidary

23
GMR Genco Assets Limited(formerly known as GMR
Hosur Energr Limited) (GGEAL) Subsidary

24
GMR Gujarat Solar Power Private Limited Subsidary
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25 GMR Indo-Nepal

GMR Indo-Nepal

Energ; Links Limited

Power Corridors Limited

Subsidary

26 Subsidary

27 I Yvtt< Generation Assets Limited (formerly known as GMRKenewable t nergr Limited)

Aravali Transmission Service Company Limited

Maru Transmission Service Company Limited

GMR Power Infra Limited

GMR Tambaram Tindivanam Expressways Limited

GMR Tuni Anakapalli Expressways Limited

Subsidary

28 Subsidary

29 Subsidary

30 Subsidary

31 Subsidary

32 Subsidary

33 I 
GMR Ambala Chandigarh Expressways private Limited

GMR Highways Limited

GMR Hyderabad UU

GMR Chennai Outer Ring Road private Limited

GMR Highw.r. r.o

Subsidary

34 Subsidary

35 Subsidary

36 Subsidary

37 Subsidary

38

39

Associate

Subsidary

40
GMR Kishangarh Udaipur Ahmedabad Expressways
Limited

Gateways for India Airports private ,r-*O 

-
Hyderabad Airport Security Services tt;"d
GMR Aerostructure Services Limited (GASL)
known as GMR Hyderabad Airport Resource
Limited

GMR Hyderabad Aerotropolis Limited

GMR Hyderabad Aviation SEZ Limited

IFormerly
Management

GMR Hospitality and Retail Limited (Formerlv
known as GMR Hotels and Resorts Limited) 1CHnf,)

Subsidary

4I

42

43

44

Subsidary

Subsidary

Subsidary

Subsidary

45 Subsidary

46 Subsidary

47 Subsidary

48 Subsidary

49

GMR Aerospace Engineering Limited (GAEL) (formerly
known as MAS GMR Aerospace Engineering Company
Private Limited)

Subsidary
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50 GMR Airport Developers Limited

GMR Hyderabad OO

Subsidary

51 Subsidary

52
urvlr( Aero t echnic Limited(GATL) (formerly known as MASGMR Aero Technic Limited)

O"r" ru"rrr" 
"rt**r, 

t

Laqshya Hyderabad Airport Media rrrrr"***--

Subsidary

53 Subsidary

54
Jointly

controlled
entitv

55
l-lelhr lnternational Airport Limited (formerly known
as Delhi International Airport private Limited Subsidary

56 Delhi Aerotropolis private Limited

Delhi Aviation Services private Limited

Travel Food Services (Delhi rerminar 3) private Limited

Delhi Duty Free Services private Limited

Delhi Aviation Fuel Facility private Limited

Celebi Delhi Cargo Terminal Management India private
Limited

Wipro Airport IT Services Limited

Subsidary

57
Jointly

controlled
entitv

5B
Jointly

controlled
entity

59 Subsidary

60
Jointly

controlled
entitv

61
Jointly

controlled
entitv

62
Jointly

controlled
entitv

63 Delhi Airport Parking Services private Limited Subsidary

64

65

TIM Delhi Airport Advertising private Limited

GMR Airports Limited

GMR Krishnagiri SIR Limited (formerly known as GMR
Krishnagiri SEZ Limited (GKSIR)

GMR SEZ 
"rra 

eor,
GMR SEZ and Port Holdings private Limited)

OOrrtU" r.op.r,r." ,

Aklima Properties Private Limited

O*a'r,r" rrop"r,r""

Baruni Properties Private Limited

Bougianvil. rrop.r,

Jointly
controlled

entity

Subsidary

66 Subsidary

67 Subsidary

6B Subsidary

69

70

Subsidary

Subsidary

'7 1

72

Subsidary

Subsidary

73 Subsidary



B, Parushottam & Co..
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

Continuation Sheet No

74

Honeysuckle properties private Limited

Idika Properties private Limited

Krishnapriya properties private Limited

,".U"Or. rro'".,r."ffi

-

Nadira Properties private Limited

Prakalpa Properties private Limited

Radhapriya Properies private Limited

Subsidary

75 Subsidary

76 Subsidary

77 Subsidary

78 Subsidary

79 Subsidary

80 Subsidary

81 Subsidary

82 Subsidary

83 Subsidary

B4 Subsidary

85 Subsidary

86 Subsidary

87 Subsidary

88 Shreyadita Properties private Limited

Sreepa Properties private Limited

Subsidary

89 Subsidary

90 Asteria Real Estates private Limited Subsidary

97
Pranesh Properties private Limited Subsidary

92 GMR Hosur EMC private Limited

Namitha Real Estates pvt.Ltd

Lilliam Properties private Limited

Honeyflower Estates pvt. Ltd

Suzone Properties private Limited

Subsidary

93 Subsidary

94 Subsidary

95 Subsidary

96 Subsidary

97
East Godavari Power Distribution Company private
Limited Subsidary

98
Lantana Properies private Limited (Formerly GMR Hosur
Industrial City Private Limited)

Ot* U,rrrar." rrr'o",

GMR Corporate Affairs private Limited

Dhruvi Securities t,

Subsidary

99 Subsidary

100 Subsidary

101 Subsidary



B, Parashottam & Co.,
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

Continuation Sheet No.

r02

Vijaynivas Real Estates private Limited

Ravivarma Realty private Limited

,""nrp.,nr Orr"* O

Leora Real Estates private Limited

-

Kondampeta Properties pvt. Ltd.

Hyderabad Jabilli t

Subsidary

103 Subsidary

ro4 Subsidary

105 Subsidary

106 Subsidary

t07 Subsidary

108 Subsidary

109 Subsidary

110 Subsidary

111 Subsidary

It2 Subsidary

113 Subsidary

I14 Subsidary

115 GMR Sports Private Limited Subsidary

116 GMR League Games private Limited

GMR Infratech Pvt. Ltd

Subsidary

rt7

118

Subsidary

Fabcity Properties private Limited

Cadence Enterprises private Limited

AMG Healthcare Destination pvt. Ltd

GMR Business & Consultancy LLp

Geokno India Pvt Ltd

PHL Infrastructure Finance private Limited

Grandhi Enterprises pvt. Ltd

Subsidary

119 Subsidary

r20

12l

t22

Jointly
controlled

entitv

Subsidary

Subsidary

r23

r24

125

Subsidary

Subsidary

Rajam Enterprises Pvt. Ltd

National SEZ Infra Services pvt. Ltd

Subsidary

126

r27

Subsidary

Ideaspace Solutions Private Ltd Subsidary

128 Kakinada Refinery & petrochemicals pvt. Ltd Subsidary



B. & Co,,
NTS

Continuation Sheet No.

r29 Cofporate Infrastruchtre Senri^o6 D,,+ r tr

130

v r vc. gLU Su
LiMK Solar Energr pvt Ltd

Kothavalasa Infraventures pvt Ltd

Kirthi Timbers pvt. Ltd

Subsidary

131 Subsidarv

732 Subsidary

133 Subsidary



GMR DNTDRPRISES PRIVATE LIMITED
3rd Floor, Old No.248 New No.1l4, Royapettah High Road, Royapettah, Chennai - 600 O14,

CIN:U749OOTN2OO7YIC lO23A9
Consolidated balance sheet as at March 31, 2Ol8

tartlculars

Equity and Llabilities
Shareholders' funds
Share capital
Reserves and surplus

Preference shares issued by subsidiaries
Minority interest

Non-current ltabllities
Long-term borrowings
Deferred tax liability
Trade payables

Other long-term liabilities
lrng-tem provisions

Current llabllitles
Short-term borrowings
Trade payables

Other cunent liabilities
Short-term provisions

Total
Assets

Non-current assets

4

404.35

Fixed assets
Tangible assets
Intangible assets
Capital work-in-progress
Intangible assets under development

Non-current investments
Deferred til asset
lnng-term loans and advances

Trade receivables

Other non-current assets

Current assets
Current investments
Inventories
Trade receivables

Cash and bank balances

Short-term loans and advances

Other current assets

Total
t2,445.39

62.67
34r 68

412.36
3,237.84

33,348.57
400.42

5.70
2,soo.75

264.73
36,524.77

2,435.57
2,968.94
9,456.O9

259.25

19,810.09
t2,434.36
5,272.50

558.08

62.67
\,426.02

34

5

6

6

7

8

9

9

7

11

t2
32 (a)

32 (b)

13

10

t4
15

2,Ot9.44 ,,

35.09
2,225.33

72.35 
,

4,O37.6r
417 62

2,678.78
2,805.64
1,308.67
r,203.o7

r,488 69
415.36

3,82 1 .84

14,167.00

20,909.O4
12,163 32
4,576.O8

510.65
2,250.82

44.75
7,A26.45

19.55

3,227.74
384 94

2,473.49
2,7aa.29
1,19i 68

745.64

3 r,199.48
477 70

87.95
2,747.64

179.26
34,692.O7

2,673.54
2,2t9.48
8,920.05

353.89

825.98 I,072.52
43,25g.22 43,373.I{i

18

16

t4

i0
IJ

t7,2tt.78

2.r
accompanying notes form an integral part of the consolidated financial statements

As per our report of even date

For B. Purushottam & Co

hartered Accountants

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
GMR Enterprises hrt. Ltd

Partner
M.No.206734

B.V.N.Rao
Director

DIN.OOO51667

Y uria
Company Secretary

G.M.Rao
Director

DrN.OO57243

l{-w-..rlo..rc.\&Viu\gy'
K,Sreemannarayana

Chief Financial Offrcer
Place: Hvderabad
Date: September 29, 2018

March 31, 20it7

15,1 19.89



GMR ENTERPRISES PRIVATE LIMITED

3rd Floor, Old No.24a New No,114' RoyaPettah High Road' RoyaPettah' Chentrai - 600 Of4.
CIN:U749OOTN2OO7PTC 102349

Corsolidated statemelt ofprofit and loss for the year elded March 31, 2Ol8

Revenue from operations:

Sales / income from operations
Other operating income

Other income

Total (A)

Expeases
Revenue share paid / payable to concessionaire grantors

ion oI fuel
Cost of materials consumed

Purchase of traded goods

/ decrease in stock jn trade
b-contracting expenses

Employee benents expenses

Other expenses

Finance costs
Depreciation and amortisation expenses

Total (Bl

(Lossl / prolit before *ceptioaal ltems' td qPerses' mirority iotetest ald sbare of (lossl /
profit of associates (A-B)

Exceptional items - (losses) / gains (net)

(Loss) / profit before tu expeases, mborit5r irtdest ald shue of llossl/ Ptofit of assoclates

/ profit from coltiluilg oPeratiols befote tq dPeDses' milotity bterest ald share of
/ proftt of associates

Tu dpenses of eoltlauing opdatioEs
Current td
Td adjustments for prior yetrs

Less: MAT credit entitlement
Delerred tu expense / (credit)

lLoss) / profit from coatiauiag operatiots after td qPelses ald before minority iotqest
aad share of (tossl / profit of associates

of (loss) / pront of associates (net)

interest - shile of loss / (pront) from continuing operations

Profit) trmsferred to Pre aquisition reserues
/ profit after Di[orlty iatetest ald shue of llossl/ Ptofit of associates froE coltiluilg

(cl

Profit / {lossl froo discoatinuirg oPeratloas before tu expeases ald miroti$ iatelest

Tu expenses of discontinuing operations
Current tu

profit / uoss) from disconti[uing opetatiots aflter tq *peDses aad befote nlaority irterest

Minority interest - shre of loss / (prolit) Irom discontinuing operations

Profit / llossl after DiDotity hterest fron discortiluilg operatiors lDl

ll,oss) / profit after aioorit5r iaterest ald shde of {lossl / prolit of associates from cortiluhg
iliscoutiauiag operatioos {C+Dl

Earnings per equity shde (Rs.) - Basic md diluted (per equity shde of Rs.10 each)

Earnings per equity share (Rs.) from continuing operations - Basic and diluted (per equity share of
Rs 10 eachl

19

20
21,

15,469.62 16,04l,75

L,930.91 2,762 93

680 33 1,381.52

1,601 03 1,913.62

434 2a

1,,961.42

(10.19)

1,305.60
coo oo

23Ar 12

4,065.64
r,702 36 2,176.92

r94 42

153.97
( 104.9e)

(67 48)

14,529.46 14,436.6a

259.83 223 55

179.80

9 10.36

20.90
635.45
794.23

c 4coal

5,471.54

I r,o81.631

(34 l s0)

13,2a4.

(32s

1,095.41

22

23
c4

25
26

27
2a

16,269.16 r729s,46

l79e.s4l {r,253,71}
(686 Ol)

P4o.2al lr,e39.

t, 4ao

494.59

{4 88)
( 108.041

423.50

444.63

(e78.sr)

(34.s8)

(2,s r4.81)

540 10

148

31
(34.s81

9.60

l24.9Al

s38.62

lt22.s
416.05

12,o94.761

(334.86130

30

{ r,oo3.48)

(160 l1)

(ls6 12)

(3 ee)
Earnings per equity share (Rs.) from discontinuing operations -

of Rs. l0 each)

SurnmaV of 9rC1nga"-reuntlng policles

The accompanying notes form an integral pilt of the consolidated

per our report of even date

B. PurushottaE & Co

Accountmts

Basic and diluled (per equity share
30

{4O1

66 38

For ald on behalf of the Bodd of Directors of
GMR Eqterprises Pvt. Ltd.

linancial statements,

2.).

Director
DIN.O057243

tr-ry
K.Sreeoauarayaua
Chief Fiaaacial Officer

FitE Registratio! rudbe.:

KE
PartEer
M.No.2O6734

Place: llyderabad
Date: Scptcmber 29, 2O1a

B.V.N,Rao
Director

DTN.OOOs r667

c

I March 31, 2018 March 31' 2017Notes :

i Rs. ln crore Rs. ln crole



GMR ENTERPRISES PRIVATE LIMITED
3rd Floor, Old No 248 New No ll4, Royapettah High Road, Royapettah, Chennai - 600 O14

CIN :U74900TN2007PtC 1O2389

Corsolidated casb flow statemert for the year ended March 31, 2018

Particulars March 31. 2018 March 3I,2017
cash flows ftom operatiDg activities

Profit before taxation
Adjustments for:
Provision for diminution in value of investrnents

Depreciation and mortization expense
(Profit)/Loss on sale of investments
Dividend md other income

Interest Income
lnterest Expense
Fixed Assets Written off
Short term Provisions
Long tem Provisions

(lncrease)/decrease in Long Term Loms and Advmces
(lncrease)/ decrease in trade md other receivables
(lncrease)/decrease in Short Tem Loms ad Advilces
(lncrease)/ decrease in Curent & Non Current Assets
Increase/ (decrease) in Trade Payables
Increase/ (decrease) in Cunrent Liabilities

Income taxes (paid)/Refund
Net mshfrom operating adiuities

Cash flom from iavesting activities
Purchase of Fixed Assets
(Purchase) / Sa.le of Investments(Net)
(Purchase) /Sale of Invetories(Net)
Profit on Sale of Investments
lnterest lncome
Dividend md other income
Interest Expense
Net ash from investing adivities

Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from shre holders funds ( Net)

Proceeds from long tem bonowings
Proceeds from short term borrowings
Net @sh from fnancing adiuities

7.O2

r,702.36
10. l9
(0 14

4,065.64
1.44

194.64
49.47

(e4o 291

5,775.34

o.73
2,r76.92

(20.eo)
(0.07)

ltr4.44)
5,47 r.54

r.46
77.r8
53.41

11,939.72)

7,745.83

(3e8.88)
l4 1.9 I

(1 r6.99)
(2Or 231

667.25
21 1.83

( r00.s2)
(3s0.1s)
t73.41

2,672.74
3t2.92

6,434.2t),

4,83s.05

303.89

5,806.11

13,729.8r

(r,619.74]'
(s79.s1)

126.681,
( 10.1e)

0.14
(4,06s.64)

t4,870.24

13,474.7 r)
84.36
20-90
14.44
0.07

(5,471.54)

5,138.94
(775.92)

2,O76.30
t806.65

4,963.O2

(6,30r.62)

1,355.95

r,269.65

6,O43.76

(7,699.01)

(sss.1 3)

2,149 09
(238.01)

7,323.44
(8,s80.0s)

(442.401

Net increase/(decreasel ia cash aad cash equivalerts

Cash aqd casb equivalerts at beginning of reporting period

17.35

2,744.29

(38s 60)

3,773.89

Cash asd cash equivalents at end of reporting period 2.ao5 64 2,78a.29
As per our report of even date attached.

For B. Purusbottam & co
Chartered Accountants
Fim RegistratioD auEbet: OO2aOaS

K.y.N.S.t{TSHORE
Pattaer
M,No.2o6734

Place: Hyderabad
Date: September 29, 20la

For and on behalf of tbe Board of Direetos of
GMR Erterprises Pvt Ltd

G.M.Rao
Director

DIN.OO57243

tr@
K.sreemanDarayana
chief FinaDcial Ofticer

B.V.N.Rao
Director

DIN.OOO51667

1:!lnT r-\
Ir;---\ I

,,,'., nnn.r t r,),3'
1l Road-l Nr!-r l*



GMR Enterprises Private Limited
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the 1'ear ended Mirrch 31, 2018

CORPORATE INFORMATION

GMR Enterprises Private Lirnited ('GEPL

activities

Porver sector

CeI1ainerrtitiesoftheGroupareinvolvedin1hegeneratiottofpowerTheseareseparateSpecialPurpose

MentoratldttlnofUrrderstandingorthrouglrabidprocess)orSlrof.termpowersupplyagreementSto
plant. Certain entities ofthe Group are involved in the mining and exploration activities. The Group is also involved in energy and coal trading aclivities

Airport sector

Certaiu entilies of the Group are engaged in developrnent and operation of airport infrastructure such as greenfield internalional airpofl a1 Hyderabad and

modemization and operation of intemational airporls at Delhi and Cebu on build, own, operate and transfer basis.

Developrnent of Highways

Certairr entities ofthe Group are engaged in development ofhighways on build, operate and transfer model ort annuity or toll basis These are SPVs which ltave

entered into concessionaire agreements with National Flighways Authority oflndia ('NHAI') or the respective state governmeuts for canying out these projects

Construction business

Certain entities ofthe Group are in the business ofconstruction including as an EPC contractor. These entities are engaged iu handlirrg ofEPC soltttion in tlte
infrastructure sector.

Others

/ tecl.rnical consultancy.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

TlresefnancialStatelne1rtsatepreparedortthebasisofIrrdianGAAPAccoun1ingStandardsspecifedundersectiotrl33ofthe
7 ofCompanies (Accounts) Rules 2014

PRINCIPLBS OF CONSOLIDATION

Subsidiaries

accrualbasis TheaccounlingpolicieshavebeenconsistentlyappliedbytheGroupasinlhepreviousyear.

Group are elinrinated unless cost cannot be recovered

betrveen the sale proceeds and the net ctnr,ing lalrtes oflhe iltvestrlrerlts

the esenl possible in the sanre nranner as lhc Conrpirnl,'s separale llnancial stalerttents

in associates- u'hich have been ntade lbrtentporarv purposes. lt:rve not been considered lbr consolidation

Venlures "

rl

2.

2.1



GMR Enterprises Private Limited
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2018

1.1, Significant :rccounting policies

a) Use ofestinrates

ThepreparatiorlofconsolidatedfnarrcialStatetIelrtsincorr1brrnitywi1hgenerallyacceptedaccorttrtingprinciplesinIndia
mal]ageIrenttonrakejudgrlen1s,estimatesandassumptionsthatafecttherepofedalnountSofrevetlues,eXpel]SeS'
contirrgentliabilities,at1heendofthereportingperiodAltlrougltthesecstilra1eS
uncefaintyabouttheseassunrptiotrsandestirnatescouldresultintheoutcomesrequirillganrateia[
in future periods.

b) Revenuerecognitiorr

RevenueisrecognizedtotheexlentthatitisprobablethattheeconomicbenefitswillflowtotheGroupandtherevenuecanbereliablyrneasured Thefollowing
specific recognition criteria rrrust also be met before revenue is recognized

Power sectol business:

Incaseofpowergerleratirrgarrdtradirlgconlpatries,revetlrtefromerrergyunitssoldaspertl]eten']]SofthePPAartdLetter.
hereinafter referred to as 'the PPAs') is recognized on an accrual basis and includes unbilled revenue accrued up to the end ofthe accounting year. Revenue

frorn energy units sold on a merchant basis is recognized iu accordance wilh billings nrade to customers based on 1he units of energy delivered and the rate

agreedwiththecustomers Revenue/chargesfromunscheduledinterchangeforthedeviationingenerationwithrespectloscheduledgenerationarerecognized/
charged at rates notified by CERC from tirne to time, as revenue frorr sale of energy and adjusted with reventre frorn sale of energy. Further, revenue is

recognized/adjusted towards truing up iu terms ofthe applicable CERC regulations.

Revenue from electrical energy transrnission charges is recognized on an accrual basis in accordance with the provisions oftlte transmission service agreetnents.

Revenue frorn sale ofcoat is recognized when the risks and rewards ofowrrership passes to the purchaser in accordance with the terms ofsale, including delivery
ofthe product, the selling price is fixed or determinable, and collectability is reasonably assured Reveuue eanred in the pre-production stage and related

operating costs have been recorded against the carrying value ofrniuing and exploration and developtnent propefiies

Claints for delayed payrnent charges and any other claims, which the Group is entitled to rrnder the PPAs, are accouuted for irt the year ofacceptance by the

custolners.

Developnrent of hi ghwavs:

Incaseofcompaniesinvolvedincorrstrctionattdmaintenanceofroads.tollreverttlefroropera1ions

the provisions ofthe concessionaire agreement entered into with NHAI or rvith respective State Governnrents Clairrs raised ott NHAI under cortcessiottaire

agreeulent are accounted for in the year of acceptauce.

Revenue share Daid / Davable to concessiouaire qrantors:

Revenue share paid / payable to concessionaire / grantors as a percentage of revenues- ptu-suant to the terms artd coudiliotrs of the relevaut agreemelt for

developntent, constrction, operatior.r ald mairrtenance ofthe respective carriageways has been disclosed as reventle share paid / payable 1o concessionaire

grantors in the stalenlent ofprofit and loss

Airporl sector business.

In cnse of airpor
discorrntsanclcollectiotrcharges,wlrettservicesaleretrderedanditispossiblethat
Revetrtte1iotlaerorlauticaloperatiotrsincludeuser

and allied services.

ctlStol]]erSartdatthepointofdeliverofcargoincaseofnon-airlitrecrtstotttersInterestolrde|ayedreceip1s

\\'i1h the cilslorners

tr-ansler ofrisks and rervards to ils cuslonlels. Sales are stated net ofretnnrs irttd discoLtttls

net oftaxes and discounls ls and rvhen the serlices ale provided and prodttcts are sold

relrrrns lnd tr-rde discounts



GMR Enterprises Private Limited
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the vear ended March 31. 2018

Reverrue
period ofdisplay ofadvertisenrents, net oflaxes and rebates.

Revenue from flight training operations related to aircraf l'lying hour's fee is recognized on accral basis based on actual fying hours offying training impafed
during the period and revenue front fees for other training courses is recogrrized on acclual basis across the training period on straiglrt line basis

Revenue from MRO coutracts is recoguized as and when services are rendered

Revenue share Daid / pavable to concessionaire grantors:

Revetrue share paid / payable to concessionaire / g'antors as a percenlage ofreverlres, pursuant to the tenns and conditions ofthe relevarrt agreenrent for
developrletrt,cotlstruction,operationattdInaitrtenatrceofterespective
in the statement ofprolit and loss.

Construction business:

ConstrctionrevenueatrdcoStSarerecognizedbyrefere1]cetotheStagetrfconrpletionoftheconstructiorractivityattheba|ance
proportion that contract costs incurred for wolk perfoined to date bear to the estinrated lotal coDtract costs. Where the outcome ofthe conslnlctiou cannot be
estimated reliably, revenue is recoguized to the e{erlt ofthe conslruction cosls incuned if it is probable that they will be recoverable. In the case of contracts
with defined milestones and assigned price fol each nrilestone, reverne is recognized on transfer of significant risks and rewards which coincides with
achievetnent of milestone and its acceptance by its custonrer. Provision is nrade for all losses incurred till the balance sheet date. Any further losses that are
foreseen irt bringing contracts to complelion are also recogrized Variations ir contract work, clairns and incentive payments are recognized to the exlent that it
is probable that they will result in revenue aud they are capable of being reliably nreasured

Others:

lll

ll

Dividend income is recognized when the right to receive dividend is established by the reporting date.

Income from management / technical services is recognized as per the terrns ofthe agreenrent on the basis ofservices rendered.

Interest income is recognized on a tirne proportion basis taking into account the arnount invested and the applicable interest fate. Interest inconre is
included underthe head 'other operating income' for companies engaged in investing activities and under the head 'other income' for other cornpanies
in the statemerrt of profit and loss.

Benef,tts arising out of duty free scrips utilized for the acquisition of fixed assels or inventory are recognized as incorne once it is probable that the
econornic benefits will flow to the Group and the revenue can be reliably rreasured.

On disposal ofcnrrent investments, the difference betrveen its can'ying arrourrt and net disposal proceeds is charged or credited to the staternent ofprofit
artdloss.Suclritrcomeisincltrdedunderthe[read.o1heropera1irtgirtcorrle.tbrcotlrpatriesengagedinivestillg
income' for other companies in the staternent of prolit irnd loss

Revetluefronrcertifedetrrissionreductiotrsisrecognizedasperthe1ertrrsltrdconditionsagreedwitlrthecrtstonrersosaleof1lle
reduction units, rvlrenthe risks and rewards are passed on to the custonler.

c)

vii. Insnrarrce clairn is recognized on acceptance oflhe clainrs by the insurance conrpany

viii Revemre frorn charter services is recognized based on services provided as per the ternrs ofthe contracts with the custornel's

liabilities' as uneanred revenue

to the respective entities.

Operation and rnainterrance contracts

Cer1aiIrerr1itiesengageditrpowergenet.ationllar'eetl1ered

Agreentent(.LTAPSA')'ReplirWorkSrrpplyAgreenlen1(.PR\\'ST.)1br.srrpplro|parts1brp|alrttedatrdl'rnplaned
agreel]]elrtSAlrroutltspayablerrndertheLTSAs/TSAarechirrged1olhes1a1eI]el]1

accounledforasandwhendue AnountspayabletrnderPRWSTirrechirrgedlollreslirlerrentofplolitirndlossonanaccntal basis

agreernents are chargedtothe slatenler']1 o1-prolit and loss or rrrr accru:rl basis



GMR Enterprises Pdvate Limited
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31. 2018

Fixed assets

Fixedassetsarestatedatcost,!]e1ofaccurlulateddepreciatiot-t/anroization
and|reiglrt.drrties.Ieviesandborrowingcostsifcapitalizationcriteriaarelnetanddirectly
inlended use Any trade discounts and rebates are deducted in aniving at the purchase price.

Subsequent expendilure relaled to an itern offixed asset is added to its book value only ifit increases the future benefits frorn the existing asset beyond its
previouslyassessedstandardofper1brntanceAllotherexpel1SeSorrexistirrgtangibleassets,includingday.to-dayrepairandnraintenanceexpenditrrre
ofreplacing parts. are charged to the statement ofprofit and loss for the period dnring which such expenses are incurred

The Group
depreciable asset to the cost ofthe asset ald depreciates the sarne over the rernaining life ofthe asset. In accordance wilh the MCA circular dated August 09,

2012, exchange differences adjusled 1o the cost offixed assets are total differences, arising on long-term foreign curreucy lnonetary iterns pertaining to the
acquisitiorr ofa depreciable asset, lbr1he period. In olher words, the Group does not differentiate between exchange differences arising fronr foreigrr curency
borrowings to the exlent they are regarded as an adjustment to the interest cost and other exchange differences

Gains or losses arising liorn de-recognition offixed assets are measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the calryirg alltourrt ofthe
fixed asset and are recognized in the statelnent ofprofit and loss when tlte asset is de-recognized.

Tarrgibleassetsunderinstallatiorrorrttldercol]s1nlctior]asatbalance
balance sheet date are showll as intangible assets under development and the related advances are shown as loans and advances.

In case of ailport infrastnrcture conrparJes, amornts in the nature ofupfront fee and other costs incurred pursuant to the terms ofthe respective cortcession

agreements are recognized as intangible assets.

Can'iageways represents commercial rights to collect toll fee in relation to roads projects and to receive aruruity in the case of annuity based pr ojects which has

been accounted at the cost incnrred on the project activity towards reconstruction, strengthening wideniug, rehabilitation ofthe roads on build, operate and

transfer basis. It includes all direct ntaterial, labotrr and subcontracting costs, inward freight, duties, taxes, obligation towards uegative grant payable to
concessionaires, if any, and any direclly attributable expenditure ou rnakiug the commercial right ready for its intended use

Research and development cost:

Research costs are expensed as incr.rred Developnrent expenditure incun'ed on an individual project is recogrized as an'intangible asset' wlten all ofthe below

conditions are nrel:
i. Theteclmicalfeasibilityofconrplelingtheintangibleassetsolhatitwillbeavailableforuseorsale
ii. The Group's intention to complele the assel

iii. The (iroup's zrbility to use or sell the asset

iv. The asset ivill generate firture econonric benefits
v The availability of adequate resorrrces 10 cornplete the development arrd to use or sell the asset

vi The ability to r']teasure reliably the espenditule attributable to the iutaugible asset during developrttent

e) Bxploration and evaluntion expenditure / nrining ploperties undel construction nnd production

Exploration rnd evaltration expenditlue

assets under develooment' rvheu one ofthe below condilions tl'e met:

otherrvise ofeconouricalll,available reserves and aclive and signifcant operations in relation to the area are conlinuittg or are pllrued for lirlure

espenditure. stripping cosls altl prvutetrts nrade 10 contractors before the collrlrellcerlellt ofproduction stage

esploratiort and evaluation assel lnlv esceed its recoverable atrtouttt

ecorronrically viable to be delcloped

Espendilttre on rnines utrder eotrstrtrctiott

cflleila

d)
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fl

Producinq mines

TheGroupassessesthestageofeachmitreutlderconstrc1ion1odeterrninewlrenaminereachest[teproductiorrphase.Tlrisoccurswhentlremineis
conrplete and ready for its intended use. Upon completion of mine construction and commencenrent of production stage, the 'Mines under construction' are
transferred to 'Mining properties', which are stated at cost, less accrurulated anrortization and accumulated irnpairrnent losses.

Lrtangible assets under development inc

Stripping costs

Stripping costs are the costs ofremoving overburderr from a mine. Stripping costs incurred ilr 1he developrnent ofa rnine before production commences are
capitalizedaspartoftl,recostofdevelopingtlrernirle,andaresubsequentlydepreciatedoranrortizedusingaunit-of-productiorrmetlrodonthebasis
and probable reserves, ollce production stafls.

Stripping activity (included in mining properties under intangible assets) condncted during the production phase may provide two benefils: (i) ore that is
processed into inventory irr the current period and (ii) improved access to the ore body in future periods To the eKenl that benefit frorn the stripping activity is
realizedinthefornrofirlverltoryproduced,theGroupaccourttsforthecostsoftlratstrippingactivityas.Invel-ttories'itlaccordancewithAS
the beneft is inrproved access to ore, the Group recognizes these costs as a stripping activity asset, if, and only if, all the following criteria are met; it is probable
that the firture economic berrefits (improved access to the ore body) associated with the stripping activity will flow to the ent;ty; the entity can identify the
conlponentoftheorebodyforwhichaccessltasbeenirrrproved;andthecostsrelatingtotlrestrippingactivityassociatedwitlrtat
reliably.

The stlipping activity asset is inirially measured at cost, which is the accumulation ofcosts directly incurred to perfonn the stripping aclivity that irnproves
access to the identified component ofore body, plus an allocation ofdirectly attributable overhead costs Ifincidental operations are occurring at the same time
as the production stripping activity, but are not necessary for the production stripping activity to continue as planned, the costs associated with these incidental
operations are not included in the cost ofthe stripping activity asset

When the costs ofthe slripping activity asset and the inventory produced are not separately identifiable. the Group uses an allocatiot basis that is based on a
relevant production measure This production measure is calculated for the identified componenl of the ore body, and is used as a benchmark to identify the
exlent to which the additional activity of creating a future benefit has taken place. The Group rrses the actual versus expected volume of waste enracted.

Sr'lbsequerrtly.thestrippingactivityassetiscarriedatcostlessdeprecia1ionorarlortizationandanyinlpairnretrtlosses,ifanyThestripping
deprecialed or amortized using the units ofproduction method over the expected useful life ofthe identified colnponent ifthe ore body that becomes tnore
accessible as a result ofthe stripping activity unless anolher rnethod is appropriate

Lerses

For lessee:

incepliorr ollhe lease

chargesirrerecoglrizedasfIlancecostsintheStatenrelrtofproftalrdloss.Leaset,l,latagell
caoitali zed.

leilse lel]]l

lease pal,nrenls are recognized as an expense in the staterrrent ofprofit and loss orr a straiglrtJine basis over the letse lenl')

For lessor:

the stirlenreDl oforofit ilrd loss

cosls- et!- iue rer-ogDized inrrrediately in thr' statenrent ofprofit and loss



GMR Enterprises Privrrte Limited
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the vear ended March 31. 2018

h) Depreciation on t:rngible nsscts

In case of entities under CERC Rezulations:

Itt case ofGKEL, depreciation on plant and machinery (other than BTG ofUnit I and Unit II and lransmission lines) is provided using straight line rnelhod at
the rate of 5.28%o per anrum After a period of 12 years frorr the date of conrnrenceurent of commercial operations, the remaining writteu down value shall be
depreciatedovertlrebalatrceuseflllifeoftheaSSetestintatedbythemanageIne|]torirrtlretlannerprescrib
(Tenns arrd Conditions of Taril) Regulations,2009 interms of lvlCACircularNo: 31/2011 dated May3I,20ll ('CERCregulations'). BTG of UnitI andUnit
II and lransmission lines ofGKEL are depreciated at the rates as per Schedule II to the Ac1

othertangibleassetsaredepreciatedusirrgstraightlinerrre1hodattlrera1eSspecifedirrtheCERCrellatiolls'
estirnated ttseful lives ofthe fixed assets, except for fixed assets individually costing Rs 5,000 or less, which are fully depreciated iu the year ofacquisition. The
maltagement has estimated the useful lives ofasset individually costing Rs, 5,000 or less to be less than one year, which is lower than those indicated in Schedule
II.

il. No. Block Rale of denreciation
Buildings:
- Factorv and office 3.340h

2 Office equipment's
- Computers
- Others

15 00%io

6 33Yo

3 Vehicles 9 50Yio

4 Fumiture and fixtures 6.33o/o

Other entities:
For other dotnestic subsidiaries, jointly controlled entities and associates in the energy sector, the depreciation on the tangible fixed assets is calculated ou a
straight-litre basis using the rates arrived at, based on usefi.rl lives estirnated by the management, which coincides w;th the lives prescribed under Schedule II of
the Act except in case of plant and rnachinery where the life of the assel is considered as 25 years as prescribed by CERC being the regulatory authority in the
energysector,asagaiust40yearsasperScheduleIIoftheAct Further.thenranagementhasestinratedtheuseful IivesofassetindividuallycostingRs,5,000
or less to be less than one year, which is lower than those indicated in Schedule II.

On June 12,2014,the Airport Economic Regulatory Aulbority ('AIRA') has issr.red a consultation paper whereby it proposes to lay down, to the exlent required,
thedepreciationratesforcertainairportassetsPendirtgissrtatlceo|fna|noti1icationbytheAu1horityontlreusefllivesofairpor1specicassets,
has continued to depreciate these assets over their estimated useful lives as delermined by the management ofthe Group based on technical evaluation

straightJinebasisusingtheratesarrivedat,basedonusefllivesestirrrated
the Act

Leaseholdlalrdisanor1izedovertlretenureoftheleaseexcep1incaseofpou,erplatrtsr,vherei1isanroI1izedoln1he
improvenrents are anroflized overlhe pr-irnary period ofthe lease or eslirnaled uselirl life rvhichever is shorler.

DepreciatiorrorradjrtsttnetrtstotlreIristorical
life ofthe asset.

Foroverseassr'rbsidiaries,jointIycorrtrollederrtitiesatldassociates.teGroup

estimates. These entilies

assocrates

The eslinateduseful lives ofthe assets considered bv such overseas enlities are ls lbllows.

Asset c:rtegor)'
tlseful life in vears

Nlininrunr Marimurn
Lease hold inrorovenrents 3 L6

Blrildinqs 3 20

PIrnt tnd nrachirrelv 3 t6
Frrnrittrre and fi rlures l 20

Conrputer equipnrent's- olJice ertuipnreut l 20

Nlotor vehicles + a

C)lher tansible fixed assets t0

.\nrorlization of intan gible nssets

duling the ye.lr to 1he total othcr estinraled lreneflts

1.,i:,

\''",.,"<--.,--
._ fi..:.{";-_'.'
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k)

area of interest over the lesser ofthe life ofthe rrine or the terms ofthe coal contracts of work or rnining business license.

Teclmical know-how is aurortized over five years from the date of issuance of certificate from a cornpetent authority

IntangibleassetSrepreSelltingupfrontfeesarrd
cottcession agreeltrents are amotlized on a straight line nrethod over the initial and e>rlended periods ofconcession agreentents- as applicable

Cariageways related to annrrity based projects are anrorlized over the period ofthe respective Concessionaire Agreernents on a straiglrt line basis

Carriageways related to toll based road projects are arroflized based on proporlion ofactual revenue received during the accountirrg year 10 the lotal projected
revenue till the end of the concession period in terrrs of MCA notification dated April l'7 , 2012 and iu terrns of the ameudrlents to the Schedule lI of the Act
vide MCA notification dated March 31, 2014

Tlte total projected revenue for the entire useful life is reviewed at the end ofeach financial year for expected changes in tratTic and adjusted to reflecl any
changes in the estinrate which will lead to actual collection at the end ofuseful life

Intangible assets represetrting can'iageways and airpod corrcessionaire rights are amortized overthe concession period, ranging liont i7 5 to 25 years and 25 to
30 years respectively, which is beyond the naximum period of 10 years as specified in AS 26 on Intangible Assets, as the econornic benefits from the underlying
assets would be available to the Group over such period as per the respective concesslonatre agreements.

Depletion of producing ntines are based on using unit-of-production nrethod from the date of commencement of cornrnercial production ofthe respeclive area
ofinterest over the lesser ofthe life ofthe rnine or the terms ofthe coal coutracts ofwork or mining business license.

Software is arrroflized based on the useful life ofsix years on a straight line basis as estimated by the managernent.

Inrpairrnent of trngible and intangible assets

The Group assesses a1 each reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. Ifany indication exists, or when arlrual inrpainuenl
testingforanassetisrequired,theGrotrpeStilnatestlreasset,srecoverableamount.Alasset,sreoov
ttnits(.CGU,)rretsellingpricearrditsvalueinuse.Tlrerecoverableamountisdeterrninedforanindividualasset,unlesstheassetdoes
thatarelargelyindependentofthosefrornotherassetsorGroupsofassels WherethecarryingamountofanassetorCGUexceedsitsrecoverableanror.url.the
assetiscotrsideredinlpairedandiswrittetrdowtrtoitsrecoverableatrroltntItlassessitlgvaluein
present value us
net selling price.

TheGrottpbasesitsilrrpairrrren1calclrlationondetailedbudgetsandforecastcalculations
1heindividualasse1SareallocatedTlresebudgetsandforecastcalculationsaregenerallycoveritrgaperio
rate is calculaled and appliedto project fi.rture caslr llows alierlhe fiflh year.

revaluation

Afler inrpairnrent, depreciatiorr / aurorlizaliou is provided ou the revised carying amount ofthe asset over its renraining uselirl life

asset is camied at a revalued anroul'rl. ilr rvhich case the reversal is lrealed as a revaluation increase

Irrvestrnents

as cun'ent inveslnrcnls All other investrlerrts are classilied as lons-terrn inveslnrents

1o the l-air r rlrre of the investrnent accuiletl- rvhichever is nrore clearlv cvitlent

Itvestnter't1s
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l) Inventories

Invenlories are valued as follows:

Raw tnaterials. comDonents. stores and spares:

Raw materials, cornponeltls, stores and spares are valued at lower of cost and net realizable value However. ntaterials and other itetns held for use in the
production of inventories are not writtett down below cost ifthe finished products in which tlrey will be irrcorporated are expected to be sold at or above cost.
Cost is deterrnirred on a weiglrted average basis and includes all applicable costs in bringing goods 1o lheir present location and condition

Contract work-in-progress:

Costs incurred that relate to future activities on the contract are recognized as contracl work-iu-progress Contract work-in-progress comprises of construction
cost and other directly attributable overheads and are nreasured at lower ofcost and net realizable value

Traded / Finished eoods:

Traded goods are valued at lower ofcost and net realisable value. Cost is deterrined on a weiglrted avernge basis and includes all applicable costs incurred in
bringing goods to their preseut location and conditiou.

Self-gerrerated certified emission reductions are recognized on grant of credit by United Nations Franrework Convention on Clirnate Change and are measured
at lower ofcost and net realisable value.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course ofbusiness, Iess estirrated costs ofcompletion and estimated costs necessary to make
the sale.

rr) Employee benefits

Defi ned contribution plans

Retirernent benefits inthe form of provident fund, pension fund arrd superamuatior lirnd etc. are defined contributior.r schemes except in case of ceflarn
enlities, wlrerein only pension fund and superannuation fuud forrn part of the defined contribution scherre The Group has no obligation, other than the
contribtrtions payable to the defined contribution schemes. The Group recognises contribution payable to the defined contribution schemes as an
expenditure, when an enrployee renders the related service. Ifthe contribution payable to the scherre for service received before the balance sheet date
exceeds the contribution already paid, the deficit payable to the scherre is recognized as a liabilily after deducting the contribution already paid Ifthe
cotltributiorralreadypaidexceedsthecorrtributiorrdueforservicesreceivedbeforetlrebalancesheetdate.t|rerrexcessisrecogrizedasanosSettotlreeent
that the pre-payment will lead to, for example, a reduction in future paynrent or a cash refund

Defined benefit plans

TheliabilityaSattlrebalanceslreetdateisprovidedforbasedontheactrtaria|va|rtatiott.birsedotrprojectedrrrlitcreditnlethodatthe
cariedoutbyarrirrdependentactuafy.Actuarjalgainsarrdlossescotltpt.iseexperienceadjuStIrellts
and are recognized imnediately in the statelnerrt ofprofit and loss as an income or expense.

Retireurenl benellt in the form ofprovident fund is a defined benellt schenre in DIAI DIAL contribules a pofiiorr ofcontribulion 1o DIAL Ernployees
ProvidentFundTrst(.tlreTrs1,)DIALhasarrob[igatiorrtotlrakegoodthe
notified interest rate which is determined by actuary and accouuted by the I)IAI- as providenl tirnd cost

Other long-terrn enrployee benefits

TheGrorrp1reatsaccunlulatedleaveexpectedtobecarriedforwar.dbeyondt

lossesareimmediatelytakellto1lrecolrsolidatedstatementofproftatldlossirttdaretro1deferredTlreGrorrppreSell1S1heell1ireleaveasacrrell1liability
in the balance sheet, since it does not have an unconditional right 10 del-er its seltlement 1br lu elve months after 1he reporting dale

Shorl temr employee benefits

date

Forei gn culrencJ, transactions

Foreign cun'encl transactions lnd balalces

i Initial recognition

currenc\/ and lhe lbreigrr con'ellcy ilt the date oflhe t'ansirclion

U

n)
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lu

Conver sion

Foreigtrcurrencymonetafyitetnsareretranslatedr.lsing1heexchatlgera1eprevailingirttlrereportingdateNon-nronetaryitetls,whichare
terrrrsofhistoricalcostdenomitlatedinafbreigncuITel]cy.arerepor1edrrsingtheexc|ratrgerateattlteda1eofthetratrs
aremeasuredatfairvalueorother.sirtrilarvaluationdenonlinaledirra1breigncl.Tel]oy'
was deterrnined.

Exchange differences

The Group accotlllts for exchange differences arising on translalion,/ settlenrent offbreign cunency lnonetary items as below:

I Exchange differences arising on a lnonetary item thal. in substance. lbrrns pafi ofthe Group's net investrnent in a non-integral foreign operation rs
accumulatedirrtheforeigncurrencytranslationresetveurltilthedisposnloftlrenetinvestlletrt'orrtlredisposa|ofsuchnetinvesttrretrt,the
arrount ofthe exchange diffbrences which have been deferred nnd which relate to that investment is recognized as income or as expenses in the sarne
period irr which the gain or loss on disposal is recognized.

2. Exchange differences arising on long-ternr foreign crrr:rency rnonelary iterns related to acquisition ofa fixed asset are capitalised and depreciated
over the remaining useful life of the asset.

3. Excltange differences arising on other loug-term foreign currency monetlry iterrs are accumulated in the 'Foreign Currency Monetary Itern
Translation Difference Accouul' and arnortised overthe rernaining life ofthe concerned ntonetary item.

4. All other exchange differences are recognized as incorne or as expenses in the period in which they arise

For the purpose of 2 and 3 above, 1he Group treats a foleign currency uror)elary ilern as 'long-term foreign currency monetary item' if it lras a ternr of I 2

months or more at the date of its origination In accordance with MCA circular dated August 9, 2012, exchange differences for this purpose, are total
differences arising on long-term foreign currency n)onetrry items for the period In other words, the Group does not differentiate between exchange
differences arising from foreign cumency borrowings 1o llre ex1en1 they are regarded as an adjustment to the interest cost and other exchange difference

iv Forward exchange coutr.lcts entered into to hedge foreign curency risk ofan existirrg asset / liability

The premiurn or djscounl arisiug at the inceplion of forward exchange coutract is auroflised and recognized as an expense / incorne over the life ofthe
contract. Exchange differences orr such contracls, except the contrrcls rvhich are lorrg-term foreign currency monetary items, are recognized in the
consolidated staterrent ofproft and loss in the period in lvhich the exchlnge rates change Any proft or loss arising on cancellation or renewal ofsuch
forward exchange contracl is also recognized as income ol'as expense lbr the period Any gain / loss arising on forward contracts which are long-ternr
foreigr crrrrency mouetary iterns is lecognized irr accordance rvilh parag'aph (iii)(2) and (iii)(3) above.

v Translation ofintegral aud rron-irrtegral foreigr operalions

The Group chssifies all its fo|eign operations as eilher'integral fbreigrr opcrltions' or'noD-integ"al lbreign operatiolls'

TlreirstatetrletrtofproftandlossarettalrSla1edatexclrttrge

resen'eotrdisposalofanon.inlegrirl1breigrloperations.1lleaeclllltl]llted
recognized in the staternent ofprofit and loss

dale ofthe clnnge in the classification

Ary goodrvill or capital reserve:rrising on ectlrisilion ()fr)on-int-grirl opcrirlions is lranslated ir1 closingrate

Earnings per share

split(consolidationo|shirres)tlrathar'eclrirnged1he

of shirres oulstanding during the period are adirrsted lbr lhe efl-ects ofrll driutir e potcrrtirl ec1ui11 shares

{",i
j ir'' i
\-''*,'\,ii.

o)



GMR Enterprises Privirte Limited
Notes to the consolidatcd financial statements for the year ended Mlrch 31. 2018

)

Goverrunent gr:rnts and subsidies

Grants or subsidies including
the grant / subsidy will be received urd all condilions attached to the grant / subsidy will be complied with

Whenthegrantorsrrbsidyrela1es1ore\'ellt|e,itisrecognizedasincotlleonasyS1elnaticbasisinthesta1eme|)tofproftalrdlossovertlteperiodsl,)eceSsa1o
lnalch thenr rvilh the related costs, which they are inteuded to compensale.

Wheretlregrantorsrrbsidyrelatestoallasset,thegantorsr'rbsidyamoun1(netofdirectatrroutttitrcur:redtoearnaforesaidan1orsllbsidy
the gross value ofthe asset concerned irr ariving at the carrying arrount ofthe related asset.

Governnrenl grauts ofthe nalure ofprorloters' contribution are credited to capital reserve and treated as a part of shareholders' ftlnds

Taxes ort itrconre

TirxexpetlsecoIllprisescunetl1altddeferred1ax.Crtrent
[rcorne Tax Ac1, 1961 ('lT Act') enacled in India and tax laws prevailing in the respective taxjurisdictions where the entities in the Group operates The tax
ratesandtaxlawsusedtocot]lprt1e1l]ean]oL||ltarethosetlrataIeenactedorsubstantiveIyenacted,attherepofing
recognized directly in equity is recognized in equity and not in the statell)elrt ofplofit and toss.

DefereditlconretaxesreJlec1theinlpactof1inring
oftimingdifferencesforlheearlieryears Deferedtaxisnreasuredusingthetaxratesandthelaxlawsenactedorsubstantivelyenactedaltherepoflingdate
Defemed inconre tax relating to iterrs recognized directly in equity is recognized in equity and not in the statement ofprofit and loss

Deferred 1ax liabilities are lecognized for all taxable tinring differences l)efered tax assets are recognized for deductible timing differences only to the e*ent
thatthereisreasorlablecer1ait1ty1hatsrtffcietrtflturetaxab|eincomewillbeavailableagainstwhichsuchdefeledtax
t|-reentitiesintheGrotrphavelttlabsorbeddepreciationorcarryforwardtaxlosses,alldefelredtaxa
by convincing evidence that they can be realised against fu1ure taxable profils.

elrtity'sgrossto1a|jnconreissubjecttothededtrctiorrdrrritrgtlretaxholidayperiodDefered
boliday period is recognized
totheere1rtthati1ltasbecotrrereasolrablyceiaitlorvir1rrallycer1ain,asthecaSemaybe,thatsucien
strch deferred trrx ilssets can be reirlised For recognition of defen ed taxes, the timing differences which originate lirst are considered to reverse lirst

A1 each repofing date. the

can be realised.

sullicient flrlure larable irrconre u,ill be avrilable

Def-en'ed tax assets

defelred 1as rrsscts arrd tlelirred 1r\es relate to the salne taxable entity and the slnre taxation authority.

ie.1lreperiod1brrrhic|rN1AT.creditisallou'e.dtobecarriedforward.Intheyearinwlriclrtheerrti1iesintheGrouprecogtlises]\IATcredit
accordatlcewi1htheGrridirrrceNoteotr.AccoLttl1itlg

oeliod

Scgrnenl rcpotting policies

Itlenlifi calion of ses.nrents:

*'hich rnajor operaling dir isiorrs ol'lhc (;roup opel',r1e

Inler se

p)

q)

rrenl t rnslcr s

1he G'oLrp rccour)ts lirr inlersegnre;rl s|les lr-ansl'ers 11 cosl plus appropnale Dlar-gil)s

Allocation of corlnron cosls:

lt 
tr- 

,,j! I
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Unallocated items:

Unallocated items include general corporale income and expense items, which are not allocated to any business segment. It includes income tax, defened tax
charge or credit and the related tax liabilities and 1ax assets, interest expense or interest income arrd related interest generating assets, interest bearing liabilities,
which are not allocated to any business segment.

Se gment accounting policies:

The Group prePares its segment inforrnation in conformity with the accounting policies adopted for preparing and presenting the consolidated financial
slatements ofthe Group as a whole.

s) Provisions

u)

A provision is recognized when the Group has a present obligation as a result ofpast events, it is probable that an outflow ofresources embodying economic
benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made ofthe amount ofthe obligation. Provisions are not discounted to their present
value and are determined based on the best estimale required to settle the obligation at the reporling date. These estimates are reviewed at each reporting date
and adjusted to reflect the current best estimates.

Where the Group expects some or all ofa provision to be reimbursed, for example under an insurance contract, the reimbursement is recognized as a separate
asset but only when the reimbursement is virtually certain. The expense relatingto any provision is presented in the statement ofprofit and loss net ofany
reimbursement.

Derivative instrurnents

In accordance with the Institute ofChartered Accountants oflndia ('ICAI') announcement, derivative contracts, other than foreign currency forward contracts
covered under AS I l, are marked to market on a portfolio basis, and the net loss, ifany, after considering the offsetting effect ofgain on the underlying hedged
item,ischargedtotheconsolidatedstatementofprofitandloss Netgain,ifany,afterconsideringtheoffsettingeffectoflossontheunderlyinghedgeditem,is
ignored.

Shares / debentures issue expenses and prernium on redemption

Shares issue expenses incurred are adjusted in the year ofissue and debenture issue expenses aud redemption premium payable on preference shares / debentures
are adjusted over the term ofpreference shares / debentures. These are adjusted to the securities premium account, net oftaxes, as permitted/prescribed under
Section 78 of the Companies Act, 1956/ Section 52 of the Act to the extent of balance available in premium accounl.

Cash and caslr equivalents

Cash aud cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and in hand and short-term inveslments with an original maturity ofthree months or less.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing cost includes interest, amortisation ofancillary costs jncurred in connection with the arrangement ofborrowings.

Borrowiug costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production ofan asset 1ha1 necessarily takes a substantial period oftime to get ready for
ils intended use or sale are capilalised as part ofthe cost ofthe respective asset. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period they occur

Conthgent liabilities

A contiugent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occulrence ofone or more
uncertain future events beyond the control ofthe Group or a present obligation that is not recognized because it is not probable that an outflow ofresources will
be required to settle the obligation. A contingent liability also arises in extremely rare cases where there is a liability that cannol be recognized because it caunot
be measured reliably. The Group does not recogrrise a contiugeut liability bu1 discloses its existence irr the consolidated financial slatements.

Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) expenditure

The (koup has charged its CSR expenditure during the year to the consolidaled statenrerrt of prolil and loss

v)

w)

x)
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GMR
Notes to the consolidated

, ENTERPRISES PRIVATE LIMITED
financial statemerts for the year ended March 31, 2olg

Share capital

,000,000 Equity shaes of Rs. 10 each
47,550,000 Prefefrence shres of Rs.10 each

Total Authorised Share capital

Issued, subscribed and fully paid-up:
62,674,948 equity shaes of Rs 10 each

Total issued, subscribed and paid-up share

March 31,2O18
Rs.'ln gibie

65 00

47.55

I12.5s

3L,20t7
Rs. ln crore

oz.o I

62.67

65.00
47.55

112.55

62 67

62.67

lal Reconciliation of the shares outstanding at the beglnning and at the end of the reporting year

b! Detalls ofEquity Share Holders Holding nore than S7o shares ln the Company

Terms / rights attached to equity shares

The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of Rs.1 o per share Every member holding equity shares therein
shall have voting rights in proportion to the member's share of the paid up equity share capital. The Company declarej and pays
dividend in Indian rupees.

In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares would be entitled to receive remaining assets of the Company,
after distribution of all preferential amounts The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the equny
shareholders

Shares

March 31, 2018 March 31,2017
Number Rs. in crore Nunber Rs. Itr crore

At the beginning of the yea
Add:- lssued during the reporting period
Le ss:-Cmcelled during tJle reporting period
Outstarding at the end of the yeat

62,674,94a 62.67 62,674,948 62.67

62,674,94A 62.67 62,674,94a 62.67

Grmdhi Vaalakshmi Mallikajuna Rao Trust
Srinivas Bommidala md Rmadevi Trust
Grmdhi Buchi Smyasi Raju md Satyavathi Smitha
Trust
Grmdhi Kira Kuma md Rasini Trust

1s,668,6 13

r5,668,6 r3
1s,668,6 13

t5,668,613

15,668,6 r3

r5,668,6 13

r5,668,6 13

r5,668,6 13

March 31, 2Ol7

rities premium account 619.39

49.3s

o.24

0.16

3,347.O7

86. r6

42 46

15 1.2 I

(3,e48.36)

341.68

619.39

22.52

o24

0. 16

3,34r.O7
86.16

21.98

r79.80

(2,84s.30)

- On account ofmerger
- On account of Forfeiture of Equitv shae s wilrmts

Trmslation & Hedge Reserve

Excbage Fluctuation Reserve

Net Surplus/(Deficit) in the Statement of Profit & Loss ( a,fter appropriations)



GMR ENTERPRISES PRIVATE LIMITED
Noies to the consolidated financial statemcnts for the year ended March 3l' 2018

5 Long-term borrorvings

Bonds / debentures
Debentures (secured)

Foreign cunency senior notes (secured)

Foreign cunency converlible bonds (unsecured)

Term loans
lndian nrpee tenl loans from banks (secured)

lndian nrpee tem loans fiom financial institutions (secured)

Indian rupee tenn loans frorn others (secured)

F'oreign cunency loans frorn banks (secured)

Foreign cunency loans fiorn financial instinrtions (secured)

lndian nrpee tenr loans from financial institutions (unsecured)

)ndian rupee tenn loans from others (unsecured)

Foreign cunency loans ftom banks (unsecured)

Foreign cunency loans fiom others (unsecured)

Other loans
Buyer's Credit
Finance lease obligation (secured)

Negative grant (unsecured) (Refer note 36)
From the State Govemment ofTelangana ('GoT') (unsecured)

The above amount includes
Secured bonowings
Unsecured bonowings
Amount disclosed under the lread 'Other cunent liabililies' (Refer note 9)
Net amount

Non-currenl Current mrturities
March 31.2018 March 31.2017

Rs. in crore Rs. in crore
Marrh 31.2018 N4arch 31.2017

Rs. in crore Rs. in crore

2,8',16 05

7 ,s88 26

4,417 89

t2.041 41

2.',730 48

3,339 85

'1 44

32 08

3t5 05

2.635 86

5322 46

1.969 9r

12,995 60
3,41 5 28

014
3.62',7 6',7

25911
583 33

10 62

124

56 6l
00t

3t505

332 82

I,r47 00

368 4s

468 57

987 00

145 05

066

66 4l

r8363

1.296 09
583 5r

021
161 78

r930
'| t6 67

123 32

3t7 34

066

66 41

28,608 1 9
4.740 38

28.313 34

2,886 I 5

2,311 50 2.845 l8
I. t 98 46 623 74

(3_sls 97) (3 46892)
33.348.57 3t.t99.48

Notes:
I During the year ended March 31 ,2012, the GIL entered into an agreement to issue 7,000 secured, redeemable, non-convertible debentures of Rs 0 | 0 crore each

toICICIBankLimited(']C|CI')('Tranchel') DuringtheyearendedMarch3l,20l3theGlLhadfurtherenteredintoanagreernentwithlclclto jssue3,000

secured, redeemable, non-convertible debentures ofRs 0 I 0 crore each ('Tranche 2') These debentures are secured by way of
(i) first pari passu charge over 894 52 acres ofland held by GKSEZ
(ii) subsewient charge on 8,236 acres ofSEZ land held by KSPL
(iii) lirst exclusive charge over Debt Service and Reserve Account ('DSRA') maintained by the Company with lclcl and

(iv) second ranking pledge over 30% offully paid-up equity shares ofRs l0 each ofGCAL
The Tranche I is redeemable in thirty seven quarterly unequal instalments commencing liom March 25,2012 and Tranche 2 is redeernable in thirty stx quarterly

unequal instalments comtnencing fronr June 25,2012 As at March 3 I , 201 8, the Company has partially redeemed these debentures and the rev jsed f'ace va lue of
thesedebenturesafterredemptionisRs 567,500(March3l,20l7: Rs 717,500)perdebentureandthecarryingvalueofoutstandingdebenturesisRs 56750

crore(March31,2O1'7:Rs 7l433crore) Furtherthelenderhascertainmandatoryprepaymentrightsasperthetermsoftheagreements,includingatnendments
thereol.

2 Secured, redeetrable and non-convertible debentures of Rs 0 I 0 crore each issued by GWEL amounting to Rs 75 00 crore (March 3 t ,2017 . Rs 75 00) are

secured by way oflirst pari-passu charge by way ofmortgage on all the immovable properties and hypothecation ofmovable assets including plant and

machinery, machinery spares, tools and accessories, furniture, fixtures, vehicles and other movable assets and further secured by first charge/ hypothecation of
book debts, operating cash flows, receivables, other current assets, revenues whatsoever in nature, present and future, assignrnent on alJ pro-iect related

documents, all benefits incidental to the project as well as rights under letter ofcredit or such other security to be provided by the procurer ofpower under the

ternrs ofPPA and pledge ofshares representing 5l% ofthe total paid up equity share capital ofCWEL These debentures are repayable in 3 equal instalmcnts in

Septernber 2022, September 2023 and November 2023 These secured , redeemable and non-convertible debentures are listed on the Bornbay Stock Exchange

3 Secured, redeemable and non-convertible debentures of Rs 0 I 0 crore each issued by GPEL arnounting lo Rs 409 66 crore (March 31 , 2017 . Rs 443 29 crore)

are secured by rvay offirst charge over all assets ofGPEL, both movable (including future annuity receivable) and imrnovable properties. both present and luture.

excluding project assets (unless permitted by National Highways Authority oflndia ('NHAI') under the Concession agreernent) These debentures are redeernable

in thirty four unequal halfyearly instalments commencing from April 2010 and ending rn October 2026

4 GAEL has issued Rs 100 Crore ( March 31,2017: Nil)1,000 Senior, Rated, Listed, Secured, Redeernable, Non-Convertible Debentures ("NCDs") o1-face valtte

ofRs 1,000,000 each Tenure ofNon Convertible Debentures (NCDs) is 7 years lionr the date ofallotment and is due f-or payrnent at the end ofTth,vear tiom

the date ofallotrnent
The Debentures are secured by:

(a) First pari-passu charge by way ofequttable nrortgage ofleasehold rights ofthe land to the extent of l6 46 acres on rvhich MRO tacilities are constructed along

with the buildings, structures, etc on the land
(b) First ranking pari passu charge on atl movable assets olGAEL, including but not limited to rnovable plant and machinery. spares. tools and accessories

furniture, fixtures. vehicles and all other movable assets. present and future, intangible, goodwill, intellectual property. uncalled capital. present and lillure

(c) First ranking pari passu charge on the Transaction Accounts and all book debts, operating cash flows, currenl assets receivables. cotrtrissions. revcnues 01

whatsoever nature and wherever arising, present and future ofGAEL
(d) First ranking pari passu charge and assignrrent on all the rights, tit1e. interest. benellts- claims and demands whatsoever ofGAF.L rn the Pro.iect Dtleutrents

and operation and malntenance reJated agreements, Clearances Approvals pertaining (o their operations, both present and luture and letter ot-credit gtlarantee.

perlbnrance bond. corporate gLtarantee. bank guarantee provided by any part-v to the Proiect Documents and the insurance Procceds recetved b)'CIAEL

(e) Uncondttronal and irrevocable corporate guarantee given by GMR Hyderabad International Airport Lirnited as per Deed of guarantee dated October 04. 20 I 7

(1) As per rhe Debenture Trust Deed dated October 04.2017. Debenture'frustee (acting on the irrstruction ot'Maiority Resolution) tral'peruit GAEL to crcate a

secLrring the LER Facilit) shall be second charge and shall rank subservient to the chargc ofthe Debenture llolders

I



GMR ENTERPRISf,S PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 3l,20lE

5GATLhasissuedRs lT5crore(March3l,20l7:NIL)l,T50Senior,Rated,Lrsted,Unsecured,Redeemable,Non-ConvertibleDebentures("NCDs")off-ace
value ofRs 1,000,000 each Tenure ofNon Convertible Debentures (NCDs) is 7 years liom the date ofallotrrent and is due fbr payrnent at the end ofTm year
lrorn the date ofallottnent
The Debentures are secured by:
(a) First ranking pari passu charge on all movable assets ofGATL, including but not limited to movable plant and machinery, spares, tools and accessories,
fumiture, fixtures, vehicles and all other movable assets, present and future, intangible, goodwill, inteltectual property, uncalled capital, present and future
(b) First ranking pafl passu charge on the Transaction Accounts and all book debts, operating cash flows, current assets, receivables, commissions. revenues of
whatsoever nature and wherever arising, oflssuer, present and future ofthe GATL
(c) First ranking parl passu charge and assignment on all the rights, title, interest, benellts, clairns and demands whatsoever ofGATL in the project Documents
and operation and maintenance related agreements, Clearances Approvals pertaining to their operations, both present and future and letter ofcredit, guaranree,
performance bond, corporate guarantee, bank guarantee provided by any pa(y to the Pro_iect Documents and the insurance Proceeds received by GATL
(d) Unconditional and irrevocable corporate guarantee given by GMR Hyderabad lnternalional Airport Lirnited as per Deed ofguarantee dated October 04, 201 7
(e) The Charge Created against Debt as per the Debenture Trust Deed dated October 04,2017 in all respects, rank pari-passu inter se amongst the Debenture
HoldersandtheWorkingcaprtal lenders,withoutanypreferenceorprioritytooneovertheotherorothers TheWorkingCapital Facilitytobeavailed,shall bejn
the form and substance, satisfactory to the debenture holders, shall not exceed an amount ofRs 350 crore

6SecuredlndianrupeetenrloanlrombanksofRs 4340crore(March3l,20l7: Rs Nil)ofHAPLunderleaserental discountingschemeissecuredbywayof
(a) assignment oflease rental receivables from Amazon
(b) exclusive first charge on all fixed asset ofHAPL leased out to Amazon
(c) equitable mortgage ofleasehold right ofland measuring l7 acres ofGHIAL at Rangareddy, Telangana
The loan repayable over I 44 structures monthly instalments beginning from October 201 7

TSecuredlndianrupeetermloanfrornbanksof outstandinglndianrupeetennloanofRs ll00crore(proportionateshareRs 550crore)(March3l,2017 term
loanofRs l980crore(proportionateshareRs 990crore)inDASPLfromHDFCBankLtd issecuredbyexclusivechargeonmovablefixedassetsofDASPL
on WDV, entire current assets ofDASPL and borrowers Escrow Account receivable The loan amount is repayable in quarterly equated instalments ofRs 2 20
crore extending upto April, 201 9

8 Secured lndian Rupee term loan from bank ofTIMDAA ofRs l4 67 crore (proportionate share Rs 7 32 crore) which had been taken over by HDFC Bank from
ICICIBankwefFebruaryl5,2Ol6[March3l,20l7:Rs 902crore(proportionateshareRs 450crore) Theloanissecuredbychargeonentirebookdebtsof
TIMDAA, bjlls wbether documentary or clean, outstanding monies and receivables of TIMDAA both present and lirture Borrower has also given an undertaking
to the bank for first right on security deposit of Rs 35 crore (given to DIAL) so reieased by DIAL for appropriation towards HDFC Bank dues, if any The loan rs
repayble in equal quarterly installments and monthly installments

TheloanofRs 4T0croreisrepayableinl6quarterlyequal instalmentsofRs 02gcroreeachstartingfromMay3l ,2Ol4whichhasbeentakenoverfromlClCl
BankbyHDFCBankwelFebruary'|,5,2016 TheloanofRs 262croreisrepayablein42monthlyequal instalmentsofRs 006croreeachstartingfromJuly
1,2016 TheloanofRs 446croreisrepayablein38monthlyequal instalmentsofRs 0llcroreeachstartingfrotrNovelnberlT,20l6 TheloanofRs 328
crore is repayable in 33 rnonthly equal instalments of Rs 0 09 crore each starting frorn M ay | 5. 201 7 The loan of Rs 8 5 8 crore is repayable in 42 monthly equal
instalments of Rs 0 20 crore each startins from Mav 15. 2018

9SecuredlndianRupeetermloanfrombankofRs 85crore,proportionateRs22 l0crore (RsT534croreoutstandingasatMarch3l,20l8,proportionateshare
Rs l959crore)[(RsT432croreoutstandingasatMarch3l,20lT,proportionateshareRs ]932crore)l TheJoandrawntill dateisrepayablein34quarterly
instafltnents ofRs 2 35 crore (proportionate share Rs 0 6l crore) at various repayrnent dates. starting tiom Decenrber 29,2017 The loan is secured by charge on
hypothicatron ofstock and book debts ofCelebi
i)lndianRupeesbankfactlityofRs, l85crore(proportionateRs48 I0crore)fromAndhrabankcarriedinterestofbaseratepluslo/oplustermpremia Theloan
was repayable in 28 quarterly installrrents ofRs 6 60 crore (proportionate share Rs I 7J crore) at various repayment dates. starting from June 30,2012 The loan
was secured by charge on fixed assets and surplus account in accordance with escrow agreement entered with bank The loan has been fully repaid during the
currenI year

Indian Rupee facility ofamount Rs 53 crore (propo(ionate Rs l3 78 crore) florn Andhra bank carried interesl ofbase rate plus l% plus term premia. The loan
was repayable in 20 quarterJy installments at various repayment dates, starting ltom the third quarter of20 | 4 The loan was secured by charge on surplus account
in accordance with escrow agreement entered with bank The loan has been fully repaid during the current year

l0 Secured lndian Rupee term loan lrom bank of Rs l 2 95 crore (proportionale share Rs 5 l 8 crore) [M arch 3 l . 20l 7: Rs 4 30 crore (proportionate share Rs 1 72
crore)] ofTFS Out ofthe total, loan amounting to Rs I 45 crore (Proportionate share Rs: 0 58 crore) is repayable in quarterly three structured instalments
rangingfiomRs 002crore(onlylastquarterlyinstahnent)toRs 0Tlcrore(rernaininatwoinstalments)betweentlteperiodApril 2018-July20l8 Loan
amounting to Rs I I 50 crore (proportionate share Rs 4 60 crore) carries an interest rate of 9 20 to 9 40'% and is repayable in q uarterly eq ual instahrents of Rs
0 57 crore starting liorn September 201 8 till June 2023 The loan outstandrng as on March 31 .2017 carried an interest rate of 9 95ok Loans are secured against
a) Exclusive charge on the curent assets ofTFS,
b) Escrow of receivables.
c) Pledge of30%o sponsor shareholding in Travel Food Services (Delhi Terrrinal 3) Prrvate Limited

ll SecuredlndianRupeetermloanliornbank of Rs 7385crore(proponionatesharells l920crore)[March3l 2017. Rs 9l T0crore(propofiionateshareRs
23 84 crore)] in DAFF 'l'he loan is secured by charge on receivables/ caslr llorvs/ revenue under escro\\' account (present & future) after statutory dues and
DIAL's license l'ee Tenr Loan I loan is repayable in quarterJy instalmerlt is Ils 4 47 crore (proponionate share Rs I l6 crore) Ternr Loan 2 is repayable in
quarterly instalhnents, calculated based on actual disbursements



GMR ENTERPRISf,S PRIVATE LINIITED
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the yerr ended March 3l , 201 8

l2 SecuredlndianRupeeTermLoansfrombankofDDFsofRs 87 J5crore(March 31,2017:Rs ll322crore)frombank,Theloanwill berepaidin l0
installments upto September 2019
Tenr Loan 2 - The loan has been repaid in I 2 instalhnents liom March 201 5 to Decernber 201 7
Term Loan 3 - Term Loan lll will be repaid in I 7 installments upto .Tune 2022 ,The loans are secured by:
- First charge on movable fixed assets ofDDFS, bolh present and future (except those financed by other financial institution), in a form and manner satisfactory
to the bank
- pledge of30% ofsponsors shareholding in DDFS worth Rs 24 00 crore in accordance ofsection 19 (2),19 (3) ofBanking Regulation Act
- Escrow agreement between ICICI and borrower for first and exclusive charge on receivable
- Further, 300/o ofsponsors shareholding in Delhi Duty Free Sewices Private Lirnited have been pledged against Term loan I, Term loan II and against cash credit
upto Rs 27 crore only

l3 Secured lndian rupee term loan from bank of Rs 57 crore (March 3l , 2011 : Rs N il) of GIAL is secured by way of (i) First charge on the escrow account, debt
sewice reserve and any other reserves and other bank accounts; (ii) Assignment ofrights, interests and obligations as per the Substitution Agreement and (iii)
Mortgage/Pledge/HypothecationofassetsotherthanProjectAssets Therupeetermloanisrepayableinrelationto: (i)80%oftheRupeeFacilityin55
structured quarterly instalments commencing afier construction period of3 years and moratoriutn period of 1 year, and (ii) The remaining 20% ofthe rupee
facility as a bullet payment

l4SecuredlndianrupeetermloansfrombanksofRs 92 l6crore(March3l,20l7: Rs l0999crore)ofDAPSLaresecuredbywayofanexclusivefirstchargeon
the revenue, profit, receivables, book debts, outstanding monies, recoverable claims and cash flows, both present and future and by way ofpledge of30% ofthe
issued and paid up capital ofDAPSL, to be pledged at all the tirnes during the tenure ofloan The loans were earlier repayable jn 38 quarterly structured
installnents conrmencing from October 201 5, however pursuant to refinancing the loans are repayable in 32 quarterly structured instalments commencing from
Itne 2017

l5 Secured lndian rupee term loans fronr banks ofRs 0 08 crore (proportronate share Rs 0 04 crore) [March 31,2017: Rs 0 10 crore (proportionate share Rs 0 05
crore)lofLaqshyaisVehicleloanlromHDFCBankLirnited isrepayableby0TFebruary2022inmonthlyinstalmentsofRs2l,612fromyearendedMarch
31,2017: This facility is secured by the hypothecation ofmoror vehicle

l6Securedlndianrupeetermloansfrombanksol-Rs 8823crore(March3l,20l7:Rs l2973crore)ofGTTEPLaresecuredbywayofmortgageofallthepresent
and future immovable fixed assets ofGTTEPL, hypothecation ofmovable fixed assets ofGTTEPL and the annuity / receivables, investments made out ofthe
balance lying in TRA, assignment ofall contractor guarantee, performance bond guarantee and liquidated damages, assignment ofall the rights, titles, interest in
the assets ofthe project and all pro-iect documents, assignment ofall insurance policies, pledge of5l% ofequity shares ofGTTEPL, assignment ofrevolving
letter ofcredit issued by NHAI, corporate guarantee by Company to cover any short fall in the amount payable in respect ofthe facility in the event oftermination
due to any event ofdefault other than NHAI event ofdefault The loans rs repayable in 29 unequal halfyearly instalments commencing from November'2005

lTSecuredlndianrupeetermloansfrombanksofRs 6960crore(March3l,20l7: Rs l0l l0crore)ofGTAEPLaresecuredbywayofmortgageofallthepresent
and f'uture intmovable flxed assets ofGTAEPL, hypothecation ofmovable fixed assets ofGTAEPL and the annuify / receivables, investtnents made out ofthe
balance lying in TRA, assignrnent ofall contractor guarantee, perfornrance bond guarantee and liquidated darnages, assignment ofall the rights, titles, interest in
the assets ofthe project and all project documents, assignment ofall insurance policies, pledge of5l% ofequity shares ofGTAEPL, assignment ofrevolving
letter ofcredit issued by NHAI. corporate guarantee fiorn company to cover any short l'all in the amount payable in respect ofthe facility in the event of
tenrination due to any event ofdefault other than NHAI event o1'del-ault The loans is repayabJe in 29 unequal halfyearly instalments comnrencing from
November'2005

l8SecuredlndianrupeetennloanstiornbanksolRs 24890crore(March31,2011 .Rs 253 l3crore)ofGACEPLaresecuredbywayofpari passufirstcharge
over GACEPL's imnovable properties and rnovable properties. both present and future, including plant and machinery Further secured by the rights, titre,
lnterest, benefit, claims ofGACEPL in respect ofthe pro_iect agreernents executed / to be executed, insurance policies both present and future, and all rights, title.
interest,benellt,claims,derrandsofGACEPLinrespectofmonieslyingtothecreditofTRAandotheraccounts Furthersecuredbywayofpledgeof 100%
equttysharesofGACEPLheldbytheCompany.GELandGMRHL DuringtheyearendedMarch3l ,2ol6,theloanshavebeenrestructured Theloanscarry ia
repayablein42unequal quarterlyinstalrnentswiththelastinstalmentdueinSepternber2025 GACEPLhasagreedtopayanadditional interestof060%pa on
the loan from August,20l0 onwards if the clairn submjtted by GACEPL is ar.varded in l'avour of GACEPL during arbitration proceedings

I 9 Secured jnd ian rupee term loan lrotn bank of Rs 885 crore (M arch 3 J . 201 7: Rs N il) ol GMRHL is secured by First charge over current assets and movable
llxed assets (present and future) of CMRHL, fi rst Charge on the assets created out of th is f'acility to provide minimum cover of I 0x, pledge over 48% shares of
GEL along with all benellcial/ econorric voting rights and NDU over 2olo shares ofGEL (Prior to Disbursernent), Pledge over 47% Shares ofGAL along wrth ail
benellcial/ economic voting rights to be pledged by GIL, Unconditional and Irrevocable Corporate Guarantee ofthe GlL, and Margin of 6Vo - 19 l4Vo of
outstanding anrount (in lorm ofFD/ cash or any other instrurnent) rvhich shall be lien rnarked/pledged to the bank prior to first disbursement The loan carres rs

repayabJe in I 4 halfyearly instaltnents afier the rroratoriurr period of | 2 rnonths

20Securedlndianrupeetennloansf-rorrbanksandflnancial instrtLrtionsofRs l,55264crore(March31,2017.Rs 158644crore)ofGHVEPLaresecuredbywal,
ofparipassufirstchargeoverGHVEPL'stnovableproperties.bothpresentandfuture,includingplantandrrachinery Furthersecuredbytherights,titlc.
interest, beneflt, clainrs ofGHVEPL in respecl ofthe project agreements executed / to be executed, insurance policies both present and future. and all rights-
trtle, interest, benellt, claims. dernands ofGHVEPL in respect o1-rrorrjes 11,ing to the credit oftrust and retention account and other accounts and substitutton
agreements and collection of tolls unless reslrjcted by NHAI under the corrcession agreernent and by way ofpledge of 1.300,000 equity shares and 7.733,000
preference shares held by CMRHL in CIIVEPL The loans is repayable in tbrtl,six unequal quarterly instalments commencing liorn Apnl 2013

2l Securedlndianrupeetenn loansfiomabankof Rs l407crore(March 3l.2rJl7: T{s l459crore)ofGHVEPLissecuredbl,rvayoflirstpari passuchargcon
the sanre securities oll'ered as securitv lbr the Proiect l.oan rlentioned in point I 2 above and is repayable in thirty six monthly instalrnents conrmencing afier 24
tnonths lronr the date ol'llrst disburser.nerrt r e March 20 | 4
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22 Secured lndian rupee tenn loans from banks of Rs 666 57 crore (March 31 , 2017: Rs 671 89 crore) of GCORRPL are secured by way of pari passu fi rst charge
oveTCCORRPL's rnovable properties, both present and future, includingplantand machinery; rights, tille, interest, benefit, claims ofGCORRpL in respect of
tbe project agreelnents executed / to be executed, insurance policres both present and l'uture and all rights, title, interest, benefit, claims, demands ofGCORRpI,
in respect ofmonies lying to the credit ofTRA and other accounts and substitution agreements and receipts ofannuity unless restricted by Government ofTarnil
Nadu under the Concession Agreetnent GCORRPL had undertaken negotiation with the lenders pursuant to whrch, the reDavment ofthe aforesaid loans has
been rescheduled The loans are repayable in 27 unequal halfyearly instalments commencing tiorn June 2014

23 SecuredlndianrupeeterrnloanfromabankofRs Nil (March3l,20l7: Rs l5000crore)ofGELissecuredbypledgeoftotal paidupequirysharecapital of
GEL held by the GIL lor att amount equivalent to the loan facility, subject to Banking Regulation Act, I 949 and corporate guarantee by the GIL guaranteerng rne
repayment of the loan and payment of interest and other charges thereon The loan is repayable after 3 years liom the drawdown date

24 Secured Indian rupee term loan frotn a bank of Rs 400 crore (March 31 ,201'1 : Nil) secured by I ) Exclusive Charge on all Long Term Loans & Advance
Minimurr I 0x Cover, 2) Pledge over 26Yo Shareholdrng of GMR Warora (GWEL), 3) Pledge oyet 26Vo shareholding of GVPGL, 4) Residual Charge on
proceeds remaining alier the saie of the Movable Fixed Assets charged by the borrower to the Senior Lenders lbr their existing Facilities The loan is repayable
inl6unequal quarterlyinstalmentscornmencingafterl5monthsfromthedateoffirstdisburserren Thelendershaveaputoptionforfull orpartofthefacility
amount at the end of36 tronlhs from the date offirst disbursement and every 3 months thereafter

25 Secured lndian rupee term loan from bank ofRs 200 crore (March 3'1,2017: Nrl) secured by I ) Exclusive Charge on all Long Telr Loans & Adv Minimum
I 0x Cover, 2) Pledge over 26%o Shareholding oiGMR Warora (GWEL), 3) Pledge over 26Vo shareholding ofGVPGL, 4) Residual Charge on proceeds
renraining atler the sale ofthe Movable Fixed Assets charged by the bonower to the Senior Lenders fbr their existing Facilities The loan is repayable in I 6
unequal quarterlyinstalnentscommencingafterl5monthsfromthedateoffirstdisbursement Thelendershaveaputoptionforfull orpartofthefacility
amount at the end of36 months tiom the date offirst disbursement and every 3 months thereafter

26 Secured Indtan rupee term loan f'ro:n bank of Rs 3,028 55 crore (March 31,2017:3234 6 crores) l'rorn ICICI Bank is secured by way of subseruient charge with
extsting lenders on ail the rnovable properties including but not limited to plant and machinery, spares, tools, accessories ofthe pro.ject and other movables both
presentandfuture Furtheritissecuredbywayofpledgeof23%ofequitysharesofGMRWaroraEnergyLirnited,26ohof equtty sharesofGVPGLandfirst
ranking pari passu charge on the immovable properties ofGVPGL and charge on excess cash flow ofGVPGL

27 Secured Indian rupee loan ofGRSSPL is from Andhra Bank The loan is repayable in I I yearly installments out ofwhich two installments has been paid trll
rrarch 20l8

28SecuredlndianrupeetermloanfrotnbankofRs 600crore(March3l,2017:Nil)ofGGALisrepayableinl4halfyearlyinstahnentsstartingfiomMarch20lg
and last instalnrent rs payable in Septeurber 2025 The term loan is secured by
(a) exclusive charge over current assets and movable fixed assets (present and future) ofGGAL
(b) unconditional and irrevocable corporate gLtarantee frorn the GlL,
(c) pledge over 28%o shares ofGEL and NDU over 20lo shares ofGEL,
(d) pledge ovcr 23 5oh shares of GAL
(e) exclusive charge over assets created out ofthe proceeds ofthe loan

29 Secured lnd ia n rupee tenn loan fronr bank of Rs I 51 36 crore ( March 31 , 201 7 : Nil) of G SPHPL is secured by (a) exclusive charge over current assets of
GSPHPL (b) unconditional and irrevocable corporate guarantee lrom the GlL, (c) extension ofpledge over 28Yo shares ofGEL and NDU over 2%o shares ofCEL,
(d) pledge over 23 5%o shares ofGAL

30 Secured lndian rupee tenn loan liorn a bank ofRs 75 00 crore (March 31,2017: Rs 75 00 crore) ofRSSL is secured by way ofan irrevocable corporate
guarantec issued by the GlL, charge on present and luture assets ofRSSL created out ofthe term loan, charge on l0% ofFD margin ofthe outstanding lacility
amount. mortgage ofvarjous ir.nmovable properties ofthe Group and pledge ofthe shares ofvarious cornpanies ofthe Group The loan is repayable in 28
quarteriy Instalments commencing fiom October 3 I , 201 7

SecuredlndianrupeetennloanliorrabankofRs I4850Crore(March3l,2017:Nil)oiRSSLissecuredbywayofanirrevocableCorporateCuaranteeissued
by the Cornpany. charge on assets ofRSSL created out ofthe term loan, charge on 60% ofrrargin in lonn ofCurrenl lnvestlnent ofthe outstanding faciJit-v
amourtt, Inortgage ofVarious immovable properties ofthe group and pledge ofthe shares ofvarious companies ofthe group The loan is repayable in 24 half--
yearly instalments conrr.nencing lrorn May, 2018

3l Secured lndian rupee tert.n loan frotn a bank ofRs 5l 67 crore (March 31,2011: Rs 77 50 crore) ofGADL is secured by first exclusive charge on GADL's loans
and advatrces. current assets, cash flows and jnterest on inter corporate depositsi sub debt including corporate guarantee frorn the GIL and GAL The loan rs

repavable in 28 quarterly instalrnents comrnencing liorn Decernber 2013

32SecuredlndianrupeeternloanfiornabankofRs 4l03crore(March31,2011 Rs 6035crore)oftheGIL ispayableonamonthJybasis Theloarissecured
by

i) l0% o1'cash nrargiu on the outstandine arnount in the lbrnr oflien on lixed deposrts in favour ofthe lender
ii) an exclusive charse on assets created out ofthis facility
iii) c\'rportte cuarilntee ol conrparry and

iv) secLrrities as set out ir) note 7i
The loan is rcpal able in ten structured quarterly instahrents commencing liorr March 6,2011 as per the revised agreement dated Ma), 23 2016 The bank has a

put option tbr tirll or part ofthe lacilitv aurount al the end ofthirty six months liorn the date offirst disbursement and every three lnonlhs therealier Further the
lender has certarl rnandatoN prepayrnent rights as per the tenns oflhe agreernents, including arnendrrents thereof.
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33 Securedlndian rupee term loan fiom abankofRs 105 00crore(March 31,2017. Rs 117 07 crore)oftheGILis payableon a monthly basis. The loan is secured
by

i) l0% ofcash margin on the outstandingamouut in the lbrm oflien on fixed <leposits in i'avour ofthe lender
ii) charge on assets created out ofthis facility and
iii) securities as set out in note 71

Theloanisrepayableineightequal quarterlyinstalmentscommencingfromJanuary2T,20lsaspertherevisedagreementdatedMay23,20l6 Thebankhasa
putoptionibrfull orpartofthefacilityamountattheendofeighteenmonthsfromthedateoffirstdisbursenrentandeverythreemonthsthereafter Furtherthe
lender has certain mandatory prepayment rights as per the terms ofthe agreements, including amendments thereof.

34 Secured Indian rupee term loan from a bank ofRs 78 08 crore (March 31,2017. Rs 82 44 crore) ofthe GIL is secured by
i) l0% ofcash margin on the outstanding amount in the lorm oflien on fixed deposits rn favour ofthe lender
ii) an exclusive charge on assets created out ofunderlying facility by GISPL in favour oflender approved correspondent bank
iii) second charge on cash flows ofGISPL fronr coal trading under Coal Sales and Purchase Agreement with GCRpL
iv) exclusive charge on loans given to GEL
v) DSRA covering interest payment for the next three months and
vi) securities as set out in note 7 I

Theloanisrepayableinfourteenunequal semi-annuallyinstalmentscommencingaftertwelvemonthsfrornthedateoffirstdisbursement Furtherthelenderhas
certain mandatory prepayment rights as per the terms ofthe agreements, including amendments thereof.

35 SecuredloanlromabankofRs 008crore(March3l,20l7: Rs 028crore)oftheGlLisrepayabJeinsixtyequal monthlyinstalmentscommencingfrom
October 01, 2013 and is secured by the vehicle taken on loan

36SecuredlndianrupeetermloanfromabankofRs 2l200crore(March31,2017:Rs 25373crore)oftheGlLissecuredby
i) I 0% DSRA jn the form oflien on fixed deposits jn favour ofthe lender
ii) Exclusive first charge on assets provided by the company created out ofthis facility and
iii) securities as set out in note 7l
The foan is repayable in fourteen structured quarterly instalments commencing from January 15,2017 as per the revised agreement dated May 23, 2016 Further
the lender has certain mandatory prepayment rights as per the tenns ofthe agreements, including amendrrents thereof.

37 SecuredlndianrupeetermloanfromabankofRs 14525 crore(March 31,201'1: Rs l8325crore)oftheGlLissecuredby
(i) first pari passu charge over 894 52 acres ofland held by GKSEZ
(ii) subservient charge on 8,236 acres ofSEZ land held by KSpL
(iii) charge over Dividend / Interest Escrow Account of the Company into which all dividends and/or interest receivable by the Company from GEL and GGAL
would be deposited and
(iv) first ranking pledge/NDU over 49%o ofequrty shares ofGGAL The loan is repayable in eighteen structured quarterly instalments commencing from
Decernber 25, 2016 and ending on March 25,2021
Further the lender has certain mandatory prepayment rights as per the terms ofthe agreements, including amendments tbereof.

38 Secured lndian rupee tenn loan from a bank ofRs 62 50 crore (March 3 I , 20 I 7: Rs I 93 76 crore) of the G1L is secured oy
i) restdual charge over all current assets and rrovable fixed assets ofthe Company with negative lien
ii) lirst charge over loans and advances ofthe Company (excluding EPC divrsion) to provide minimum cover of I 25 times ofthe l-acility outstandtng
iii) first charge over cash flows of GMRHL
iv) DSRA covering interest payment for the first three months and
v) securities as set out in note 7 I

The loan is repayable in six structured quarterly instalments comrnencing from March 26.201'7 as per the revised agreement dated May 23,2016 Further the
lender has certain mandatory prepayment rights as per the terms ofthe agreements, including amendments thereol

39 Secured lndian rupee tertn loan frorn a bank ofRs 370 44 crore (March 31,2017.378 00 crore) ofthe GIL is secured by
i) llrst charge on assets created out ofthis facility
ii) I 0% ofcash margin on the outstanding amount in the fonn oflien on fixed deposits in lavour ofthe lender and
iii) securities as set out ln note 7 I

TheloanisrepayableintwentyeightstructuredquarterJyinstalmentscomnrencingfromOctober.20lT Furtherthelenderhascertainmandatoryprepayment
rjghts as per the terms ofthe agreements, includrng amendments thereoi

40 Secured lndian rupee term loan lrom a bank ofRs Nil (March 31,2017: Rs 79 59 crore) ofthe GlL is secured by
i) an exclusive charge on loans and advances provided by the Cornpany out ofthis loan facility'
ii) DSRA covering interest payment ofone month and
iir) securities as set out in note 7l
The loan was repayabJe rn five equal quarterly instalments comnrencing liorn March 26.2011 as per the revised agreenrent dated May 23,2016 The loan has
been repaid in full during the current year

4l Securedlndianrupeetennloanfrorrabankol-Rs 53800crore(March3t,2Oll Rs Nilol'theGll- securedby
(i) first charge on the assets taken on loan by the Company to provrde minimurn cover of-t 00 times ofthe lacility outstandrng
(ii)eXtenSionofpledgeover20TosharesofGELa|ongwitha|]benetlcra|/econotlicr'otitlgrights(a|rcad1,crossco|latera]izedforexistingterm]oan
the Cornpany, RSSL, GGAL (Terrn LoanJ) GMR}IL (Tenn Loan-l))
(iit) additional pledge over 8olo shares ofGEL long with all benelicial/econornjc voting rights and non-disposal undertaking over 2%o shares ofGEL (prior to
d is bursernent)
(iv) pledge over23 5oh shares ofGAL along \\,ith all beneticial/econontic i,otins riehts
(v) trargrn of l9 l4o/o ofoutstanding atrount (in lbrm ofFD/cash or any other instrurrent to the saltslactiol ot'the lender)
The]oanrsrepayab|einlburteenhalfyear|ystructuredil]Sta|mentScotnmencitrg
FLtnher lhc lender has certain tnatrdaton, prepa),ment rights as pcr thc lenls ol'tlte ilsrccrncnts
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42 Secured lndian rupee term loan liorn a bank ofRs l4 89 crore (March 31,2017: Rs Nil) ofthe GIL is secured by
i) hypothecatton ofconstruction equiprnent's/nrachineries purchased out ofthe term loan on exclusive basis and
ii) pari passu llrst charge on the current assets ofthe Company and bank accounts ofthe GIL-SIL lV
The loan is repayable in njneteen structured rnonthly instalments commencing after 2 months liom the date offirst disburserrent.

43 Secured Indran rupee term loan from a bank ofRs 28.65 crore (March 31,2017: Rs Nil) ofthe GIL rs secured by
r) exclusive charge on lhe equipment's purchased by the Company out ofthe term loan and
ii) second charge on the current assets/ non-current assets including bank account in respect ofDedicated Freight Corrldor Corporation (DFCC) - 201 project
The loan is repayable in thrrteen struclured monthly instalrnents commencing from December 01, 2017

44 Secured Indian rupee term loan frorn bank ofRs 285 00 crore (March 31, 201 7: Nil) ofGETL is secured by first charge, in favour ofSecurity Trustee, over the
assets created out of bank loan lacility to provide a minimum cover on the entire outstanding amount under the Tenr Loan Facility including hypothecatron on
the movable assets, book debts and others (assets created out ofthrs bank loan facilrty), by pledge of8o/o shares ofGEL in addition to the extension ofpledge
over 200% shares already cross collateralized by other Group Cornpanies, along wrth all beneficial / economic voting rights and NDU over 2% shares ofGEL and
pledged 23 5olo shares ofGAL along with all beneficial / economic voting rights and by unconditional and irrevocable Corporate Guarantee from the GIL The
rupeetermloan isrepayableinl4halfyearlyinstalmentsafterthemoratoriumperiodofl2monthsfromthedateol'firstdrawdown

45 Secured Indian rupee tertn loan from a bank of Rs 3,919 53 crore (March 31 , 2Ol1: Rs 4234 27 crore) First ranking
charge/assignment/mortgage/hypothecation/Secucty Irlerest on pari passu basis on all the Borrower's immovable (including land) and movable properties
(excluding rnining equipments) including plant and machinery, machine spares, tools and accessories, furniture, fixtures, vehjcle and other movable assets, both
present and future in relation to the project, all the tangible and intangible assets including but not limited to its goodwill, undertaking and uncalled capital, both
present and fluture in relation to the project, all insurance policies, performance bonds, contractors guarantees and any letter ofcredit provided by any person
under the Project docunrents, all the rights, titles, permits, clearances, approvals and interests ofthe Borrower in, to and in respect ofthe project Documents and
all contracts relating to the project, all the book debts, operating cash flows, receivables, all other current assets, commission, revenues ofthe bonower, both
present and future in relation to the project and all the accounts and all the bank accounts ofthe borrower in relation to the Project and pledge ofshares (in the
demat form) held by the Holding Company constituting 5 I % ofthe shares ofthe Company which shall be reduced to 260lo of shares on repayment ofhalf the
loans subject to the compliance ofconditions put forth by the Consortiurn ofRTL lenders A first ranking pledge over Shares held by the sponsor (Holding
Company) constitutingliftyonepercent(51%)ofsharesoftheCompanywhichshall bereducedtotwentysixpercent(26%)ofsharesonrepaymentofhalfthe
loans Providedhowever,suchpledgeshallbesubjecttosection l9(2)&(3)oftheBankingRegulations Acl,1949.

46 Secured Indian rupee term loan from a bank and Financial Institution ofRs 990 32 crore (March 3l,20l7: Rs 669 94 crore) is secured by first charge on alJ

movable, immovable properties and including stock ofraw rnaterial and consumables, all book debts, cash flows receivables, Trust and Retention Account, Debt
Service Reserve Account and other reserves and any other bank accounts ofthe company both present and future Further secured by way of
assignrnents/hypothecation ofsecurity interest ofall the rights, title, interest, benefits, claims and demands ofthe Company in the Pro.iect Documents Further
securedbywayol'pledgeof5lToofsharesheldbytheholdingcompany)Theloanisrepayablein54unequal quarterlyinstallments startingfrom3lstMarch,
20l9aspertheConrmonLoanAgreementdated25thApri),2013 RupeeTermloanavailedfrorrlDBlcarriesinterestrateatBaseRateoflDBlBankplus300
bps, Rupee Term Loan availed frorn L&l'carries inlerest rate ofPLR at L&T mrnus 225 bps and Rupee Tenn Loan availed from Canara Bank carries interest
rate at Base Rate at Canara Bank plus 330 bps The Rupee Term loan availed fiom IREDA lollow lDBl's lead lende/s interest rate, however the interest rate shall
not be lower than the applicable IREDA interest rate for Grade-lv borrower

47 Secured vehicle loan liotr others ofRs 0 06 crore (March 31,201'7 0 l2 crore) ofthe GIL is repayable in sixty equal monthly instalments comrrencing liom
April,20l4 and is secured by vehicle purchased out ofthe loan proceeds

48 Secured lbreign currency loans liotn banks of Rs 2,457 69 crore (March 31 , 2017 . Rs 2,451 86 crore) of GCRPL are secured by a charge over all tangt ble and
intangible assets ofGCRPL and a charge over the shares ofGCRPI- Further, secured by way oiguarantee by the GIL and a non-disposable undertakrng rvith
respect to shares held in PTGEMS by CCRPL The term loans were repayable in 4 instalments of5% ofthe loans within 24 months from lhe first utihsalion date
i e in October 201 l, I 0% rvithin 36 rnonths liorr the flrst utilisatron date, I 0% within 48 lnonths frorr the llrst utilization date and the final instalment of75%o
onthematuritydateie rnOctober20l6 DuringtheyearendedMarch3l ,20]ll,GCRPLenteredintoanarrangenrentwiththelenderstorescheduletheloan
As per the revised arrangement, the loan carries an interest rate of six months LIBOR plus 4 25To p a fbr the first 24 rnonths and an interest rate of six months
LIBOR plus 5 25Yo p a fbr the rerraining period and is repayable over a period of5 years cornmencing liorn January 201 7

49 Secured fbreign currency loan from ba nks of Rs 222 I 5 crores (March 3 I . 2017 . 284 54 crores ) was availed for the purpose of financ ing the securit;, deposr r

pursuant to a Coal Sales and Purchase Agreernent with a related cornpany and meeting the expenses in relation to this faciliry The lacilit-v is repayable over a

period of 6 years over | 2 instalments l-oan is secured by an irrecoverable and uncond itional standby letter of credit up to a lim it of USS49,000,000 and securiry'
deposit extended by the corrpany to a relaled company under Coal Sales and Purchases Agreement

50 Secured Foreign curretrcy loan tiotr banks ofRs 72 87 Crores ( March 3 l. 20]r7 : 53 75 crores) oiCUKPL is Secured by rrortgage of Fixed Assets (Land and
Building etc ) existing or to be created in lilture owned bv the corrpany rn fhvor ofNepal lnvestment Bank Ltd Further secured by way ofLetter ofComtbti in
t-avor of Nepal lnvestment Bank Ltd tiorr GMR Energy Ltd Further secured by way of acknowledgrnent letter tiorn Governrnent of Nepal through lnvestment
Board ot-the Governlnent ofNepal. as per Section 14 I ofProject Developlnent Agreement, ofcompany's assignmenl/transfer ofcompany's rights or benelits
Fu rther secured by lvay of ass ign ment of ri gh ts and benellls as per Sec i ion I 4 I of Pro.lect Devel opment Agreement Further secu red by rvay of h;,pothecation of
entire Work in Progress The Bridge Gap Loan ts lbr three 1,ears fiorn the llrst disbursernent date (i e 22nd Dec 2014 and I lth Feb 2016) or till three rnonrhs

atier llnancial closure rvhichever is earlier The loan will be paid on each financial cuaner endins as oer Neoal Financial Year The interest rate shall be revien'ed
serniannually
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5l SecuredforeigncurrencyloansfrombanksofRs l04900crore(March3l,20l7:Rs 94556Crore)ofGMCACaresecuredagainstthecollateral securityofall
monies deposited by GMCAC and from time to time standing in the cash flow waterfall accounts, the project receivables; the proceeds ofany asset and ousrness
insurance obtained by GMCAC, except for the proceeds of insurance policies arising from danrage of any pro.fect assets; the project documents (accession
agreement, technical service agreement and engineering and procurement contract), and the I 00% ofthe total issued and outstanding capital stock ofGMCAC
The loans carry a rate ofinterest ofbase rate plus credit spread for Philippines peso loans and LIBOR plus credit spread for USD loans The loans shall be
repayable in 1 2 unequal yearly instalments with the final instalment being paid I 5 years after initial drawdown date

52 Pursuantto the approval of the Management committee of the Board of Directors dated December 10,2015. the GlLhas issued Unlisted FCCBs of USD 30 00
crore 10 Kuwait Investment Authorify with a maturity period of60 years The Subscriber can exercise the conversion option on and after 1 8 months frorr the
closing date up to close of business on maturity date lnterest is payable on an annual basis The FCCBs are convertible at Rs I 8 per share which can be adjusted
downwards at the discretion ofthe Company, subject to the regulatory floor price The exchange rate for conversion ofFCCBs is fixed at Rs 66 745l USD The
Company needs to take necessary steps in case the bondholders direct the Company to list the FCCBs on the Singapore Exchange Trading Limrted

53 DIAL has issued Senior Secured Foreign Cunency Notes ('Notes') ofUSD 28 88 crore (Rs 1,886 69 crore) (March 3 I , 201 7: USD 28 88 crore (Rs I ,S94 24
crore)) in lntemational capital market The Notes are due for repayment in February 2022 The Notes are secured by a first rank pari-passu charge on all the
future revenues, receivables, Trust and Retention account ('TRA'), any other reserve, other bank accounts and insurance proceeds ofDIAL and all the rights,
titles, interests, permits in respect ofthe project documents as detailed in the lenders agreements, to the extent perrnissible under OMDA

54DIALhasissuedNotesofUSD5226crore(Rs 3,391 lgcrore)(March3l,20l7: USD5226crore(Rs 3,40272crore))inlntemational caprtal market The
Notes are due for repayment in October 2026 The Notes are secured by first rank pari-passu charge on all the future revenues, receivables, TRA, any other
reserve, other bank accounts and insurance proceeds ofDIAL and al1 the rights, titles, interests, permits in respect ofthe project documents as detailed in the
lenders agreements, to the extent permissible under OMDA

55 GHIAL has issued Notes of USD 35 00 crore (Rs. 2,2 86 90 crore) (March 31 ,2017: Rs Nil) on October 27, 201 7 to refinance secured rupee term loans and
foreign currency loans and airport expansion project works The coupon rate is fixed through the tenor and payable semi-annually The Notes are repayable after
l0yearsie October27,2027(bulletrepayment) seniorsecurednotesaresecuredbymortgageofleaseholdright,title,interestandbenefitinrespectof
leasehoid land (to an extent of2,l36 455 acres), freehold land of8 824 acres and first pari passu charge on all movabte and immovable assets, all insurance
contracts, contractors' guarantees and liquidated damages payab)e by the contractors; all the rights, titles, permits, approvals and interests ofGHIAL in, to and in
respect ofthe Project Agreements (i e Concession agreements, State support agreement, Land lease agreement and the CNS-ATS agreement) as detailed in the
Indenture to the maximum extent permitted under the Pro.iect Agreements; floating charge on all the operating revenues/receivables ofGHIAL and floating
charge on all GHIAL's accounts and each ofthe other accounts requrred to be created by GHIAL pursuant lo the Security Documents (excluding any Excluded
Accounts) and including in each case, all monies lying credited/ deposited into such accounts GHIAL has to follow lixed charge coverage ratio as provided
underthelndentureforanyaddrtional indebtednessandotherlimitations TheSSNissuedwereutilisedforthefollowingpurpose
(i) repay the existing Rupee Facilities and the Extemal Commercial Borrowing (ECB) Facility and pay the termination payments for the interest rate swaps (lRS)
related thereto, and (ii) use any remaining amounts for capital expenditures with respect to Airport Activrties (as defined in the Concession Agreement) as part of
arrport expansron

56UnsecuredloreigncurrencyloanfromothersofRs Nil (March3l,2Oll .Rs 937crore)ofGALM wasrepayableinasingleinstalmentonmaturity.ie April
201 8

5TSecuredlndianrupeeterlnloanfromabankofRs T5lcrore(March31,2011 .Rs 4475crore)oftheGlLsecuredbyanexcJusivefirstmortgageandchargeon
i) residential property of Mr G B S Raju, Director at Bangalore
ii) certain irrmovable propertjes of Boyance Infrastructure Private Limited ('BIPL')
iii) non-agricultural land ofHyderabad Jabilli Properties Private Lirnited ('HJPPL') at Andhra Pradesh
iv) non-agricultural lands of Mr G M Rao, Executive Chairman and
v) cornmercial apartment owned by Honey Flower Estales Private Limited ('HFEPL') and additionally secured by a) an irrevocable and uncondirional guarantee of
BIPL and HJPPL lirnited to the extent ofthe value oftheir property as stated aforesaid b) an irrevocable and unconditional guarantee ofCornpany, BIPL and
HFEPL and c) dernand promissory note equal to principal amount ofthe loan and interest payable on the loan given by the Cornpany
The loan is repayable in thirteen equal quarterly instalments starting July l, 201 5 as per the revised agreement dated April I 0, 201 5 Further the lender has
certatn Inandatory prepayment rights as per the terms ofthe agreements, including amendments thereol.

58 Secured Indian rupee tertn loan tiorr a bank ofRs 30 000 crore (March 31,2017: Rs 89 l0 crore) ofthe CIL payable on a tnonrhly basis The loan is secured by
a flrst Inortgase and charge on | | 7 96 acres ofland or such additional land held by GKSEZ to give a r.ninimurn cover equivalent to the lacility amount The loan
is repayable in eighteen equal rnonthly instalments commencing from the end of six months liorn October 26, 2016

i9 Secured lndian rupee terln loan fiom a bank ofRs 484 63 crore (March 31,2011. Rs 482 43 crore) ofthe CIL is secured by (i) tlrsr pari passu charge on 894 52
acres ol-land held by GKSEZ and (ii) subservient charge on 8,236 acres ofSEZ land held by KSPL The loan is repal,able in twelve structured quarterly
insta llnents corntnencing lrom April 25. 2021 and ending on Jan uary 25, 2024 as per the revised agreemeltt dated May 27 . 2016 Further the lender has cena irr

mandatoN prepaytnent rights as per the terms ofthe agreements- incJuding amendrnents thereol.

60 Unsecured loan iiotr a flnancial institution ofRs 700 cores (March 31.2011 Rs 700 crores ) ofCEL is repal,able in 6 equal insraltnenrs afier fitih I'car fiont
thedateo1-1lrStdisbursetnetrtTheloanu,assecuredby1lrStparipassuchargeonthe|and
GfLasatMarch3l.20l6 AsatMarch3l .20ll.theloanissecuredbyi)exclusivefirstchargeonBargeMoLtntpowerplantlocaredarKakrnada ri) Plcdgeol-
sharesol'Cl[-heldbl'cornpani,AsatMarch3].20l8.theCornpanvhasdelaultedinthetluarterllpayrnenrot'irterestofRs3g0llcrores(March3l 2017
Rs 20 7 I crore) and principl rores
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6l Secured lndian rupee term loan from a financial institutron ofRs 399 62 crore (March 31,2011. Rs 498 6l crore) ofthe GIL is repayable in ten equated annual
instalments conrmencing from December 2012 The loan is secured by a lirst pari passu charge on 8,236 acres ofland held by KSpL

62 Securedlndianrupeetermloanfiomafinancial institutionofRs l2852crore(March 3l ,2011: Rs l4982crore)oftheGlLisrepayableinsevenequal annual
instalments commencing at the end oflour years tiorr the date offirst drsburserrent The loan is secured by exclusive first charge on land held by SEZ

63 Secured Indian rupee term loan from a financial institution ofRs 259 90 crore (March 31,2017: Rs 259 74 crore) ofthe GIL is repayable in six equal annual
instalments commencing at the end offive years liom the date offirst disbursernenl The loan is secured by an exclusive first charge on certain immovable
properties located in the State of Andhra Pradesh ('AP') owned by Narritha Real Estate Private Lirnited (NREPL), a subsidiary of the Company, Corporate
lnfrastructure Services Private Limited, a fellow subsidiary, Varalaxmi Jute &'fwine Mills Private Limited, Vijay Niwas Real Estates Private Limjted and Smt
G Varalakshrni

64 Secured Indian rupee term loan from financial rnstitutions ofRs 59 ?0 crore (March 31,2017: Rs Nil) ofCHASL is secured by first ranking charge on leasehold
right, title, interest and benefit in respect ofsubJeasehold land together wrth alJ buildings, structures etc on the sard land, movable assets and intangibles of
whatsoever nature in both present and l'uture, revenues, book debts, receivables, bank accounts including TRA, DSRA etc The rupee term loan is repayable over
5 I structured quarterly insta lments beginning from September 20'l 7

65Securedlndianrupeetermloansfrotrfinancial institutionsofRsNil (March3l,20l7: Rs l097crore)ofGAPLwassecuredbywayofhypothecationof
aircrafts ofGAPL and guarantee issued by the GIL The loan was repayable rn quarterly instahnents ofRs I 22 crore each with an option to pre-close at the end
ofyear I and thereafter on every interest reset date with 30 days written notice to the lender without any prepayment premium The loan has been repaid during
the year

66 Secured Indian rupee term loans from financial institutions ofRs 5l l3 crore (March 31,2011: Rs NrJ crore) ofGAPL are secured by way of
(a) exclusive charge on the aircraft,
(b) first charge on all current assets ofGAPL and
(c) irrevocable and unconditional corporate guarantee issued by the GIL
The loan carries is payable in 54 equated monthly lnstalments

67 Securedlndianrupeetermloanfromafinancial institutionofRs 827crore(March 31,2011 . Rs I926crore)oftheGlL ispayableonamonthlybasis The
loan is repayable in fifty seven monthly instalments commencing frorn April, 201 4 The loan is secured by a charge on the assets purchased out ofthe loan
proceeds by the Company

68 Secured Indian rupee term loan frotn a financial institution ofRs I 29 42 crore (March 31 ,2Ol7 . Rs I 72 38 crore) of the GIL is repayable in eighteen quarterly
instalments commencing from October'2016 The loan is secured by way of
i) first mortgage and charge on non-agricuJture lands ofSlK Powergen Litnited ('SJK')
ii) pledge of2 00 crore equity shares ofRe I each ofthe Company, held by company and
iii)pledgeofsuchnumberofequitysharesofRs l0eachofCELhavingbookvalueofminimurnofRs 40000croreheldbytheCompanyandincaseofdefault
ofrepayment ofloan, the lender has the right to convert the loan into equity

69 Secured Indian rupee loan liom a financial rnstitution ofRs 70 00 crore (March 3l.2Oll-. Rs 62 49 crore) ofSJK is secured by the way of
(a) pledge on I 70 crore equity shares ofthe Company;
(b) pledge on 100% equrty shares ofGPEL;
(c) pledge on 49% equity shares of GTAEPL;
(d) pledge on 49% equrt_v shares of GTTEPL;
(e) pledge on 26% equrty shares ofGHVEPL,
(l-) First pari passu charSle on loans and advances ofthe above rnentioned road cotnpanies:
(g) pledge on 2lYo equity shares of GMRHL;
(h) pledge on 2604 preference share capiral oiGMRHL;
( i) charge by the way of mortgage on certain properties; and
(l) charge by the way ofmortgage on 82 acres ofimmovable property located at Maharashlra
Theentireloanisrepayableonbulletrepaymentonthedatelalling36rronthslionrthedateofIrstdisburserrent The]oanislallingduelbrrepaymentduring
the year ended March 3 I , 20 I 9

T0Securedlndianrupeetermloanliomafinancial institutionofRs 9360crore(March3l.20l7: Rs l4958crore)ofKSPLissecuredbypari passufirstcharge
oniandtotheextentof8,23650acresalongwithescrowofrecervableliornlandleasins.of9l6acresunderPhase-l andlienonlixeddepositofRs 565crore
Furtller secured by an irrevocabJe and unconditional guarantee given b1, the GIL The loan is repayable in 8 equal quarterly instaiments commencing from the
end of27 rronths liom the llrst drawdown date i e Seoterrber 201 7

7l Securedlndianrupeetermloanlrotnllnancial institutionofRs l2l08crore(Marchll.20l7:Rs l2270crore)ofGHRLissecuredbyfirstpari passucharge
otl immovable assets (including assignment ofleasehold nghts rn the case olleasehold land) movable assels. revenues. book debts, bank accounts and a pledge
over 3O%o of'the equity shares ofGHRL Further the loan is secured by an irrevocable and uncondttional corporate quaraltee grven b;, the GHIAL The loan is
repayable in 54 quarterly installnents commerrcing frorn January 20 | 7
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?2 Secured Indian rupee term loan from a flnancial institution ofRs 137 6l crore (March 31,2017: Rs Nil) ofthe GIL is secured by
r) a mortgage on exclusive first charge basis on a) 99 76 acres ofilnmovable property held by RSSL b) l0 acres ofirnmovable property held by company c) l0
acres of immovable property held by Fabciry Properties Private Lirnited d) I I 46 acres of immovable property held by GMR Bannerghatta properries private
Limitede)l0acresofimrrovablepropertyheldbySri Varalakshmi JuteTwineMillsPrivateLimitedi)l30gacresoflandheldbyBlpL g)246 l0squaremerer
of house property located in New Delhi held by DG Buildwell Private Lirnrted h) commercial property held by Grandhi Enterprrses private Limrted and corporare
guarantee ofthese entities which are givrng rrortgage charge
ii) minimum 0 75 tirre cover on the loan arnount by rvay offirst pari-passu charge over SEZ land held by KSpL
iii) pledge of10,551,655 unlisted shares ofRajarn Enterprises private Limited
iv) Pfedge of 6,024,097 listed shares of the Company on exclusive charge basrs
v) DSRA covering interest paylnent for two quarters and principal repayment for one quarter in the fonn offixed deposit
vr) escrow over all the receivables lrom KSpL on exclusive charge basis and
vii) post-dated cheques ('PDC') lor interest and principal repayments The loan is repayable in forty eight rronthly instalments cor:mencing after a moratorium ol
l2monthsfrornthedateoffirstdisburseurent Furtherthelenderhascertarnmandatoryprepaymentrightsasperthetermsoftheagreelnents

73 Secured vehicle loan taken from a financia I institution of Rs I 7 56 crore (March 3l , 2017: Rs Nil) of the GIL is repayable in thirty four monthly instalments
commencing after two months lrom the date offirst disbursement The loan is secured by a charge on the assets purchased out of loan proceeds by the Company

?4 Secured loan fronr a financial rnstilulion of Rs 73 96 crore (March 31 ,2017: Rs N il) of the GIL is repayable in five equal monthly insta6ents commencing
frorn January 2019 The loan is secured by
i) first charge on all the current assets, present and future, including the cash flow ofthe DFCC-202 project
ii) second charge over all the movable fixed asset ofthe DFCC-202 project rncluding project documents and all licences, permits, approvals, consent and
insurance oolicies
iii)exclusivechargebywayofpledgeollg%equityshareofGMRHL Furtherthelenderhascertainmandatoryprepaymentrightsasperthetermsofthe
agreemenls

T5Unsecuredlndianrupeeloanliomafinancial institutionofRs 104 lTcrore(March3l,2O17:l2228crore)ofGGAL isrepayablein54equal monthly
instalments starting from July 2017

T6SecuredlndianRupeeTermLoanliornFinancial institutionsofGGSPPLofRsl8T 3crores(March3l,2017:206l6crores)representloantakentiornL&T
Inlra Debt Fund Limited- L&T lnliastructure Finance Company Limited and India lnfradebt Limited Tenn Loan ofRs 85 29cr ofL&T lnfrastructure Finance
CompanyLimitedwaspaidbylndialnliadebtLimitedrnMar'17 TheloanfromL&TlnfraDebtFundLimitedandL&TlnfrastructureFinanceCogpany
Llmited is repayable in 55 quarterly instahnents commenced frorn Sep 2016 and loan from India lnfradebt Limited is repayabJe in 53 quarterly instalments
cornmenced from March 2017 till March 2030

?7 Secured Indian rupee term loans from llnancial institutions ofRs I 0 97 crore (March 3l,2017: Rs l5 85 crore) ofGAPL are secured by way ofhypothecation
ofaircrafts ofGAPL and guaratttee issued by the Cornpany The loan rs repayable in quarterJy instalments ofRs I 22 crore each with an option to preclose at
the end ofyear I and thereafier on every interest reset date with 30 days written notice to the lender without any prepayment prernium

78 Unsecured Indian rupee lertn loan fiorr others ofLaqshl,a ofRs 5 22 Crores ( March 31,2017: 8 57 ) is a Interest free Joan, repayable by 3l March 2021 as

lblf ows :FY 2019-20 - Rs 27,600,000 and FY 2020-2 I - Rs 7 8.936.320- The above payments have to be made wrthin I 5 days of completion of each ll nanciai
year mentioned above

T9UnsecuredlndianrupeeloanfromothersofRs Nilcrore(March3l,20l7:Rs 950crore)ofGPIL Theloanwasreapidduringthecurrentyear

80 U nsecured lndian rupee loan frotn others of Rs N il (March 31 . 2011 . Rs 3 1 3 8 crore) of GCRPL was repayable during the currenr year

8lSecuredsuppliers'creditofRsNil (March3l.2011:Rs l930crore)ofGAPLwassecuredbywayofhypothecationofaircrafis,guaranteetssuedbytheGlL
andabankguarallteegivenbyGAPL TherateofinterestwassixnrontlrsLIBORpJusspreadofll5bbps Theloanwasrepaidduringthecurrentyear

82 Frnance lease obligations ofRs 0 66 crore (March 31,2011. Rs 0 66 crore) ofCPCL are secured by underlying assets taken on llnance tease arrangemenr The
lease term is of5 years

83NegativegrantofRs664l crore(March3J.20l7: Rs664l crore)ofGACEPLisinterestfreeandrecordedatamortisedcostNegarivegrantisrepa.vablein
unequal yearlyinstalnrentsoverthencxt5years AsatMarch3l.20l8.anarrountof Rs 664lcrore(March3],2017. Rs 6641 crore)isdueandCACEPl-has
obtained an interim stay order liorr the arbitration tribunal against the recovery ofthe negative grant till l'urther orders In accordance with the tenns ofthe
ConcessionagreelnententeredintowithNHAl byGACEPLdatedNovenrberl6.2005,GACEPLhasanobligationtopayanarnountofRs l7475croreb1,\'ay
ofNegativeCranttoNH,AI GACEPLhaspaidanarroLilrtolRs l08S4croretill March3l,20l8(March3l,20l7: Rs)0834crore)

84 InterestlieeloanlrornCoTof-Rs 3l505crorc(March3l 2011 Rs 3l505crore)o1'ClilALreceivedlrornthestateGoverntnentofTelangana(ersts'hileState
GoVerI1]nento1.Andhra|)radesh)isrepayab|ein5ec1LralillSta|mentScttlltnetlcitlg
2008

85 lJnsecLtred Indian rupce term loan tiotr others ol- Rs 0 37 crore (Marclr 31. 20l7: Rs 0 42 crore) of HMACPI, is interest liee The loan is repayable in l5 eclual
annual instalnrcnts of Rs 0 I 0 crore each cortrmcncint liorn Aprrl 2009

86 UnsecLrred Indian rupee loan t'ronr a tlnrncral ltlstitution ol'Rs 102

instalrnents stailrp fioln IuN 201 7

38crore(Marchll.20l7: l2228crore)ot'GGAI- isrepayablein54equal rronthlr

.. i,' ,
/..l ."'--"\\'.
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87 Unsecured foreign currency loan from a bank ofRs 507 2l crore (March 31.
standby letter ofcredit up to a limit ofUSD 4 90 crore guaranteed by GISpL
the balance arrount is repayable over a period of6 years over l2 instalments

201 7: Rs 542 O2 crore) of GISPL is secured by an irrecoverable and unconditjonal
The f oan anrount of Rs 223 19 crore is due for reDayment on March I 9. 20 | 9 and

88 Unsecured lndian rupee tenn loan fronr others ofRs 4 I 9 crore ofKSPL payable on quarterly basis, repayable at the end of3rd year (repayment starting from
Ocrober 20 I 9)

89 Secured, redeemable and non-convertible debentures ('NCD's) 4,637 Nos NCD's ofRs l0 lakhs (Rs 1,000,000) each issued by the company to financial
instituionsamountingtoRs463T0crore(March3l,20l7,Rs 46370crore)ThedebenturesaresecuredagainstPledgeofsharesofGMRlnlrastructureLtdand
repayable in 4 Quarterly installments commencing lrom January 16,20'19

90 Secured, redeemable and non-convertible debentures ('NCD's) 9,000 Nos. NCD's ofRs. 10 lakhs (Rs 1,000,000) each issued issued by the
company to financial institutions amounting to Rs.900 crore ( March 31,2017, Rs.900 crore).The debentures are secured against pledge of shares
of GMR Infrastructure Ltd and repayable in 4 Quarterly installments commencing from April L,21lg.

9l Secured,redeemableandnon-convertibledebentures(TJCD's) 2,200Nos NCD'sofRs l0lakhs(Rs 1,000,000) eachissuedbythecompanytofinancial
institution amounting to Rs 220 ( March 31,2017, Rs 220 crore ).The debentures are secured against Pledge ofshares ofGMR lnfrastructure Ltd and Rs 120
crores repayable in April'2020 & another Rs I 00 crore repayable in June'2020

92 Secured, redeemable and non-convertible debentures (NCD's) 730 Nos NCD's ofRs I 0 Lakhs (Rs I ,000,000) each jssued by the corrpany to financial
institutjons amounting to Rs 73 crore ( March 31,2017, Nil) The debentures are secured against Pledge ofshares ofGMR Infrastructure Ltd and repavable in
August'2021

93 Secured, redeemable and non-convertible debentures (NCD's) I ,250 Nos NCD's of Rs l0 lakhs (Rs I ,000,000) each issued by the company to financial
institution amounting to Rs 125 crore ( March 31,2017, Nil).The debentures are secured against Pledge ofshares ofGMR Infrastructure Ltd and repayable rn
March'2022

94Secured,redeemableandnon-convertibledebentures(NCD's)'l,000NosNCD'sofRs.l0lakhs(Rs 1,000,000)eachissuedbythecompanytofinancial
institutions amounting to Rs I 00 crore ( March 3l , 2017, Nil) The debentures are secured against Pledge of shares of GMR Infrastructure Ltd and repaya ble in
March'2022

95 Secured loan from financial institution ofRs 464 crore ( March 31,2017: Rs 464 crore) ofthe company is secured against Pledge ofGMR Infrastructure Ltd
shares and repayable in 4 quarterly installments commending from January 16,2019

96 Unsecured lnter Corporate Deposit from financial institution ofRs 287 crore ( March 31,2017: Rs 132 crore) ofthe company and Rs 35 crore payable in
May'2018,Rs 40croreinJuly'2018,Rs 92croreinAugust'2018,&anotherRs l20croreinseptember'2018.

97 Unsecured lndian rupee ternr loan liom others ofRs. 100 crore ( March 31,201'1: Rs 100 crore) ofthe company repayabJe in Septernber'2018

98 Secured loan from financral institution ofRs Nil ( March 31, 201 7: Rs 47 50 crore) ofthe Company secured against Mortgage ofProperties ofvarious group
companies and Pledge ofGMR Infrastructure Ltd shares and repayable in l2 Quarterly installments commencing from June'l 5

99 Secured loan lrom financial institution ofRs Nil( March 31,2017: Rs 84 50 crore) secured against Mortgage ofProperties ofvarious group companies and
Pledge ofGMR lnfrastructure Ltd shares and repayable in 4 Quarterly installments comtnencing from June'l 7

100 Secured loan fiotr financial institution ofRs I l2 29 crore( March 31,2017: Rs 11229 crore) olthe GBCLLP is secured against Piedge ofGMR lnfrastructure
Ltd shares and repayable in 4 quarterly installments commencing from lanuary 16,2019

J 0l fh5gcursi lnd tan rupee tenr loan lronr others of Rs I 07 crore ( March 31 ,2011 I 07 crore) of the KIPL repaya ble in Septernber'201 8

102 UnsecuredloanliotnothersofRs I l5crore(March3l,2017:l15 crore)oftbeREPLrepayable in April'2018

I 03 Secured ind ian rupee terrn loans from a bank of Rs.7 70 crore ( March 31 ,2017 4 5l crore) of the GSEPL is secured by way of exclusive charge on all project
assets incJuding plant & machinery and repayable in 44 quarterly instalhnents commencing from January'20| 7

I 04 Secured loan fionr financ ia I institution of Rs 90 crore ( March 3l , 201 7: Nil) of the GBPPL is secured against the fi rst charge on the uneumbered fixed assets of
GBPPL and repayable in March'2020

I 05 The above Loans interest rate is ranging liom 4 25Y" p a to 1 7.92Yo p a



GMR ENTERPRISES PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to the consolidated financiar statements for the year ended March g1, 2o1g

o Micro, Small md Medium Enterprrises

Others
Advmce / deposits received from customers
Uneaned revenue
Deposits / advmces from conce ssionaires
Deposits / advaaces from commercial property developers
Concession fee payable

Non-trade payable (including retention money)

E7.95

263.60

9.48
596.80

1,566.57

229.87
81.36

Provislons

259.2s

Prowlslon for employee benefits
Provision for gratuity
Provision for leave benefits

23.O4

ta-92

6.56

480
70.36

16.48
29.6r

79.O7

t3.44
17.43

Provision for voluntary retirement compensation

Provision for tilation (net)
Provision for debenture redemption premium
Provision for matk to narket losses on derivate
contracts

hovision for operation md maintenmce (net of
advmces)

Provision for ta on proposd equity dividend
Proposed preference dividend

46.42 | 8.80 1O7.82

1.91

75.41
38.44

o.43
0.01
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8 Short-termborrowings

Secured:
Cash credit and overdraft from banks
Indian rupee short term loans from banks
Foreign currency short term loans from banks
Indian rupee short term loans from financial institutions
Short Term Loans from others
Buyer's credit

Unsecured:
Foreign curency short term loan from bank
Indian rupee shoft term loans from banks
Indian rupee short term loans from others
Others

The above amount includes
Secured borrowings
Unsecured borrowings

Notes:

March 3I, 2018 March 31, 2017
Rs. in crore Rs. in crore

665.49

849.12

286.63

67.80
13.20

2.14

285.04
185.00

81.t5
2,435.57

I,884.38
551.19

2,435.57

692.05

362.70
436.94
711.92

1.02

224.67

t92.30
34.14
17.84

2,673.58

2,204.63
468.95

2,673.58

cash credit from a bank of Rs. 45.00 crore (March 31,2017 Rs. 46.85 crore) of GETL
including book debts, operating cash flows, receivables, revenues whatsoever in nature,
corporate guarantee by the GIL.

cash credit from a bank of Rs.Nil (March 31,2017: Rs. 10.02 crore) of GETL is secured
unconditional and irrevocable corporate guarantee by GEL and the GIL.

is secured by way of first charge on the current assets

present and future and unconditional and irrevocable

by exclusive charge on current assets of GETL and an

Cash credit from banks of Rs.272.95 crore (March 31,2017:Rs.270,47 crore) of GWEL are secured by way of afirst charge and regisrered moftgage
of all the immovable properties and movables including plant and machinery, machinery spares, tools and accessories, stock of raw materials, semi-
finished goods and consumable goods and by book debts, operating cash flows, receivables, revenues whatsoever in nature, present and future.
Furlher, they are secured by pledge ofshares representing 51%oof the total paid up equity share capital ofGWEL. The beneficial interest in the
security shall rank pari passu among all the rupee lenders and the lenders participating in the bank borrowings for the working capital requirements/
bank guarantee facility to the extent as approved by the rupee lenders and secured bond holders..

Cash credit liom banks of Rs.165.52 crore (March 31,2017 Rs. 158.37 crore) of GKEL are secured by way of first charge and registered mortgage of
all the immovable properlies and movables including plant and machinery, machinery spares, tools and accessories, stock of raw materials. semi-
finished goods and consumable goods and by book debts, operating cash flows, receivables, revenues whatsoever in nature- present and future.
Further, they are secured by pledge of shares representing 87.42%o(March31,2017:87.42%) of the total paid up equity share capital of CKEL held by
GEL. The beneficial interest in the security shall rank pari passu among all the rupee lenders and the lenders participating in the bank borrowin_qs fitr
the working capital requirements / bank guarantee 1'acility to the extent as approved by the rupee lenders.

Cash credit from a bank of Rs. 1.52 crore (March 31.2017: Rs. 1.52 crore) of TIM is secured by charge on entire book debts of TIM. bills whether
documentary or clean. outstanding monies and receivables ofTIM both present and future under escrow account. TIM has also given an undertaking
to the bank fbr first right on security deposit of Rs 17.41 crore (given to DIAL) so released by DIAL for appropriation towards dues of the lenders. if
any.

Cashcreditfromabankof Rs Nil (March31.2017: Rs.2.87crore)ofGAPLwassecuredbywayofacorporateguaranteefromtheCll-andacharge
over current assets ofGAPL.

Cash credit from a bank of Rs. Nil (March 31.2017: Rs 21.05 crore) of GATL is secured by first charge on entire current assets and cash tlows
including stocks. receivables. bank balances etc.. lirst pari passu charge by way of extension of equitable mortgage of leasehold rights of land to the
extent of 16.46 acres registered in the naure of CAECL on rvhich MRO I'acilities have been created along with all the buildings and structu;es. llrst
pari passu charge b1, way of hypothecation of all the movable assets belonging to GATL and GAECL and including but not limited to plant and
machinery. machinery spares. tools and accessories and corporate guarantee from GAECL
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8 Cash credit from a bank of Rs. Nil (March 31,2017: Rs. 1.09 crore) of DASPL is secured by way of first charge on DASPL escrow account after
payment of statutory dues and dues to DIAL.

9 Bank Overdraft of Rs 7.00 Crore (March 31,2017 :Rs. 14.58) of GMRHL is secured by the Pledge of FD of GTTEL of Rs 14.16 Cr and GIL - SIL
JV of Rs 20 Cr.. The principle is repayable as per tenure of 2 months on demand.

l3

Bank Overdraft of Rs. 125.73 crore (March 31,2017: Rs.76.3 I crore) of the GIL is secured by a tirst charge on current assers of the EpC division of
the Company and a lien on fixed deposits with banks.

Bank Overdraft of Rs. 7.97 crore (March 31,2017: Rs. 7.93 crore) of DSPL are secured against fixecl deposits of cerlain Group Companies.

Bank overdraft lacility liom a bank of Rs 28.00 crore (March 31,201'7 Rs Nil) of GATL is repayable on demand and is secured by way of fixed
deposit placed by GHIAL.

Secured Indian rupee shoft term loans from a bank of Rs. I1.77 crore( March 31,2017 : Nil) of DDFS first charge by way of hypothecation of
companies stock in trade and other movables including book debt, bills whether documentory or clean, outstanding monies, receivables, both present
and future.

SecuredlndianrupeeshorttermloansfromabankofRs. l44.80crore(March3l,2017:Rs. l44.80crore)ofGBHPL securedagainstthefirstcharge
on the current assets

Secured Indian rupee short term loans from a bank of Rs.l.94 Crore (March 31,2017 Rs.4.89 Crore) of DAFF was secured by way of charge on
receivables / cash flows / revenue under escrow account, both present and f'uture, after payment ofstatutory dues and license fees payable to DIAL.

Secured Indian rupee short term loan from a bank of Rs. Nit (March 31,2017 Rs. 5.25 crore) of GAPL was securecl by charge on fixed deposits of
the GlL.

l5

l7 SecuredlndianrupeeloanfrombankofRsNil (March20l7:Rs. llCrore)ofGMRHLissecuredbywayofpledgeofFDsofGPELofRsll.65Cr,

l8 Buyer'screditfiombankofRs.2.l4Crores(March3l,20l'7:Nil) aresecuredby
'- First charge by way of hypothecation of the Company's stock in trade and other movables including book-debts. bills whether documentary or clean,
outstanding monies, receivables, both present and future.
- First charge on tnovable fixed assets ofthe Company, both present and future (except those financed by other financial institution).
- Escrow agreemeltt with the bank and tbe Company for first and exclusive charge on receivable.
- 30%o of sponsors share holding in the Company was pledged [against cash credit upto Rs. 27 clores only alongwith Term Loan I and l] (Refer Note
5)l which is rvaived olTon 25th January,2018.

l9 Secured firreign currency short term loan from a bank ofRs. 285.05 crore (March 31,2017: Rs. 224 68 crore) ofGlSPL is secured by a standby letter
of credit provided by rhe Group. up to a limit of USD 5.50 crore.

20 Secured Indian rr.rpee shoft term loans from a financial institution of Rs. Nil (March 31,2017 Rs. 1.02 crore) of GEL is secured against (a) exclusi,re
charge by rvay ol' pledge on | 00% equity shares of GPEL; (b) exclusive charge by way of pledge on 49Yo equity shares of CTAEPL: (c) exclusive
charge by rvay of pledge on 49Yo equity shares of GTTEPL; (d) exclusive charge by way of pledge on 26%o equity shares of GHVEPL: (e) cross
collateralisation with existing securities (including pledge of the Company's shares. mortgage of properties, DSRA deposits and others at the sole
discletion ofthe flnancial institution) offered fbr the existing facilities extended to the Group by the lender under the existing loan agreements: (l)
corportite guarantee of CMRHL and (g) DSRA deposit of l quarter principal ancl interest obligations on roll over basis. The lender at the end of 6
rnonths fiom thc initial drarvdown date and every l2 nronths thereafter has an option to require CEL to repal,the entire loan.. The loan is repayable
unequall,r' over a peliod of four years. after a moratorium period of six months. 1-he Company has prcpaid the entire loan during the year

2l LJnsecurecl Indian lupee slrort term loan from a financial institution of Rs 185.00 crore (March 31- 2017: Rs. Nil) of the Glt, is repayable in
Septenrber' 20 I 8

22 Bank oi,erdrati ol- Rs -]9 8l crore ( March 31. 2017 Rs. 61 9l crore) of the conrpanv is secured Against Pledge of FixerJ Deposits of Other
Conrpan ics.

23 [)crnand l.oarrs lionr
Othcr Contpanics (

ll

12

14

l6

March 31.2017 Rs 709.20 crore) of the conrpanl is sccurcd Against Pledge of Fixed Deposits of
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GMR ENTERPRISES PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31,2018

24 Cash credit from a bank of Rs. Nil ( March 31,2017 24.98 crore )by GSPL is secured by first exclusive charge on all receivables including share of
Central rights income from BCCI, gate receipts and local sponsorship contract & undertaking from the company to give a Corporate Guarantee in the
event ofdefault

Unsecured Inter Corporate Deposit from financial institution of Rs. 67.80 crore ( March 31,2017 Rs. Nil) Repayable in June,20l8.

Demand Loans from banks of Rs. 142.50 crore ( March 31,2017 Rs.142.50 crore) of KTPL is secured Against Pledge of Fixed Deposits of Other
Companies.

Secured short term Foreign currency loan from banks of Rs. 101.28 Crores ( March 31,2017: Rs. 206.64 Crore) of the GHML secured by the SBLC
arranged by GEPL.

Secured short term Foreign culrency loan from banks ofRs. I 85.35 Crores ( March 31,2017 Rs. 230.30 Crore) ofthe CIL

Demand Loans from banks of Rs. 126.44 crore ( March 3'1, 2017 Rs. 126.44 crore) of GBPPL is secured Against Pledge of Fixed Deposits of Other
Companies.

Bank overdraft of Rs. Nil ( March 31,2017 Rs. 32.54 crore) of GREPL is secured Against Pledge of Fixed Deposits of Other Companies.

Demand Loans from banks of Rs. Nil ( March 31,2017 Rs. 19.95 crore) of GREPL is secured Against Pledge of Fixed Deposits of Other
Companies.

32 The above Loans interest rate is ranging from 7 .40% p.ato 11.25oh p.a

30

3l



GMR ENTERPRISES PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to the eonsolidated financlal statements for the year ended March g1,2Of8

9 Other current liabilities

10 Loans and adwnces

447.t7

so.42

42-40
25.56
67.96

37.54

902.41
I 91

9o4.32

9.80
rt6.37
233.33

9.06

70 34
438.90

1,308.67

Partlolars March 31,2017
Rs. in crore

Trade payables (including acceptuces|

Other liabilities
Curent maturities oflong-term borrowings (refer note 5)
Deposits / advmce s from concessionaires
Deposits / advmces from commercial property developers
Interest accrued but not due on borrowings
Intere st accrued md due on borrowings
Others

Advmces / deposits from customers
Book overdraft
Non trade payables (including retention money)
Statutory dues payable

Unearned revenue
Other liabilities

2,968.98 2,279.48
2,96A.98

3,515.97
149 88
48. l5

1,154.99

334.23

1,777.82

2,2t7.47
270.19

69.97

523.42

2,2L9.4a

3,468.92
146.43

94.74
8 I 1.45

361.89

r,099.8 r
0. 14

2,163.94
234.O9

I 16.10

422.54
9,456.O9 E,920.Os

Un*cured, considered good
Unsecured, considered doubtful

Provision for doubtful Capital advmces

Unsecured, considered good
Unsecured, considered doubtful

Provision for doubtful deposits

Ences recoverable in cash or Lind
Unsecured, considered good

Unsecured, considered doubtful

Provision for doubtful advmces

Other loans and admnces
Unsecured, considered good

Advmce income-til (net), including paid under
protest

MAT credit entitlement
Prepaid expenses
Lou to otlers
Loils to employees

Deposits / balmces witi statutory / governEent
au tb orities

Unsecured, co[sidered doubtful
Loms to others

Balmces with statutory / government authorities

Provision for doubtful advmce s

Loans and advances (A+B+C+D+El
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GMR ENTERPRISES PRTVATE LIMITED
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended March gl, 2o1g

13 Non-current investments

1.4r

o.92

0.00

98.75

ro r.oz

141

9.24

000

0.05

033

o25

0.06

0 t0

0.39

0.04

056

o.o7

4.00

0.11

o64

816

0.33

o25

0.06

0r0

039

004

056

007

011

20 24

2,118 721 724 4t

March 31,2Ol8 March 3t,2OlZ
Rs, in crore Rs. in crore

Long term - at cost, quoted
A. In Equity shares of companies - Trade
Karnataka Bank Limited

[1,75,800 ( March, 2Ol7:t,75,8OO) equity shares of Rs. l0 each, fully paid up]
Parrys Sugar Industries Ltd

143,97,295 ( March 2017: 43,97,295 equity shares of Rs t0 each, fully paid upl
Indian Overseas Bank

[1,000 (March, 2017: \,0OO equity shares of Rs t0 each, fully paid up]
Bharat Road Network Ltd
144,82,a7 2 (March 3 1, 20 1 7: Nil) equity shares of Rs. 1 0 each, fully paid upl

Long term - at cost, unquoted
B. In Equity shares of companies - Trade
Vemagiri Power Services Limited

[45,000 (March 31, 2017:50,000) equity shares of Rs. I0 each, fully paid up]
Medicon Marketing Pvt Ltd
13,27 ,5OO (March 3 I , 2OI7: 3,27 ,5OO) equity shares of Rs. 10 each, fully paid upl

Sri Varalakshmi Motors Private Limited
2,50,000 (March 31, 2Ol7: 2,5O,OOO) equity shares of Rs. 1O each, fully paid upl
VIL Intemational Pvt. Ltd
[60,000 (March 31, 2017:60,000) equity shares of Rs. t0 each, fully paid up]

Mahalakshmi Poultry & Farms Pvt Ltd
1,01,000 (March 31, 2OI7:2,34,O0O) equity shares of Rs. 1O each, fully paid upl

i Rayalaseema Paper Mills Limited
23,2 10 (March 31, 2077 : 3,23,210) equity shares of Rs. 10 each, fully paid upl

Capital Limited
13,865 (March 31,2017: 2,737) equity shares of Rs. 10 each, fully paid upl
ndian Highways Management Company Limited

70 (March 31,2Ol7:.5,65,370) equity shares of Rs l0 each, fully paid upl
Lexicon Finance Ltd

[65,000 (March 31,2017: 65,000) equity shares of Rs.t0 each, fully paid up]
Power Exchange India Limited
[4,000,000 (March 31, 2017: Nil) equity shares of Rs 10 each, fully paid up]
GMR lnfrastructure Jnvestments (SingaporeJ Pte Limited
[30,000 (March 31 2OI7: Nil) equity share of SGD 1 each]
Megawide GMR Constnrction JV INC

[98,000 ( March 31, 2017 : Nil) equity shares of I USD each, fully paid up]

C. Investment in equity shares of associates - Trade #

HHPL (net off share of losses amounting to Rs 46.62 crore till the date on 36 20

l28.O4l

HEPL (net off share of losses amounting to Rs 949.06 crore till the date on
which GCHEPL ceased to be a subsidiary and became an associate)
[272,05,38,505 (March 31, 2O]7:272,05,38,505 ) Equity shares of Rs 10 each fully
Paid-upl 

2,243.to
Less: ShzLre oflosses (453.6g)
EDWPCPL (net off share of losses amounting to Rs 0 07 crore ill the date on which
EDWPCPL ceased to be a subsidiary and became an associate)
[7,839 (March 31,2017:7,839) equity shares of Rs 10 each, fully paid up]

Less: Share of losses

which GOSEHHHPL ceased to be a subsidiary and became an assocrareJ
[82,823,OOO (March 31, 2077:82,823,000) equity shares of Rs.t0 each, fully paid up

Less: Share of losses

0.07
(o 07)



GMR ENTERPRISES PRTVATE LIMITED
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 3r, 2olg
l3 Non-current investments

# Pursuant to diversements of its Investments in JEPL, UEPL and EDWPCPL by the group during the year Ended March 31, 2ol4 ancl
in GOSEHHHPL during the Year ended March 31, 2016 and in GREL and GCHEPL during the Year Ended March 31, 2017, these
entities ceased to be subsidiaries and have become assocrates
* During the year ended March 31, 2011 GSPHPL had invested Rs. 100 Crore in KIHPL, a shareholder in KSpL, through Cumulative
optionally Convertible Debentures with coupon rate of 0.107o p.a. GSPHPL is entitled to exercise the option of conversion of the
aforesaid debentures into Equity Shares of KIHPL at a mutually agreed valuation at any time not exceeding j6 months from the date of
execution of the Debenture Agreement i,e., March 18, 201 1 This period has been extended by 18 months u,ith effect from March lg,
2014 During the Year Ended March 3I,2016 this period has been further extended by 36 Months from September 18, 2015. In the
event GSPHPL, does not exercise the option to convert the debentures into shares within the said period, the debentures shall be
compulsorily converted by KIHPL into equity shares on expiry ofthe aforementioned period.

Particulars

D. In Equity shares of body corporates - Trade
PI DSSP Power Sumsel

[125 (March 3I, 2017: 125) equity shares with nominal value of Indonesia Rupiah
1,000,000 each, Group's share being 307.1

PT Manggala Alam Lestari ('MAL')

[12,939 (March 31,2O17: 12,939) equity shares with nominal value of Indonesia
Rupiah I,000,000 each, Group's share being 30%.]

E. In Preference share of companies - Trade
Indira Porver Private Limited

[40,00,000 (March 31, 2017:40,00,000) preference shares of Rs. lO each, fully paid up]

Lexicon Finance Ltd

[2,500(March3r,2017 2,500) preferenceshares sharesofRs l0each,fullypaidup]

F. In Debentures of companies - Ttade
Kakinada Infrastructure Holdings Private Limited ('KlHpL') +

[100 (March 37,2o17: 100) 0.10% cumulative optionally convertibre Debentures of
Rs 10,000,000 eachl

Basanth Investements Pvt Ltd

[3,000 (March 3I,2Ol7:3000) 0.O01% Compulsory Convertible Debenture
Debentures of Rs. 10,000 eachl

In Equity shares of companies - Other than trade
India Publications Limited

5,000 (March 3l,2Ol7:5,000) equity shares of Rs. lO each, fully paid upl

H.Investment in other funds
Faering Capital Evolving Fund

11,22,87O (March31,2Ol7:1,La,876) equitysharesof Rs. l0each,fullypaidupl

l. ln Government Bonds/ Securities

Investment in Covt. Securities

[Governnrent Bonds issued by Government of Philippines]

Total (A to I)

Less: Current portion of non-current investments
2. Aggregate provision for diminution in the value of non current investments - Rs.

44 crore (March 31, 2017: Rs. 0.44 crore)

March 31, 20l8 March 31, 20lZ
Rs. in crore Rs. in crore

o02 o.o2

0.01001

4.00

0.03

100 00

3.00

l0 05

198

400

0.03

100.00

3.00

0.01

I 1.36

151

2,27t.50

(0.4s)

14 441 lo 44

2,25O.42

Additional Information March 31'2018 March 31'2017
i) Aggregate value of quoted investments and Market value

Cost

Market Value

ii) Aggregate amount of unquoted investments

Cost

iii) Aggregate amount of provision for diminuition in value of invesrmenr

l0r 07

90 47

|,922 8r
444

10 65

30 00

2,240.61

044



Trade receivables

GMR ENTERPRISES PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2Olg

Current

for a period exceeding six months from

March 31,2O18
trle. in crore

March 31. 2017
Rs. ln crore

19.55

19,55

the date they ate due for paJment
Unsecured, considered good

Unsecured, considered doubtful
Provision for doubtful trade receivables

receimbles
Unsecured, considered good

Unsecured, considered doubtlul

Provision for doubtful trade receivables

Tmde receirebles

(A)

(B) 
i

17.341

466.64

2,006.85

2,006.8s

2,OO6.8s

72.35 406 89

36.32

136.32]'
406.49

2,271.89

7.34
2,279.23

2,27t.49

74.

466.64

March 31, 2O18
Rs. iu crore

Unsecured, considered good unless stated othemise
Non-current bmk balmces (refer note 17) 496.22

tA) 4s6.22
Unamortised expenditure

Ancillary cost of drmging the borrowings 216.33 2I.19
216.33 2r.L9 95.1s

2-21

333.36

1.24
336.81

336.81

unsecured consldered good unless stated
otheruise

lnterest accrued on fued deposits l.Of 37.29
lnterest accrued on current invesments - 48.33
Development fund re ceivable O.97v.t I

Non trade receivables 56.52 206.12
Non trade receivables, considered doubtful
Grmt receivable from authorities - 0.04- U'U+
Unbilled revenue 54.93 890.10

rrs.as-r.t8r.es l
Provision for doubtful non trade receivables

640.56

95.15 16.30

16 Inventories lvalued at lower of cost and net realisable wluel
March 31,2018 | March 3lt2Ol7

Rs. in crore I Rs, ia crore
Raw materials 154.23

i49.80
107.59

4LL.62

t32.60
139.60
r12.74

ed goods / lnished goods

Stores, spaes md components
otal Inventories 384.94

March 31, 2Ol7
Rs. in crore

Cheques / drafts on hmd
Cash on hmd / credit ctrd collection

Balances with banks:

- On current accounts
- Deposits vith less thm three months maturity

404
.).t .t I

1,153 62

926 85
2,t37.42

831
36 60

774.89

1,081 02
1,9OO.42

t7.38
680.6s

189 44

Deposits with maturity for more thm 12 months

- Deposits vith maturity for more thm 3 months but
k:ss thu 12 months

Restricted <leposits

otal Cash and Bank balances



l8

GMR ENTERPRISES PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for th€ year ended March 3l,20lg

Notes:
I Aggregatemarketvahteofcutrentquoledinveshnents Rs Nil(March3l,20l?:Nil)
2 ABgregate afnount ofcuffent unquoled invest:nents (including cunenl portion ofnon cunent investrnents) Rs 403? 6 I crore (March 31. 201 7; 3.227 69 crore)

Current investments March 31, 2018
Rc in nrnra

March 31, 2017
Rs. in crore

Invesco India Liquid Fund-Growth Plan

1126,125 343 (March 3 1, 201 7: Nil) units of Rs I 000 eachl

Invesco Mutual Fund

[630,626 7l units (March 31,2017 : Nil) ofRs 1000 each ]
Invesco Liquid Fund - Growrh

[2,3 I I units (Marcb 31, 2017: Nil) of Rs I 000 each]

Other Mutual Funds

B. Investments in venture capital funds:
SREI Altemative Investment Managers Limited

ll 5,90,022 (Much 3 l, 201 7: I 5,90,022) unils of Rs I 00 eachl
SREI Infrastructure Resunection Fund

I I 9,35,000 (March 31,2017: I 9,35,000) unirs of Rs I 00 each]
SREI Infiastructure Project Development Capital
[20,00,000 (March 31,2017:20,00,000) units ofRs 100 each]

C. lnvestment in hedge funds:
Haussmann Holdings

[5 (March 31,2017: 32) units ofUSD 2,555 each]

D. Inyestment in other funds:
CNC Global Opportunities Fund SPC

[4,863 (Marcb 31,2017 :4,863) uirs of USD 1,000 each]
Investments in Trust flrnds

E. Commercial Papers
SREI lnfrastructure Finance Lirniteo

[2000 units (March 201 7 : I 500) Units ofRs 500,000 each ]

Total

045

86 97

6',16 46

ro4 70

87 90

I 03.63

193 33

428 6l

190 0l

37 0r

t4'1 0'1

100 00

230 00

199 90

23.00

90 00

75 00

21.31

90 00

5 l8

l0 0l

30.00

t50 00

0.55

253.20

l6 06

r9 35

20 00

028

3't 52

21 2s

594 88

20 24

66 25

568 52

I 5.25

395 00

I30 50

t8't '17

386 69

100 00

8l 06

t7 30

200 00

190 00

19000

44 0l

005

50 00

105 00

50 00

t55

199 41

044

32 74

l6 06

t9 35

20 00

140 49

4.037.61 3,227.71

t>
3 Aggregate provision for value ofcunenl investments Rs Nil (l\4arch 3l 2017 Nil)



GMR TNTERPRISES PRTVATE LIMITED
Notes to consolidated finaucial statements for the year ended March 31, 2o1g

19 Revenue from operations

2O Other operating income

Particulars

Interest income on
Bank deposits & Others

Net gain on sale of current investments
s

Total Other operatin tncolne

31,2018 March 31, 2017
Rs. in croreRs. ln crore

Power segmen
Income from sale of electrical energl
Income from mining activities

Traded goods

Power segment:
Income from sale of electrical energl
Income from coal trading

3,868.47
1,505. l 1

3,967.24
455.63

ft segment:

899.98
141.83

1,118.O9

319.42
520.09

1,000.29Duty free items

Sale of services / others
Power segment:

Electrical ener$/ transmission charges

Airport segment:
Aeronautical
Non-aeronautical
Cargo operations
Income from commercial property development

Roads segment:
Annuity income from expressways
Toll income from expressways

EPC segment:
Construction revenue

2,495.69
2,r35.66

200.77
115.43

334.39
3rt.44

906.95

185. r2
310.38

0.14

32.57

4,6t6.20
1,661.10

282.88
103.98

366.69
267.66

386.01

166.88
275.57

74.44
o.o7

t4,436.6a

rs segment:
Income from hospitality services
Income from management and other services
Interest - Others
Dividend

Total Revenue from operations 14.529.46

48.67
25.45

145.72

58.40
72-75

752.40

223.55259.83



GMR ENTERPRISES PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to consolidated financlal statements for the year euded March 31, 2O18

21 Other income

Particulars March 31, 2Ol8
Rs. in crore

March 31, 2O17

Interest income on
Rs, in crore

Bank deposits
Others

119.04
135.41

166.60
159.48

37.31
17.06
27.95
17.49

140.58
87.92

17I.75
837.17

50. l8
75.7 |

t.49
t2.98

1.03

0.0 r
2.70

Net gain on sale of current investments
Miscellaneous income

Provisions no longer required, written back
Exchange differences (net)

Profit on sale of fixed assets (net)

Lease income
Income from management fees

Liabilities written back
Dividend
Interest on investments

Other Income 680.33 1,381.52

22 Cost of materials consumed

23 Purchase ofTraded goods

Particulars

Purchase of electrical energr
Purchase of coal for trading
Purchase of duty free items

Total Purchases

24 (Increase) / decrease in stock is trade

Particulars

March 31,2O18
Rs, in crore

1,035. 14

499.44
426.80

March 31, 2017
Rs, in crore

8.73
548.53
353.10

r,96t.42 910.36

March 31, 2018
Rs. in crore

March 31, 2O17

Rs, in crore
Stock at the beginning of the year

Less: Stock at the end of the vear

Increase in Stock in Trade

25 Employee benefits expenses

20.90

March 31, 2018

,. ;... jj.: 
--,.:t**-lnventory at the beginning of the year

Add: Purchases

Less: Inventory at the end of the year ( refer note no.16)
Cost of naterials consumed

732.60
459.91
592.51
t54.23

438.28

3t2.40
t32.60

L79.aO

31, tzolT

r89.62
r22.78

Particulars
March 31, 2018

Rs. in crore
March 31. 2017

Rs, in crore
Salaries, wages and bonus
Staff welfare expenses

776.20
39.42
s9.79
17.58

492.99

692.53
36.83
56.20
8.67

tribution to provident and other fund
tulty expense

Total Em benefit expenses 794.23

L



GMR INTERPRISES PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2018

26 Other expenses

27 Finance costs

20t7

92.53

Rs,
3

Repairs and maintenance
Plant and Machinery
Buildings
Others

Travelling and conveyance
Communication costs
Printing and stationery
Legal and professional fees

sumption of stores and spares
Electricity and water charges
Prompt payment rebate

access charges paid
rt service charges / operator fees

Cargo handling charges
Freight
Rent
Manpower hire charges
Advertising and sales promotion
Transmission and distribution charges
Directors' sitting fees
Adjustments to the carrying amount of current invesrments
Provision / write off of doubtful advances and trade receivables
Donation (includes corporate social responsibility expenditure)
Fixed assets written off / loss on sale of fixed assets
Office maintenance
Security expenses
Miscellaneous expenses

Total Other expenses

112.66

34.50

215.56

43.27
22t.98
72.tr
14.31

6.36
477.94

80.10
t98.29
47.25

r97.79
19.95
47.38
87.73

r27.53
46.41
60.94

r.96
0.14

9r.97
43.49
3.54

35.27
10.12
82.15

47.47

207.28

36.51
236.49

56.92
12.82

6.80
420.16

88.89
229.44

27.89
775.20
167.16

16.62

16.86
87.38
82.82
35.38
8 1.01

2.18
24.24
73.40
43.77
4.67

45.05
lo-J /

100.40

2.429.7r

March 31, 2018

March 31,2O18
Rs. in crore

Bank charges
Exchange difference to the extent considered as an adjustment to borrowing cost

3,60r.78
r95.59

5,O74.60

r77.6r

(0.01)

T.2T

218.13

(net)

Mark to market loss on derivative instruments
Amortization of ancillary borrowing costs

185.99
82.28

Finance costs 5,47L.54

and amortisation expenses

Particulars

Depreciation of tangible assets
tisation of Intangible assets

Total Depreciation and Amortisation expenses

March 31,2O18
Rs, in crore

1,12I 5l
280 85

March 31, !1O17

Rs. in crore
t,479.97

296.95



GMR ENTERPRISES PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to consolidated financlal statements for the year ended March 31, 2o1g

29 Exceptional items - / galns

30 Earnings per share ('EPS'I

1o.00

6.27

(2,s 14.81)

(401.2s)

416.05

66.38

(2,oe8.761

(334.86)

Nominal value of equity shares (Rs. per share)
weighted average number of equity shares used in computing earnings per share
(in Crore)

Profit / (loss) after minority interest from continuing operations (Rs. in crore)

EPS - Basic and diluted (Rs. per share)

Profit / (loss) after minority interest from discontinuing operations (Rs. in crore)

EPS - Basic and diluted (Rs. per share)

Profit / (loss) after minority interest from continuing and discontinuing
operations (Rs. in crore)

EPS - Basic and diluted (Rs. per share)

lo.o0

6.27

(e78.s 1)

( 1s6. l2)

(24.e81

(3.ee)

(1,003.48)

(160.1 r)
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GMR Enterprises Private Limited
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 201g

32 (a) Capital rvork-in-progress

Rs. in crore
l'arttculars March 31. 2018 March 31.2017

Insurance

Legal and professional fees

Travelling and conveyance

Communication costs

Depreciation of tangible assets

Amortisation of intangible assets

Interest costs

Amortisation of ancillary borrowings costs

Bank charges

Printing and stationery

Exchange differences (net)

Trial run costs

Porver and fuel

Cornmunit-v derzelopment expenses

Securi6, charges

Miscellaneous expeuses

2,730.39

t'7t.'71

1 1.68

6.97

38.42

tL.49

30.01

35.19

r'7.03

379.06

s9. l0
6.98

11.80

5. t)
1,871.83

30.'7',7

l.'79

0.03

1.74

r.92

I10.31

2,504.91

200.r'7

9.s4

8.45

49.t6

0.40

24.60

20.50

15.90

387.78

73.30

7.45

10.91

3.75

1,611.18

32.55

2.',70

0.04

3.36

11.07

92.50
(i) 5,531.96 5,070.25

Less : other Income

Interesl incorne on bank deposits

Net gairr on stle of current investments

Revenue frour sale of infinn power

Miscellaneous incoure

166.62

5.34

40.2r

t69.52

5.92

46.61

(ii) 2r2.16 222.05
Total-(iii)=(i)-(ii 5.319.79 .1.848.19
Less : Apportioned over the cost oftangible assets

Less : Provision for irupainnent during the year

associate entities durins the vear

4',7.30

2'72.t1
(iv) 17.30 272.1r

rotrl - (r'): (iii) - (iv) 5,272.50 4.576.08



GMR Enterprises Private Limited
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 3r,20lg

32 (b) Intangible assets under development

Rs.
Particula rs

In crore

March 31,2018 March 31,2017

Rates and taxes

Insurance

Legal and professional fees

Travelling and conveyance

Communication costs

Depreciation of tangible assets

Amoftisation of intangible assets

Interest costs

Amortisation of ancillary borowing costs

Bank charges

Printing and stationery

Miscellaneous expenses

102.25

125.06

8.20

2.88

10.7 5

5.42

5.15

0.51

137.06

22.19

3.74

0.24

109.14

19.99

0.01

37.46

163.82

134.7 4

8.90

3.31

10.27

1.34

6.83

0.54

140.99

27.50

4.05

I .13

0.l8

86.94

13.36

31.95

0.1 5

51.36

(i) 590.03 687.35
Less : Other income

Interest income on bank deposits

Miscellaneous income I 1.82

0.00

9.32

(ii) 11.82 9.32

Total (iii): (i) - (iil 578.22 678.03
Less : Covernment grant received

Less : Apportioned over the cost of intangible assets (net of grant adjusted)

Less : Accumulated impairment

Less : Provision for claims recoverable

20.t4 13.42

44.28

t4.20

95.48

(iv) 20.t4 167.38

Total (v) = (iii) - (iv) 558.08 510.6s



GMR Enterprises Private Ltd
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the period ended March 31,20lg

33. Deferred Tax

Deferred tax (liability) / asset comprises mainly of the following

Pa rlicula rs

Defened tax liabiiity :

Depreciation

Carry forward Iosses/Unabsorbed depreciation
Intangibles ( Airport Concession rights)
Others

t,221 59
704 29
66 71

s6 l8

March 31. 2018
(Rs. in crore)

March 31. 2017
Deferred tax asset Deferred tax liabilitv Deferred tax asset Deferred tax liabilitv

t.279 96
623 65

69 96

r08 65Sub- total (A)
Delened tax liability (net)

Deferred tax asset :

Depreciation
Carry forward lossesfunabsorbed depreciation
Others

827.r7

ozJ
709

2t 77

1,227.59
400 42

802.26

OJJ

t0 58

27 84

1,279.96
411 70

Sub- total (B)

Change for the year
Foreign currency translation reserve
Tax income/(expense) during the period recognised in retained eamings
Additional Def Tax due to change in Fixed Assets useful life
Deferred tax asseV (liability) on account ofacquisition during rne year
Charge(credit) during the year

34. Preference shares issued by subsidiaries

35.09
35 09

44.75
44 75

862.27 1,227.s9 847.01 1,279.96
(36s 33) (432 es)

67 62

(0. r 3)

67.49

(422 88)
(0 62)

(423.s0)

Non - cumulative compulsory convertible non-pu.ticipatory pr" shares issued by
Preference shares issued by GIpL

March 31.2018
396. l 8

March 31.2017
396 t8

300
l6l8

Preference shares issued bv CISPL
16 l8T

412.36 4r 5.36

11,046,532 cJass B Corrpulsorrly Convertible preference Shares (..CCpS B',) to the Companl, utilising the securjties premium account.

The call option was to be exercjsed by the cornpanl'on or before Apri] 6,2015 lfthe call option was not exercised by the Company before April 6,2015, as per the investmenl
agreement' each ccPS A will get converted into 82 821 equiq'shares of GAL with simultaneous conversion of cCpS B held by the company into equity shares of GAL as per Artrcles
and Memorandum of Association of GAL

initiated arbitration proceedings against GAL and the company, seeking conversion ofthe CCPS A. The arbitration process is currently under progress.

as at March 31,2018 Further, no ad-iustments have been made lor the call oplion exercised by the company to acquire CCpS A and rhe CCpS B issued to the cornpany conrinues ro bc

afbresaid uncertainty

|I)DuringtheyearendedMarch3l.2014theGlPLhasissued30,00,000Non-cumulativeRedeerlable
premiumofRs 20pershareandhavrngatermof l0yearsfromthedateofallotrnent (onsepternber26,2ol3theCompanyrssued ulatiYeRedeemableprel-erence
Shares (NCRPS) face value ofRs. l0 each canving 8% dividend al a premium ofRs. 20 per share and on March 08,2014 the cornp 0 Non-cumulati'e Redee'ablePrelerenceShares(NCRPS)facevalueofRs. l0eachcarrying8%dividendatapremiumofRs.20pershare).Thepreferenceshare alongrviththepremiurratthe
IlEjle OI reoemDtt()n

III) clsPl has only one class ofPtefere value ofRs. I0 per share. The Rat is 8% p.a. sublect to availabil]ty ofdivisible prollls. The rederrptron renureofthese preferences shares is l0 years Shares can be prenraturely redee nre as deternrined by the board ofdirectors rvith a one n]onth notjce to theprel-erence shareholders The preference on such ternrs and conditions as r ed in accordance r.vith the applicable larv.

company, the preference shareholder shall be entitled lbr a preli:rential rieht ofreturn on the antount patd on shares
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35 A) Capital commitments

(Rs. in crore)

B) Other commitments

i' Entities in roads sectors have entered into various concession agreements with concessionaires for periods ranging from
17'5 years to 25 years from achievement of date of COD / appointed date as defined in the respective Concession agreements,
whereby these entities have committed to comply with certain key terms and conditions peftaining to construction of roads /
highways in accordance with the timelines and milestones as defined in the respective Concession agreements, CoD as per the
respective Concession agreements, construction, management, payment of fees (including revenue share), operation and
maintenance of roads / highways in accordance with the respective Concession agreements, performance of the obligations
under the respective financing agreements, non-transfer or change in ownership without the prior approval ofthe concessionaire
and transfer of the roads / highways projects on termination of relevant agreements or in case of defaults as defined in the
respective Concession agreements and utilisation of grants received as per the requirements of the respective concession
agreements.

ii' a) Entities in airports sector have entered into various agreements with Concessionaires for periods ranging from25years to
35 years extendable by another 20 to 30 years in certain cases on satisfaction of certain terms and conditions of respective
Concession agreements from dates as defined in the respective agreements for development, rehabilitation, expansion,
modernisation, operation and maintenance of various airpor-ts in and outside lndia. Pursuant to these agreements, these entities
have committed to comply with various terms of the respective agreements which pertains to payment of fees (including
revenue share)' development / expansion of Airports in accordance with the timelines and milestones as defined in the
respective agreements, achievement of COD as per the respective agreements, development, management, operation and
maintenance of airports in accordance with the respective agreements, performance of various obligations under the respective
financing agreements, non-transfer or change in ownership without the prior approval of respective airpoft concessionaires,
compliance with the applicable laws and permits as defined in the respective agreements, transfer of airporls on termination of
agreements or in case ofdefaults as defined in the respective agreements.

b) As per the terms of agreements with respective authorities, DIAL, GHIAL and GIAL are required to pay 45.99yo,4%o and

3699% of the revenue for an initial term of 30, 30 and 35 years which is furlher extendable by 30, 30 and 20 years respectively.

iii. One of the entities in airpofts sector is committed to pay every year a specified percent of previous year's gross revenue as

operator fee to the airport operator for the period specified in the Airport operator agreement.

Particulars March 31, 201[ March 31.2017
Estimated value of contracts remaining to b. .*@
not provided for (net ofadvances) 3,008.22 1,686.0i

j
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iv' During the year ended March 3l,2017,DIAL had entered into "call spread option" with various banks for hedging the
repayment of 6'125%o Senior secured notes (2026) of USD 522.60 million, which is repayable in october 2026. Under this
option, DIAL had purchased a call option for USD 522.60 million at a strike price of Rs. 66.85/USD and written a call option
for USD 522.60 million at a strike price of Rs. 101.86/USD at October 31,2026.As per terms of the agreements, DIAL is
required to pay premium of Rs. 1,241 .30 crore (starling from January 2017 to october 2026), which is payable on quarterly
basis' DIAL has paid Rs. 140.73 crore (March 3l,2ol7: Rs. 14.96 crore) towards premium till March 3l,20lg and remaining
balance of Rs. 1,100.57 crore is payable as at March 31, 2018 (March 31, 2017:Rs. 1,226.34 crore).

v' During the year ended March 31,2017, DIAL had entered into "Call spread option" with various banks for hedging the
repayment of part of 6.125olo Senior secured notes (2022) of USD 80 million (out of USD 2gg.75 million), which is repayable in
February 2022' tJnder this option' DIAL had purchased a call option for USD 80.00 million at a strike price of Rs. 6g.00/usD
and written a call option for USD 80 million at a strike price of Rs.85.00/USD at February, 2022. As per terms of the
agreements, DIAL is required to pay premium of Rs. 94.33 crore (starling from April 2017 to January 2022),'payable on
quarterly basis' DIAL has paid Rs. 18.46 crore towards premium till March 31,2018 and remaining balance of Rs. 75.g7 crore
is payable as at March 31, 2018 (March 31,2017: Rs. 94.33 crore).

Furlher during the current year, DIAL has purchased a call option for remaining USD 208.75 million at a strike price of Rs.
63'80/USD and written a call option for USD 208.75 million at a strike price of Rs.85.00ruSD at February, 2022. Asper terms
of the agreements, DIAL is required to pay premium of Rs. 198.34 crore (starting from January 201g to January 2022),payable
on quarterly basis. DIAL has paid Rs.0.26 crore towards premium till March 37,2018 and remaining balance of Rs. l9g.0g
crore is payable as at March 3l,20lB (March 31, 2017: Nil).

vi' The Group has entered into agreements with the lenders wherein the promoters of the Company and the GIL have
committed to hold at all times at least 51%o of the equity share capital of the Company / subsidiaries and not to sell, transf-er,
assign, dispose, pledge or create any security interest except pledge of shares to the respective lenders as covered in the
respective agreements with the lenders.

vii' The Group has provided commitment to fund the cost overruns over and above the estimated project cost or cash
deficiency, if any, to the lenders of its project stage subsidiaries, to the extent as defined in the agreements executed with the
respective lenders.

viii' ln respect of its equity investment in East Delhi Waste Processing Company Private Limited, DIAL along with SELC9
International Limited has to maintain minimum 51%o shareholding for a period of 2 years from the commissioning of the pro1ect
and thereafter minimum 26Yo shareholding for next l0 years. The project has been commissioned with effect from April 01,
20]17.

ix' GAL has entered into share purchase agreement dated February 02,2018 with Malaysia Airport Holdings Berhard (MAHB)

and MAHB (Mauritius) Private Lirnited to purchase ll% equity share capital of GHIAL. As on March 3l,2olg, these shares

are pending to be purchased / transferred. The long stop date for the said transaction is December l. 201 g.

x' Certain entities in power sector have entered into PPAs with customers, pursuant to which these entities have committed to
sell power of contracted capacity as defined in the respective PPAs, make available minimum power Load Factor (pLF) over the
period of tariff year as defined in the respective PPAs. The PPAs contain provision for disincentives and penalties in case of
cerlain defaults.

xi' Cerlain entities in power sector have entered into fuel supply agreements with suppliers whereby these entities have

comrnitted to purchase and suppliers have comnritted to sell contracted quantity of fuel for defined period as defined in the

respective fuel supply agreements, including the fuel obtained through the suppliers outside India.
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xii. One of the overseas entities in power sector and the Government of Indonesia (Government) have entered into coal sale

agreement for a defined period pursuant to which the entity is required to pay to the Govemment, amount equivalent to a

specified percentage of proceeds from sale of the coal by the entity. Further, based on a regulation of the Government, all
Companies holding mining rights have an obligation to pay an exploitation fee equivalent to certain percentage, ranging from

3% - 5% of sales, net of selling expenses and in certain cases, it is required to pay fixed payment (deadrent) to the Government

based on total area of land in accordance with the rates stipulated therein.

xiii. One ofthe overseas entities in power sector (as the buyer) and itsjoint ventures (as the seller) in power sector have entered

into a coal sale agreement for sale and purchase of coal, whereby the buyer entity and seller entity have committed to,

respectively, take delivery and to deliver, minimum specified percentage of the annual tonnage as specified in the agreement for
each delivery year, based on the agreed pricing mechanism. The buyer entity is also committed to use the coal for the agreed use,

provided that it shall not sell any coal to any person domiciled or incorporated in the country in which the seller entity operates.

xiv. One of the overseas entities in power sector has entered into a Cooperalion Agreement with a third party whereby the entity

is required to pay Land management fee from USD l/ton up to USD 4.75fton based on the provision stated in the agreement.

xv. One of the overseas entities in power sector has entered into a Road Maintenance Agreement with third parties wherby the
entity is required to maintain the road during the road usage period.

xvi. Certain entities in the power sector have entered into long term assured parts supply and maintenance agreements with sub-

contractors whereby these entities have committed to pay fixed charges in addition to variable charges based on operating
performance as defined in the agreements. The entities have also committed to pay incentives on attainment of certain

parameters by the sub-contractors.

xvii. GEL has provided commitment to fund the cost overruns over and above the estimated project cost or cash deficiency, if
any, to the lenders of its project stage subsidiaries, to the extent as defined in the agreements executed with the respective
lenders.

xviii. One of the entities in airports sector has entered into a tripafiite Master Service Agreement ('MSA') with the service

provider and the holding company of the service provider, whereby this entity is committed to pay annually to the service

provider if the receivable of the service provider falls short of subsistence level (as defined in the said MSA). Also in case of

delay in payment of dues from customers to the service provider, this entity would fund the deficit on a temporary basis till the

time the service provider collects the dues from aforementioned customers.

xix. ln respect of Group's inveslments in certain jointly controlled entities, other joint venture paftners have the first right of
refusal in case any ofthejoint venture partners intend to sell its stake subject to otherterms and conditions ofrespectivejoint
venture agreements.

xx. In respect of Group's investments in jointly controlled entities, the Croup cannot transfer / dispose its holding for a period as

specified in the respective joint venture agreements.

xxi. Shares of the certain joint ventures have been pledged as security towards loan facilities sanctioned to the Croup. Refer
Note 5 and 8.

't
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xxii' The Group has committed to provide continued financial support to some of the joint ventures and associates, to ensure

that these entities are able to meet their debts and liabilities as they fall due and they continue as going concems.

xxiii. Cerlain entities in power sector have made a commitment towards expenditure on corporate social responsibility activities

amounting to Rs. 54.52 crores (March 31,2017 : 50.64 crores).

xxiv. GEL has entered into a Share Subscription and Share Holding Agreement with Infrastructure Development Finance
Company Limited ('shareholder') in which it has committed to the shareholder that either the GIL directly, or indirectly (along
with the other group Companies as defined in the shareholding agreement) witl hold at least 5l%o of the paid up equity share
capital of GKEL.

xxv. Refer Note 37 for commitments relating to lease arrangements.

xxvi. Refer Note 34 for commitments arising out of converlible preference shares.

xxvii' Shares of the certain subsidiaries / joint ventures have been pledged as security towards loan facilities sanctioned to the
Group.

xxviii. Refer Note 5 for commitments relating to FCCB.

xxix. Refer Note 45 for commitments relating to rehabilitation and resettlement.
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36 (a) Contingent liabilities

Particulars March 31,2018

(Ks. in cro

March 31,2017

-orporate guarantees
6.913 7'l 5,868.67

Bank guarantees outstanding / Letter of cr"Oit outstanaing 2,169.55 1,90s.33

3

Fixed deposits pledged for loans taken by entelprises *h.r. k.y r*ug*iil
personnel and their relatives exercise significant influence 112 0C 112.0c
r r^eu uspu)rrs prsugcq ror loans taken by the Wertare Trust for GMR Grouo
Employees

5.0(
Claims against the Group not acknowleOged as d"bts 415.1 830.62
Matters relating to income tax under dispute 441.4'1 259 3
rvta[crs relarrng to tnclrect taxes dutv under disDute 392 4t 404.2(

8 Anears ofcumulative dividends on preference share issued by subsidiarv 76 17

Notes

I A search under section 132 of the lr Act was carried out at the premises of the GIL and ceftain entities of the Group by the income taxauthorities on october 11,2012, followed by search closure visits on various dates during the year ended March 31,2013 to check the
compliance with the provisions ofthe tr Act The income tax department has subsequenily sought certain information / clarifications. Block
assessments have been completed for some of the companies of the Group and they have received orders/demand fiom the Income TaxAuthorities for earlier years. The management of the Group has filed the appeals have been filed with the income tax department against the
disallowances made in the assessment orders. The management of the Group believes that it has complied with all the applicable provisions of
the IT Act with respect to its operations.

Others in addition to above

i) ReferNote45(iv)withregardtocontingentliabilityarisingoutofurilizationofpSF(SC)Fund

il) HMACPL has accn:ed customs officers' salaries stationed at air cargo terminal based on debit notes raised by the customs department onGHIAL GHIAL had filed a writ petition under Arlicle, 226 of the Constitution of India in the Hon'ble High Court of Judicature of Andhra
PradeshatHyderabadagainstthedemandraisedbycustomsdepartment DuringtheyearendedMarch3l,20l3,GHIALhadreceivedanorder
from the Hon'ble High Court ofJudicature ofAndhra Pradesh at Hyderabad (Single Judge), staling that the grounds on which the ler,y was
made by customs department were wholly unsustainable and accordingly, HMACPL had reversed the accrued cost of custom,s authorities
amounting to Rs. 14.02 crore for the period from March 23, 200g to March 3l-2012

Subsequent to the above order, the customs departnrent preferred an appeal against the same and on November 2, 2012, a bench oftwojudges of-
the Hon'ble High Court of Judicature of Andhra Pradesh at Hyderabad passed an order for interim suspension of the said order passlo by ttre
Hon'ble Single Judge The management, based on internal assessment, is confident that there is no financial impact ofthis interim suspension
order and accordingly, no further ad.iustment has been rnade to these consolidated financial statements ofthe Group.

iii) During the year ended March 31,2011, GPCL had received a refund of customs duty of Rs. 29 57 crorewhich was paid earlier towards the
import of the plant and machinery and which was passed on to Tarril Nadu Generation and Distribution Corporation Limited (.TANGEDCO')
(formerly known as Tamil Nadu Electricity Board'TNEB') as a pass through as per the terms of the ppA. During the year ended March 31,
2012' GPCL received an intimation for cancellation of the dut), draw back refund received earlier The Group does not foresee any liability in
respect of the same demand as a liability, if any, is to be recovered fiom TANGEDCo, the ultimate beneficiary of the refund received earlier
Based on an internal assessment, the management ofthe Group is ofthe view that no adjustments are required to be made to these consolidated
financial statentents ofthe Grouo

iv)DuringtheyearendedMarch3l,2015,inrespectofnratterdetaileclinnote48(i).TANGEDCOhasclaimedRs 2g500crorebeforeTamil
Nadu Electricity Regulatory comnlission ('TNERC') against GPCL Based on an internal assessment, the management of the Group is of the
view that no adjustments are required to be made to these consolidated finaucial slatements ofthe GrouD

v) ln respect of ongoing land acquisition process of KSPL, there are claims of diiferent types pending before various judicial forums such as,
disputes between claimants, or writ petitions filed against property acquisitions. of land etc As these cases are subject to ludicial verdicts which
are pending settlement and accordingly- no adiustmenrs have been nrade to these consolidated financial statements ot-the Group for the year
ended March 31,2018.

vi) During tbe year ended March 31,2014. the GIL along with its subsidiaries GIGL antl GloL enrered into a definitive agreenrenr (,SpA')
with Malaysia Airport MSC Sdn Bhd ('lhe buyer') for sale of tl'teir 40o/o equitv stake in jointly controlled entities Istanbul Sabiha Uluslararasi
Havalimani Yatirim Yapim Ve lsletme Anonim Sirketi ('lSG') and LGM Havalinrani lslernreleri Ve Turizm Anonjm sirketi (.LGM') for a sale
consideration of EURo 20 90 crore (Net 01' equitv gap ad.iuslnrent ol' Euro | 60 crore an<l subject to debt and other rvorkinq caDital
ad.iustments)
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Pursuant to the SPA entered with the buyer, the group had provided a guarantee ofEuro 4.50 Crore towards tax claims, as specified in the SpA
for a period till Mav 20t9

vii) The Director General of central Excise Intelligence, New Delhi has issued a Show cause Notice F. No.574lcEl4l/2014/lnv /pT.llll1327
dated october l0'2014 on DIAL, proposing a demand of sewice tax of Rs. 59.9t crore (excluding interest and penalty) considering Advance
Development Costs ('ADC') collected by DIAL from the Commercial Property Developers under the service tax category .Renting of
Immovable Property'

DIAL has replied to the Show Cause Notice referred to above with appropriate authority on April 17 , 2015

Subsequently, Additional Director ceneral (Adjudication), DGCEI has passed order No. l0/2016-5T dated May 02,2016 confirming demand
ofservice tax ofRs 54 3l crore and imposed equivalent penalty in respect ofthis matter.

However, based on an internal assessment and legal opinions obtained by DIAL in this regard, the management is of the view that service tax is
not leviable on ADC, as these are collected for development ofcertain infrastrucfure facilities for the common use and not ibr the exclusive use
of any developer. Service tax liability on ADC, if any arises, shall be adjusted from ADC collected by DIAL from the Commercial property
Developers.

DIAL has filed appeal before CESTAT, New Delhi on August 02,2016 against the order dated May 02,2016; and has disclosed the demand
along with penalty of Rs. 54 31 crore as contingent liability. Further, the management of the Group is of the view that no adjustments are
required to be made to these consolidated financial statements ofthe Group for the year ended March 31, 201g.

viii) The Commissioner of Service Tax, New Delhi had issued a demand of service tax aggregating to Rs. 2i5.53 crore (excluding interest and
penalty) on the collection ofDevelopment Fee ('DF') from passengers in airport for the period from March, 2009 to September, 2013 Out of
totaldemandofservicetaxofRs 2T553crore,servicetaxamountingtoRs. l30.lTcrorehasalreadybeenpaidbyDIALunderprotest

subsequently, the commissioner of Service Tax, has passed order No. c.No D IIVST/IV/I6/Hqrs/Adjn/DIAL/15312015/1g62-ST dared July
12,2016 conlirming the demand of service tax of Rs. 262 06 crore (after giving cum duty effect) and has appropriated amount deposited by
DIAL under protest towards service tax, and have further imposed a penalty of Rs. 13 I 89 crore in respect of this matter.

However, based on an inlernal assessDent and legal views obtained by DIAL in this regard, the management is ofthe view that service tax is not
leviable on DF, as the DF is a statutory le'uy and is meant to bridge financing gap funding for the a'irport project The collection of DF fronr
passengers is not in lieu of provision of any service to them Fufiher, there is no service provider and service recipient relationship between the
DIAL and the passengers paying DF Service tax liability, if any arises on DF, shall be decided by AERA, keeping in view the final
pronouncernent of the matter

DIAL has filed an appeal against the order before CESTAT, New Delhi on October 10,2016 and; has disclosed the demand atong with penalty
ofRs l3l89croreascontjngentliabilityFurther,themanagementofDIALisoftheviewthatnoadjustmentsarerequiredtobemadetothese
consolidated tlnancial stateruents

ix) Refer note 3 I with regard to contingent liability ofthe Group on behalfofdiscontinued operations

x) Reler note 34 for details of contingent liabilities on CCPS A issued by GAL.

i) The management of the Croup believes that the ultimate outcome of the above matters will not have anv material adverse effect on the
Group's consolidated financjal position and result ofoperations

ii) Refer Note 42(b) witlr regard to corporate guarantee provided by the Group on behalfofjoint ventures

iii) Entry Tax and penalty demand of GKEL of Rs. 184 07 crores (March 31, 2017 : Rs.l84 07 crores; was raised by the Additional
Cotrnlissioner Cuttack. for non pavntent of entry tax on imported plant and machineries from outside India as per Orissa Entry Tax Act. | 999
GKEL has deposited Rs 28 00 crores (March 3l.20ll : Rs.28 00 crores) under protest and had filed appeal before the appellale authorilies and
specraf leave petition before Hon'ble Supreme Court On April 7,2017 the Hon'ble Supreme Court has passed an Order in lavour of the
Conturercial tax departnrent by giving liberty to the petitioner to review their writ petition and making proper application to the High Court
Further. GKEL has illed rvrit petition wilh tbe Hon'ble High Court, Odisha .The management of the Group believes that the demand is not
tenable and sard litigation rvill not have any irnpact on the consolidated financial statemeilts ofthe Group
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iv) A search under seotion 132 of the IT Act was carried out at the premises of the GEL and certain entities of the GEL Group by the income
tax authorities on october | 1 , 2012, followed by search closure visits on various rlates during the year ended Marcb 31, 2013 to check rne
compliance with the provisions of the IT Act The income tax department has subsequently sought cefiain information / clarifications. During
the year ended March 31,2015 and March 31,2016, block assessments have been completed for some of the companies of the Group and
appeals have been filed with the income tax department against the disallowances made in the assessment orders The management of the Group
believes that it has complied with all the applicable provisions ofthe IT Act with respect to rts operations.

Others in addition to above:
i) During the year ended March 31,2012, GEL received an intimation from the Chief Electrical Inspectorate, Govemment of Andhra pradesh
('GoAP'),wherebyGoAPhaddemandedelectricitydutyongenerationandsaleofelectricalenergyamountingroRs. 

ll.06crorescalculatedat
the rate of six paise for each electricity unit generated by GEL for the period from June 20 I 0 to December 20 I L
Based on an internal assessment and a legal opinion obtained by GEL, the management of the Group is confident that the provisions of
Electricity Duty Act and Rules, 1939 in respect of payment of electricity duty are not applicable to GEL and accordingly, electricity dutyliability ofRs' 14.61 crores for the period June 2010 to March 31,2018 has been considered as a contingent liability and accordingly no
adjustments have been made in these consolidated financial statements ofthe Group for the year ended March 31, 20tg.

ii) GEL had entered into a Power Purchase Agreements ('PPAs') with Kamataka Power Transmission Corporation Limited for supply of
energyduringtheperiodDecember15,lggTtoJulyT,200s GELhadaFuelsupplyAgreement('FSA')withafuel suppliertowardspurchase
of Naptha for generation of electricity during the aforementioned period. The FSA provided for payment of liquidated damages to the fuel
supplier in the event there was a shortfall in the purchase ofthe annual guaranteed quuntity.
During the year ended Mmch 31, 2013, GEL received a demand towards liquidated damages amounting to Rs. 296.16 crores along with an
interest ofRs. 5.55 crores towards failure ofGEL to purchase the annual guaranteed quantity for the period from November 21,2001 to June 6,
2008 under the erstwhile FSA. GEL had disputed the demand from the supplier towards the aferementioned damases.

Durlng the year ended March 31, 2U14, tbe luet supplter had tiled a petrtlon In the Hon'ble Hlgh court ot Karnataka seeKlng appolntment ot a
sole arbitrator for the resolution ofthe dispute. GEL filed its reply and as per the High court order, arbitrators have been appointed During the
year ended March 31, 2015, the fuel supplier has submitted its statement of claim amounting toRs.272.64 crores (after adjusting dues of Rs.
29.08 crores payable to GEL) towards liquidated damages and interest at the rate of 15%o p.a. on such liquidated damages. Further, GEL has
filed its statement ofdefense and counter claim amounting to Rs 35.96 crores along with interest at the rate of l8% p a. During the year ended
March 31, 2017,rhe Arbitration Tribunal issued its arbitral award directing the fuel supplier to pay Rs.32 2l crores to GEL towards its counter
claim filed by GEL and rejected the claims of the fuel supplier. Subsequently, the fuel supplier filed an appeal before the District Civil Court of
Bangalore for setting aside the entire arbitration award. The fuel supplier has also filed an interim application under Section 36 of the
Arbitration and Conciliation Act for grant ofinterim stay on execution ofthe Arbitration award.

The District City Civil Court vide its order issued the stay order on the operation of the Arbitration Award on fumishing of a bank guarantee by
the fuel supplier equivalent to 50% ofcounter claim amount. Fuel supplier has filed writ petition before Kamataka High Court for setting aside
theinterimstayorderdatedMarch04,20lT.Kamatakahighcourthasdismissedtheobjectionpetition GELhasfiledexecutionpetitionbefore
Delhi High Court for execution of Arbjtral award, the outcome of which is awaited Fuel supplier has filed an appeal before Bangalore High
court against the order passed by the District Civil Court, the outcome ofwhich is awaited. The final outcome ofthe case is pending conclusion.
However based on its intemal assessment and a legat opinion, the management of the Group is confident that the claim of the fuel supplier
towards such liquidated damages is not tenable and accordingly no adiustments have been made to the consolidated financial statements ofthe
Group and the claim from the fuel supplier has been considered as a contingent liability.

iii) During the year ended March 31,2012, GVPGL, a subsidiary of GEL, had received a demand of Rs 48-21 cores for the period September
2006 to November 20t 1 from the ChiefElectrical Inspectorate, GoAP, whereby CoAP has imposed electricity duty on generation and sale of
electrical energy calculated at the rate ofsix paise for each electricity unit generated by GVPGL since commencement ofcommercial operations
Based on an internal assessment and an expert opinion, the management ofthe Group is confident that the provisions ofElectricity Duty Act
andRules. l939inrespectofpaymentofelectricitydutyarenotapplicabletoGVPGL Accordingly,elecrricitydutyliabilityofRs.63 l0crores
for the period September 2006 to March 2018 has been considered as a contingent liabilrtv
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iv) DuringtheyearendedMarch3t,20l0,GVPGLwasgrantedarefundofcustomsdutyofRs.6g.l0croreswhichwaspaidearliertowards
the impoft ofplant and machinery Subsequently, GVPGL received a refund ofRs. 59.1 I crores.

a' During the year ended March 31, 2011, GVPGL received an intimation from the Office of the Joint Director General of Foreign Trade('DGFT') for cancellation ofduty drawback refund order received in 2009-t0 to the extent ofRs. 9.99 crore.

b' DuringtheyearendedMarch3l,2012,GVPGLreceivedafurtherintimationfromDGFTforcancellationofdutydrawbackrefundorderof
Rs 5911 crores received in 2009-10, thereby seeking refund ofthe amount that it received earlier. Based on an expert,s opinion the
management is confident that the duty drawback refund granted earlier was appropriate and that the cancellation ofthe duty drawback refund is
not tenable Accordingly, no adjustment has been made with regard to the refund ofRs. 59.11 crores already received by G\?GL in the
consolidated financial statements of the Group.

c GVPGLhasfiledawritpetitionwiththeHon'bleHighCourtofDelhiinNovember20ll.DuringtheyearendedMarch3l,20l5,thematter
has been transferred to Hon'ble Supreme Court of lndia and will be concluded along with other sim'ilar cases and is pending finalization as at
March 31, 2018' GVPGL considers Rs 59.l I crores as govemment grant received and recognises the same as income on a straight line basis in
the Statement ofprofit and loss over the concession period.

v) GKEL had appointed sEPCo Electric Power construction Corporation (SEPCO) as the engineering, procurement and construction
contractor for the power project pursuant to an international competitive bidding process and execute the EpC Contract capturing the entire
scope ofworks for the project and other arrangement. GKEL has invoked the bank guarantees ofits EpC contractors amounting to Rs. 579.30
crores on November 12, 2014 for liquidated damages, non-payment of debit notes issued by the GKEL and outstanding 1iabilities to sub-
contractors of EPC contractor. The EPC contractors have filed a claim approximately of Rs. 1,967 00 crores and the matter is presently under
arbitration in Singapore Intemational Arbitration Counsel. GKEL has also filed its reply to the statement of claims and have filed counter claims
approximating of Rs.1,660'03 crores Based on internal assessments and an extemal legat opinion, the management of the Group believes that
the claim ofthe EPC contractor is not tenable and the said litigation will not have any impact on the consolidated financial statements ofthe
Group.

vi) GKEL has entered into a Bulk Power Transmission Agreement with Power Grid Colporation of India Limited (,pGCIL,) for availing Long
Term Access ('LTA') for inter-state transmission of 800MW of power from its three units of generating station on long tenn basis. During the
earlier year, one of the unit was subsequently connected with the Odisha State Transmission System thereby resulting in the reduction rn
connectivity upto 647 MW considering auxiliary consumption. PGCIL failed to make necessary conections in the LTA/BpTA on account of
reduction in connectivity but allocation remain unchanged to GKEL despite repeated requests to modify the same thus making GKEL liable for
relinquishment charges. GKEL has filed petition before CERC seeking relief on relinquishment chargeswhich was rejected by CERC in it order
dated December 08'2017- Further GKEL has filed petition before APTEL against the impunged CERC. GKEL till date has not received any
demand for monthly payments on the relinquished capacity nor for relinquishment charges as per the information available by GKEL. The
management ofthe Group is ofthe opinion that the grant ofLTOA is beyond the generation capacity ofthe plant and requirement ofreductron
of LTOA was not on GKEL's own accord but was forced due to reasons attributable to implementing agenciei. GKEL is hopeful of getting relief
as requested in his petition before APTEL and does not forseen any financial implication on such relinquishment that requires any adjustments
on the consolidated financial statements ofthe Grouu

vii) GKEL has been made a parly to various litigation in relation to land acquired from Orissa Industrial Development Corporation (IDCO) for
its power project. The compensation award has already been deposited with the Government and the possession ofall these lands have already
been handed over to GKEL In all these matters as of now there are no adverse interim orders. The management of the Group believes that the
petition filed are not tenable and does not have any adverse impact on the consolidated financial statements.

viii) State of Himachal Pradesh has filed claim against GBHHPL in District court of Himachal Pradesh to impose 1% additional free power
based on New Hydro Power Policy, 2008.

ix) ln case of GBHHPL, Mr Mangani Ram and Vinod Kurnar (Petitioners) have filed a petition with Hon'ble Supreme Court challenging the
grant ofenvironmental clearance, approval for diversion ofForest land for shifting ofproject site from right to left bank ofriver Ravi.



GMR Enterprises Private Limited
Notes to the consolidated Financiar for the year ended 31st March. 2o1g

4 DIAL was entitled to custom duty credit scrip under Served from India Scheme (SFIS) of Foreign Trade policy rssued by Govemment of Indr'a
Under the terms ofSFIS, service providers are entitled to custom duty credit scrip as a percentage offoreign exchange earned by DIAL that can
be utilized for payment of import duty. Till March 31, 2014, DIAL had cumulatively utilized custom duty credit scrip amount;ng to Rs g9.60
crore in lieu ofpayment ofimport duty in respect ofimport offixed assets (including capital work in progress) and thus, recorded fixed assets
(including capital work in progress) imported, at net amount (after excluding the amount of custom duty paid by usrng these scrips

The Expert Advisory Committee ('EAC') of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of lndia, pursuant to a specific application by DIAL in this
regard, has claritled vide its opinion viz. TDIEAC/1484i t 3 dated November lg, 2013 that such scrips should be recognised and accounted as
grant related to revenue under erstwhile Accounting Standard I 2 - Accounting for Government Grants

Accordingly, as allowed under para l5 of erstwhile Accounting Standard 12, DIAL had adjusted (netted off) Rs 80.39 crore, [being the
difference between the value of duty credit scrips amounting to Rs. 89.60 crore and the depreciation amounting to Rs. 9.2 | crore that ought to
have been charged on such assets] against certain expenditure, which in its view are related to obtaining such custom duty credit scrip
entitlementsandhaddisclosedthesameaspriorperioditems(net)inthefinancialstatementsfortheyearendedMarch 3l.2Ol4

However, Airport Authority oflndia ('AAI') has expressed different view on this and argued that amount utilized under SFIS should be treated
as revenue and accordingly revenue share on amount of Rs 89 60 crore is payable to AAI. Enforcing their view, AAI has written letter to ICICI
bank on .luly 06, 2015 instructing bank to remit Rs 41.21 crore from Receivable Escrow Account of DIAL as revenue share to AAI,s bank
account as per terms ofthe escrow agreement.

DIAL had filed a writ petition against the AAI's letter in Hon'ble Delhi High Court on July 10,2015 disputing tbe demand and the lerter
unilaterally issued by AAI and prayed for quashing of demand by AAI. Court has granted the interim relief and disposed with a direction to
DIAL to seek remedy under the provisions of Arbitration law Accordingly, D|AL filed a petition under section 9 of the Arbitration and
Conciliation Act seeking interim restraint to AAI from enforcing its demand which was granted by the court in favour of DIAL Both the parties
have appointed their arbitrators.

Arbitration tribunal in its hearing dated October 5,2017 has passed the order framing the issues after hearing the contention ofboth the parties
The tlext date of hearing is yet to be notified by the Tribunal. Further, the management of the Group is of the view that no adjustrnents are
requrred to be made to these consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended March 3 I . 20 I g

x) GWELissubjecttolegal proceedingsandclaimsrelatingtoacquisitionoflandandothermattersforthepurposeofitsprojectandisparty
to litigations which have arisen in the ordinary course ofbusiness. The GWEL's management based on legal advice obtained does not reasonably
expect that tlrese legal actions, when ultimately concluded and determined, will have material and adverse effect on the comDanv,s ilnancial
posltlon

xi) GCEL,anerstwhilesubsidiary,hasexperiencedcertaindelaysandincurredcostoverrunsinthecompletionoftheprojectincludingreceipt
ofadditional claimsfromtheEPCcontractors TheclaimsofthekeyEPCcontractorof USDl4360millions,DoosanpowerSystenrslndia
Private Limited ('DPS') is under arbitration in the Singapore Intemational Arbitration Centre ('SIAC') Based on an internal assessment and
legal opinion, the managenent is confident that it has strong defense for the claims raised by the EPC contractor and believes lhat the claims are
not tenable in law and accordingly no adiustments have been made in the consolidated financial statements ofthe GrouD



GMR Enterprises Private Ltrl
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year enrled March 3l.20rg

37. Leases

a. Finance Lease

The Group has ts (as lessee) in respect ofcenain assetsnon-cancellabl oflease rentals in the event ofchanses
exceptional/ re ents.

for periods of3 to 5 years.

in taxes, ifany, leviable on

The lease has a primary period, which is
the lease rentals. There are no

Pa rticulars
Rs. In

Minimum Lease
Pavment

Present Value of
Minimum Lease

Minimum Lease
Payment

Present Value of
Minimum Lease

As at March 31.2018 As at March 31,2017
002 0.02 0.02 0.02

0.00 0.00

0.02 0.02 0.02 0.02
-0.00 0.00

ayrnenls | (tv, - (vl I 0.02 0.02 0.02

b. Operating Leases

The Group has entered into certain cancellable operating lease agreements mainly for office premises and hiring equipments and certain non-cancellable operatinglease agreements towards office premises and hiring office equipments. The lease rentals received during the yJar (included in note 2l ) and charged during theyear and the maximum obligation on the long term non-cancellable operating lease payable as per the agreements are as follows:

Particula rs
Year Ended

March 31,2018
Rs. In Crore

Year Enrled
March 31,2017

Rs. In Crore

reases 88.40 87.48

to. lJ I l.6ly ur rx4 f lul reases:

40.62 39.64
roLrt Llt4ll tlvg YEaIS 96.11 89.46

183.63 209.49



GMR Enterprises Privirte Limited
Notes to consolidrrted financi:rl statements for the year ended March 31, 201g

38. Discloure in terms of of AS - 7 : Construction Contracts

(Rs. in crore)
Particulars March 31. 2018 March 31,2A\7
l.Contract revenue recognised during the year 906.95 386.01

2.312.34

3u2

2.Aggregare cost incurrecl and recognised profits (net oflosses) up to reporting date for contracts in
progress

3,215.01

3.Arnount of customer advances outstanding for contracts in progress 3r'7.02
4.Retention money due from customers for contracts in progress '78.34 10.89
S.Gross alnount due from customers for conlract tvork as an assel s10.21 3tii.78

39. Negative Grant

Name of the subsidiary
Date of Concession

Agreement
Total Negrrtivc

Grant Repayment Details
Payable as at

Mrrrch 31,2018 March 31,2017

GACEPL Novenrber 16,2005 174.75 
Un"Qual yearly instalhnents

over 2 vears
66.4r 66.41

In accordance rvith the terms of the concession agreement entered into rvith NHAI by GACEPL dated Novemb er 16,2005, GACEPL has an
obligation to pay an arnount of Rs. 174.75 crore by way of Negative Grant to NHAI. GACEPL has paid an amount of Rs. 10g.34 crore and
tlre balance anount of Rs. 66.41 crore (March 3I, 201'/: Rs. 66.41 crore) has been disclosed as negative grant under .Long lerm
borrowings' in these consolidated financial statements of the Group. Refer note 45 regardilg the details of arbitration pursuant to which the
arbitration tribunal has stayed the payment of negative grant of GACEpL.

40. Informrrtion on.Tointlv cnnfrnlled pntifies rs nar Aq - t7Informirtion on Jointly controlled entities as per AS - 27

Name of Jointly Controlled Entities Countr-r'of
Incorporirtion

(directly or Indirectly)
March 31,2018 March 37"2017

ReI "". Lidoriei'sia 29.i6%'"- '--'' 29'..76%*-" Indiinesia * *" 2g"T3u/o *" 2g.4irl;. *
KIM " Iiidonbsia 30 000/- * -- 3.0.00y"

l'I9Ey"q--'.-,:_:;-":---."-:-"--'.Inrl'one]ii;--*"-*30.00u/-*""*-^***-T6.[$/;

KCP .fiidoneisia 
lO 00o:., 

*- "--30-.6U%
TiEr r*-DDv Indorieiia 30.00% - *30.00%
BHI!"A Indonbsia.*- '* 30.00"% - 3U00%*"'BNP Lidonesia - :10.00% '"" - "30.0020-
TDPT T'DDU htdonebia 30.00,%-* 

*' - -*3-0:00%

DTDe A '.".-::."'."......r rDor-' Indonesi.i. 3O00r/ - ' -30.00%
PTWR ""* tndonesia ""-" - 30.00u/o 3.0.00y;
GEMSCR
APFT..* 

*"*" Singapor'e 30.00% 30.00%

LA-QS',lrYA

TFS' r,.,r:^ ;;';;,'';' India 24 8'7t% 21.g106
DATF* India" l6'.1'1\yo-' I6.l7ohCDCTM Indiu l(> l7o l6.li,yo

rD_DU Indonesia 30.00,%-* 
*' - -*3-0:00%

TK'S- -- hrdonedih Zl:00i6/;-"- '^2t.An%
FidrJAr Iidoresia 30.00% " 

30.00% 
.

PTGEI Indiiiresia -" 30.00yo 30.00%""?TEMS*** ""Tndriffi.(ia ""'- *30.0N/;*- 
30,30%-"-

WAISL" Ildia * 16.11"1; l6:.t1%TIM liidia .11.03(% 31.03%CJV--''
.MCAC .. Turkei; -i0.00%.* .*-50.00%

MGCIV-_- 
philippincs i0.00% "- 

40.00%

ArrDpL Prrirrpp'rcs is33i| -;333il:
(lMI ptrilippines .l0 00y; '.* 

10.00%,
SIECL

stakc bv GHIAL

\.:'f



GMR Enterprises Pvt. Ltd
Notes to the consolidaled linancial statenenls for the year ended Marclr 31.201g

4l (a) Derivative InstruDents

(a) In case of DIAL' foreign exchange call spread options nreasured at fair value tkough md designated as herJging instmen! in cashflow hedgesto hedge rhe USD INR conversion rate volati lity wtth relerence to the cash outflows on settlerients of ils bonowings designated in uSD.

The fairvalue offoreign exchange call spread option varies wilh thee changes in foreigr exchange rates md repalment offutue premium

I spread oPtions lhe USD spot rate is below the usD call option strike price and hence not covered rn hedge relationship in respect ofprospective testi to b€ effective. As a result.
requiring recogn s.

For call spread options ofRs 208 75 million' t rate is above the uSD call option strike price Accordingly an mout ofRs o 49 rores hm been rereasedfrom cash flow hedge reserve to special purpose nt to neutrallze
the imoact ofdeorecjation on exchanse loss cao statement oforofit and Ioss

fr,ilY;I"lil ;:'"1i:::il?J:j ;'J:ffij"ffJ:":J: hence nor covered in hedge rerationship in respecr or hedge instmenrs.However, prospecriye

the orevious vear fo, n"in" o, lorraa ,naluded in soecial omos 
equmg recognition thhrough profit or loss. There was no reclassificalion to profit or loss dwing

h Cme of GHIAL, Foreign cuency
to convert floating rate of inkrest in
cwent quarter, the Company has is
Stock Exchmge on October 27, 20
July 01, 2010.

in cash flow hedges of the strem of USD cash ou! flows on interest coupon and principal
on (INR 2,239.35 crore) (March 31,2017: Nil). CCS involve interestrute paym€nts on the two
Palrenls of two cmencies. CHIAL pays [ixed interest on the INR notionaj as de temrrned jn

swap and rece ives the USD Notional of the CCS. Critical tems of the swap confiact (tenor and
vely cover GHIAL lrom risk of movement in the foreigr cuency.

vemenr rn rhe i.e the ccS each other to ollset thethe said Hed a result no
released fron ent ot profit hrough prolit and Joss

Loss. losses on resLal€nrent of

IncaseofGIL,foreignexchangeforardcontractSaIe
are enlered into for period consi slent with foreign cunency exposwe of the underlying trmsacli ns, general Jy for a period of one year.

(b)

(c)

March 31.2018 March 31J017
031 l5

(d) b case ofDDFS, derivative outstanding as at the reponing date

Cross currency swap
Currency As al

March 31. 2018
As al

March 31,2017

USD I 4.41 5 661 2 1.39().98 l
INR 743.995.589 ,r 03.993_455

41 (b) UnJredged foreign currency elposure for nrorrctlry itens is as lbllows:

The folJowing table demonstratcs the unledged exposure in USD exchange rate as at lr4arch 31, 201 tj and N4arch 31,2017
for all other cunencies is not matenal

The Group's exposue to foreigr cunency changes

Pafiiculars

n
March 31, 2018 March 31,2017

Assets Liabilities Assets Liabililies
rorergn crfiency call spread optjons designated as hedging intro]ents 097 (42 58)

Currency Uarch Jl. 201 M:rrch Jl.20l?
I rade receivables USD 319

USD 402 491
Propertyplantandequipment,capjtalworkinprogress-otherintangrbles goodrvilLandintangibJeunderrleveJopment USD 13 30 12 08

USD 5E 07 57 11

USD 01 078
JSD 39l) r{ 95
USD (81 60, l15
USD 18 691 886
USD t5 3(l 48 12
INR (999 68 (i.I 6E 8-\



GMR ENTERPRISES PRTVATE LITVTITED
Notes to the consolidated financiar statements for the year ended March 31, 2o1g

42. Related party transactions
a. Names of the related and of relatior

Name of the parties
Entities having substantial interest /
enterpnses exercising significant idluence over the
subsidiaries or jointly controllecl entities or associates

Airports AutJrority of India ( AAI)
Pacifrc Flight Training Sdn Bhd ('APFISB)

ittal India Limited (AIL)
Bharat Petloleum Corporation Limited (BpCL)
Brindaban Man Pradhang
Bird World Wide Flight Services India pr.ivate Linitecl (BWWFSIPL)
Canbata Aviation Private Limited (CApL)
Celebi Ground Handling Delhi private Limitecl (CELEBI GHDPL)

lebi Hava Serwisis A.S. (CHSAS)
Fraport AG Frankfurt Airport Serrr'ices Worldwicle (FAG)

MR Institute of Technology (GMRIT)

rnment ofAndhra Pradesh (GoAp)
Govemment of Telangana (GoT)

Greenwich Investments Limited {GRIL)
Investment and Infrastructure fund (IIF)
Indian Oil Corporation Limited (IOCL)
Kakinada Infrastructure Holdings private Limited ( KIHPL)
Lanco Group Limited (LGL)
l,aqshya Event IP Private Limited (LEIPL)
Limak Insaat San. Ve Ticaret A.S. (LISVD
Laqshya Media Private Limited (LMpL)
M/S G.S.Atwal & Co.

Malaysia Airport Holding Berhad (MAHB)
Malaysia Airport (Labuan) private Limited (MALPL)
Malaysia Airports Consultancy Services SDN Bhd (MACS)
Malaysian Aerospace Engineering Sdn. Bhd. [MAE)

ian Airline System Bhd. (MAS)
MAMPL
Megawide Construction Corporation (MCC)
Mehment Senk Aipsoy (MSA)

Aviation Bobba (Bangalore) private Limited (MABBpL)
Menzies Aviation Cargo (Hyderabad) Linited (MACHL)
Menzies Aviation India Pr.ivate Limited (MAIPL)
Menzies Aviation PLC (UK) (MAPUK)
Menzies Bobba Ground Handling Services private Limited (MBGHSpL)
Macquarie SBI Infrastructure IDvestments pTE Liuitecl {MSIF)
NAPC Limited (NAPC)

Navabharat Power Private Limitecl (NBppL)
Nepal Electricity Authority (NEA)

Limited (oL)
ieutal Structules Engineers private Linited {OSEPL)

riertal Tollways Private Limited (OTPL)

Petronas International Cor-por-ation Limited (PICL)
PT Dian Swastatika Sentosa Tbk (pT Dian)
PT Sinar Mas Cakrawala
Reliance Industries Limitecl [RIL)
Rivenide Park Trading 164 (Pry) Limited (RpTL)
Rushil Construction (India) private Li:litecl
Somelset India Fuld ( SIF)
Sterlite Ener'gv Limited (SEL)

Tenega Parking Services (lndia) pr-ivate Limitecl (TpSIpl,)
IrurovaLive Metlia Liuited (TIML)

Finance Lirnited (TFL)

I Foods Services (Delhi) private Limitecl (TFSDPL)
Comunications Solutions Limited (TVSCSL)

S Sundram Ivengar & Sons linited
SLSL

Developmenr India Private Limit€d (LTEDIPL)

Ilfra-Holcl ir gs (lnd ia) Private Linitecl (VlHIpL)
Wiplo Liuitecl (WL)

Welfat'e 'l'mst of GMR Gr-onp Eultlovces ( WTGGE)
YL
Nisnitha Rcal Estates pr.ivate Linitecl(N



GMR ENTERPRISES PRrVATE LIMITED
Notes to the consolidated frnancial statements for the year ended March 31. 2org

42. Related party transactions
a. Names of the related
S.No Relationship Nama
(ii) Entities where GEpL/GIL key management personlel

and their relatives exercise significant inlluence GMR Family Fund Trust
GMR Infi'aveltures LLp
GMR Varalakshrni DAV public School (cVDpS)
GMR Varalakshni Founclation (GVF)
Welfare Trust of GMR Infra Euployees (GWT)
National SEZ Infr-a Serwices pvt Ltcl ( NSEZ)
Polygon

Parampara FamilJ, Business institute (PFBI)
rr r)

rave taken place)
GEOKNO India private Limired (GEOKNO)

l(e ted (APFT)*

merly known as pT Bumi Anugerah

BA)

ment India private Limited (CDCTM)

imited (DAFF)

d (DASPL)

erly
knovm as GEMS Coal Resources pte Limited) (GEMSCR)
GMCAC

PT Karya Cemerlang Persada (KCp)
PT Kuansing Inti Makmur (KJM)
Megawide - GISPL Construction Joint Venture (MGCJV)
NML
PT Golden Energy Mines Tbk (PT' Gems)

PT Roundhill Capital hdonesia (RCI)
Rampia Coal Mine and Energy private Limited (RCMEPL)
PT Tanjung Belit Bara Utama (TBBU)
Travel Food Services (Delhi Teminal 3) private Limited (TFS)
TIM Delhi Airpofl Advertising privrte Limited (TIM)
PT Trisula Kencana Sakti (TKS)

Wipro Airporl IT Senices Limiled (UTAISL)
Iv) Associates trast Dellx Waste Processirg Compary private Linitecl (EDWPCPL)

Jadcherla Expresswavs Plivate Linitecl (JEPL) "*
GMR Chhattisgarh Energv Limited (GCEL) formerly (ccmpl-)
GMR Rajahmundrv Energ-v Limited (GREL)
Ulundurpet Expresswavs private Limited (LIEPL)

GMR OSE Hunmnd Hosnel Hiohrvavs Prirnre T i-ir.,t /^^qE|::||::l.|Dr \**
(vi) r{ey Dtanagement per-sonnel and their relatives vlr. K.slemannal'avalta ( Chief Financial Officer)

Mr. Ravi Majeti ( Manager)

Secl.etarv)

I\PFT became subsidiary due to increase in stake by GHIAL rv e f October 09, 2017
Consequent lo disposal ofstakes in GOSEHHHPL, the company has ceased to be a subsidiarl from March 26- 2016



GMR ENTERPRISES PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to the coasolidated financiar statements for the year ended March 31, 2org

b. Summary oftransactions with the above related parHes are as foilows:

(Rs.
Nature of Transaction/Eutity

lnc
March 31,

20L8
March 31,

2017

Loans/ advances repaid by
- Jointly controlled entities

Laqshya
- Assoctates

GOSEHHHPL

JEPL

GCHEPL

UEPL

- Entities where GEPL/GIL key management personnel a'd their relatives exercise
significant influence

GPFT

National SEZ
GIVLLP

-Companies under common control
Geokno

- GEPL/GIL Key management personnel and their relatives
Mrs. B. Ramadevi

0.o0

47 35

85 83

4.56

14.30

9.57
3.90
0.11

2.50

o.77

4.50
425.60

16.40

4.OO

U. I5

Loans/ advances given to
- Entities where GEPL/GIL key management personnel
significant influence

GFFT

NSEZ
- Associates

WTGGE

Companies under common control
Geokno

and their relatives exercise

2.42
6.50

13.89

1.O0

4.00

69.32

Loans repaid
- Entities having substantial interest / enterprises exercising significant influence over
the subsidiaries orjointly controlled entities or assoclates

MAIPL

LMPL

Wipro Limited

0.10
2.17
1.04

Liability written back
- Entities having substantial interest / enterprises exercising significant influence over
the subsidiaries orjointly controlled entities or assoclates

MAE c'1.'1

Sale of fixed assets
- Assoc|ates

GCHEPL

- Entities having substantial interest / enterprises exercising significant influence over
the subsidiaries orjointly controlled entities or assoctares

LMPL

0. 15

0.01



GMR ENTERPRISES PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to the consolidated frnauciar statements for the year ended March 3r, 2org

b' summary of transactions with the above related pardes are as follows:

Rs.
Nature of Transacfi on/ Entity

hrrchase of fixed assets/Senrices
- Entities having substantial interest / enterprises exercising significant influence over
the subsidiaries orjointly controlled entities or associates

WL

1D

March 31,
2018

March 31,
2017

12.28

- Entities where GEPL/GIL key management personnel and their relatives exercrse
significant influence

GFFT

- Jointly controlled entities
DAFF

l"aqshya
TFS

DASPL

CDCTM

Deposlts given
- GEPL/GIL Key management personnel and their relatives

Mrs. B. Ramadevi
Mr Madhva Bhimacharya Terdal

Mrs. G,Varalakshmi

4.34
0.04
t.95

0.39

7.87
0.o1

0.03
o.15
0.06

Deposit refund recelved
- Entities where GEPL/GIL key management personnel and their relatives exercrse
significant influence

GFFT
1.25

Equity dividend paiil by subsidiaries / jointly controlled eatities
- Jointly controlled entities

TIM

DAFF

DASPL

- Entities having substantial interest / enterprises exercising significant influence over
the subsidiaries orjointly controlled entities or associates

Celeebi Hava Servisis A.S. (CHSAS)

YL

GoT

AAI

FAG

MACHL

1.08
13.89
19.66
61-O7

15.92
20.38

4.61
10.41

r.25

13.81

l. l0
Sub-contracting Expenses
- Entities having substantial interest / enterprises exercising significant influence over
the subsidiaries orjointly controlled entities or assoclares

OSEPL 3.77 u.5z+

Revenue from operations
- Entities having substantial interest / enterprises exercising significant influence over
the subsidiaries orjointly controlled entities or associates

AAI

LMPL

TIML

- Entities where GEPL/GIL key management personnel and their reratives exercise
significant influence

GVF

Grandhi Kiran Kumar
GFFT

3.22
4.84

i0.30

0.3s
0.o0
0.1 1

o.24
0.09

3.12
5.O2

4.67

r.44
o.15
0.16

la
a;*l
I'v

\9ry-ie +y'



GMR ENTERPRISES PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2o1g

b. summary of transactions with the above rerated parties are as fo[ows;

Nature

control

of Transaction/Entity
Companies under common
Geokno

- Associates
JEPL
GCHEPL

GREL

GOSEHHHPL
UEPL

- Jointly controlled entities
Laqshya
TIM

PT GEMS
DAFF

CDCTM

TFS

DASPL

GMCAC

WAISL
APFT

lnc

RIV)

March 31
2018

March 31,
20t7

0.37

4.26
1.86

79.46
85.64

t24.35
13.64

I40.20
1? ?r

4.17
206.00

33.49

0.50

2.12
4.97
I .51

2.63
I 1.51

17.77
70.15
22.aO

99.05
10.22
? ?1

2I2.O8

o.82

Compaaies under common control
GEONKO

o.o2

Fees received for sergices rendered
- Entities having substantial interest / enterprises exercising significant influence over
the subsidiaries orjointly controlled entities or associates

CELEBI GHDPL
BWWFSIPL

CAPL

3.64
4.20

3.O7

3.92
0.04

Fee paid for seruices received
- Entities having substantial interest / enterprises exercising significant influence over
the subsidiaries orjointly controlled entities or associates

GoT

- Entities where GEPL/GIL key management personnel a',d their relatives exercise
significant influence

GFFT

3.42 3.29

0.10

Irterest iacome
- Associates

UEPL

JEPL
WTGGE

- Jointly controlled entities
CDCTM

DASPL

TFS

7.56

r.57

0.01

0.68
3. l9

0.10
o.58

- Entities where GEPL/GIL key management personnel and their relatives exerclse
significant influence

GIVLLP
PFBI
GFFT
NSEZ
Companies under common control
GEOKNO
GEPL/GIL Key management personnel and their relatives
Mrs. B. Ramadevi
Entities having substantial interest / enterprises exercising significant influence over

:he subsidiaries or jointly controlled entitres or assoclates
"*1

I

o.12
0.01
4.05
0. 13

o.64

1.49

o.12
0.01
4.39

0.60

1.50

./'c,

t )fl
,F(
cl
Ul\
trz\v

qtSbiFcou! !5 I



GMR ENTERPRISES PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2org

b' sunoary of transactions with the above related parties are as folrows:

Nature of Transaction/ Eutity
in crorel

March 31,
20ta

March 31
2017

r- ss l,4ru
- GEPL/GIL Key management personnel and their relatives

Mr.G.M.Rao
s.98 s.99

- Entities having substantial interest / enterprises exercising significant influence overthe subsidiaries orjointly controlled entities or assoclates
FAG

Revenue share paid/payable to concessionaire grantoss
- Entities having substantial interest / enterprises exercising significant influence overthe subsidiaries orjointly controlled entities or associates

AAI

Rental expenses
- Entities where GEPL/GIL key management personner and their relatives exercise
significant influence

GFFT

- GEPL/GIL Key management personnel and their relatives
Mrs. B. Ramadevi
Mrs. G.Varalakshmi
Mr. G.B.S.Raiu

t7 |.87 l 51 .05

t,8t4.42 2,634.84

o.44

o.o8
0.16
0.40

4.98

0. 16

0.15
o.26

Managerial remuneration to
- GEPL/GIL Key management personnel and their relatives

Mr GM Rao

Mr GBSRaju
Mr Srinivas Bornmidala

Mr BV NageswaraRao

Mr Grandhr Kiran Kumar

Technical and consultancy fees
- Entities having substantial interest / enterprises exercising
the subsidiaries orjointly controlled entities or assoctates

FAG

MACS

AAI

MAPUK

APFTSB

significant infl uence over

4.79

9.84
1.O0

1O.64

a.o7

4.57
r.69
5.70
i.01
3.99

o.o7

o.12
7.2r
o.35

J



GMR ENTERPRISES PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to the consolidated financiar statements for the year ended March 3r, 2o1g

b. summary of transactions with the above rerated parties are as folrows:

Nature of Transaction/Entity

Other expenses - others
- Entities having substantial interest / enterprises exercising significant influence
the subsidiaries orjointly controlled entities or assoclares

- Companies under common control

GEOKNO

- Entities where GEPL/GIL key management
significant influence

GFPT

GVF

GMR Varalakshmi DAV Public School (GVDpS)

personnel and their relatives exercise

Reimbursernent of expenses incurred on behalf of the Group
- Entities having substantial interest / enterprises exercising significant influence
the subsidiaries orjointly controlled entities or associates

CHSAS

MAIPL
MAPUK

Times Innovative Media Ltd
Wipro Limited

YL

CELEBI GHDPL
APFTSB

in croref
March 31,

2018
March 31,

2017

5.61
0.58
0.11
o.00
1.r6
2.71
o.62

o.27

0.00

0.53

0.63

0.04
o.t2
0.o8
0.16

o.r7

0.08
3.45
0.s9
0.11
0.00
o.98
2.O2

o.62

2.57
o.t2
0.06
J. /J

o.32

9.54

1.16

1.81

o.26
0.93

0.o8
o.22
0.08
o.23
0.01
o.22
o.03

(o.04)
- Jointly controlled entities

GMCAC

TFS

- Entities where GEPL/GIL key malagement personnel and their relatives exercrse
significant influence

GVF

Expenses incurred by the Group on behalfof / Expenses recovered by the Group

- Entities having substantial interest / enterprises exercising significant influence over
the subsidiaries orjointly controlled entities or assoclares

AAI

CELEB] GHDPL
TFS Pvt Limited
LMPL

0.13

2.92

20.05
0.1 1

?no
0.04

r.47

18.73

0.o5
o.o2
o.4l
1 03



GMR ENTERPRISES PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to the consoridated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2org

b' summary of transactious with tbe above rerated parties are as follows:

. in crorel
Nature of Transaction/ Entity March 31,

2017Jointly controlled entities

DASPL

CDCTM

TIM
TFS

Laqshya
APFT

Companies under common conrot
GEOKNO

-.Entities where GEpL/GIL key management personnel
significant influence

GVF
- Associates

GCHEPL

MTSCL

Donations

and their relatives exercise

-.Ent-ities where GEpL/GIL key management personner and their relatives exerclsesignificant influence

6.42
12.05

2.O4

2.42
0.60
0.13

o.1 1

o.o7

o.o2
o.o2

Cargo handling charges paid
- Entities having substantial interest / enterprises exercising significant influence overthe subsidiaries orjointly controlled entities or assoclates

CELEBI GHDPL
BWWFS]PL

CAPL

Lease income
- Entities having substantial interest / enterprises exercising significant influence overthe subsidiaries orjointly controlled entities or assoclates

CELEBI GHDPL
IOCL
Rp/.r

- Jointly controlled entities
T]M

DAFF

CDCTM

DASPL

- Associates
GCHEPL

7.73

0.00
o.o2

o.75
12.69
20.26

0.08

0.08

Interest expenses
- Jointly controlled entities

Laqshya

APFT

- Entities having substantial interest / enterprises exercising significant influence overthe subsidiaries orjointly controlled entities or assocrares
AAI

CHSAS

WL
Purchase of Raw Materials
- Entities having substantial interest / enterprises exercising significant influence overthe subsidiaries orjointly controlled entities or assocrates
TFS Kolkatta Pvt Ltd

o.44

o.o1

o.12

s.03
o.42
00s

fgYA(.>



GMR ENTERPRISES PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to the consolidated frnancial statements for the year ended March 31, 2o1g

b' summary of transactions with the above related parties are as fo'ows:

Nature of Transaction/Enttty
Ral

tn
March 31

20La
March 31,

20L7
l^sesrY4utE,

- Entities having substantial interest / enterprises exercising significant
the subsidiaries orjointly controlled entities or associates

AAI
FAG

APPTSB

LISVT

MACS

MAHB
WL

LMPL

MAIPL
MAPUK

GoT

CHSAS

TPSIPL

CELEBI GHDPL
BWWFSIPL

YL

TFSPL

GHARL Novotel
BPCL

influence

61.82
31 .99

0.05

10.47
1.31

3.06
o.50
o.67

318.57
6.84
0.98

(0.61)

(0.32)

(0.0s)

0.06
o.o7
0.06

135.04
79.99

0.54
(0.06)

o.04
(o.2el
71.94
7.98
r.o2
4.40
1. .17

6.86
o.84

(0.7s)

(o.e7)

(0.01)

0.03
o.o7
0.04- DrrrrLlcs wnere L'EHL/Li'lL key management

significant influence
GFFT

GVF

GWT

WTGGE

GIVLLP

NSEZ

Polygon

PFBI
- Companies under common control

GEOKNO

personnel and their relatives exercisc

(273.o4]'

1.99
(11s.00)

(e3.e4)

(t43.771

12.66)
(22.eol

(0.20)

18.o6)

1281.41)
r.5 t

(11s.oo)
(72.sol

(r43.76]'

(o.1e)

{6.10)



GMR ENTERPRISES PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to the consolrdated financial statements for the year ended March 3r, 2o1g

b' surrmary oftransactions with the above related parties are as follows:

Nature of Transaction/Entity
- Jointly controlled entities

PIGEMS
GMCAC

MGCJV
Laqshya
APFT

DASPL

TFS

DAFF
CDCTM
WAISL
TIM

125.91
(8.es)

(s.02)

3.471

6.51
3.27

702.70
71.87

o.01

2,335.20
(64.81)

(r.e7l
(6.42)

7.O9

0.55
r25.27
89.51
(4.63)

2.44

- GEPL/GIL Key management personnel and their relatives
Mr. G.M. Rao
Mrs. G.Varalakshmi
Mr. G.Kiran Kumar
Mrs. B. Ramadevi

(24o.8e)
(s2.68)

(0.00)

10.27
(o.13)

(24.54)

0.06

2.56
1.08

(3,ss9.eo)

11,2O2.89)
(0.07)

10.48
(o.oB)

(0.12)

(2s.ss)

Outstanding corporate guarantees
- Associates

GCHEPL

Outstanding bank guarantees
- Companies under common control

GEOKNO

a' The Group has provided securities by way ofpledge ofinvestments for loans taken by certain companies.

b' certain GEPL/GIL Key management personnel have extended personal guarantees as security towards borrowings of
li::::1T:"lT:?:tf :::fates' Similarlv, the companv and certain iellow subsidiaries have pledged certain sharesin the Company as security towards the borrowings of the Group.

c' Remuneration to GEPL/GIL key managerial personal does not include provision for gratuity, superannuation andpremium for personal accidentar policy, as the same are determined for the Group as a whole

d' certain bank guarantees and corporate guarantees given on behaif of subsidaries have not been considered in theabove trarsactions and outstandinq balances.

#qa

e*-r-.C



GMR Enterprises private Ltd.
Notes to the consolidated financial strtements for the year ended March 3t,20lg

43 Gratuity and other post employment benefits plans

a) Defined contribution plan
contributions to provident and other f'nds included in capital rvork-in-progress (nole 32(a)), intangible assets under develop;nenl (note 32(b)), discontinuedoperations(note 3 I and employee benefits expenses(note 25) arc as unoer:

Pa rticula rs

Lontnbutton to provident fund
Contribution to superannuation fund

Rs. in
March 31.2018 March 31.201?

)z l)
18 34

28 73

t2 83
50.49 4r.56

b) Defined benefit plan

Provident fund
Contributions to provident funds by DIAL included in capital work-in-progress (notc 3 r (a)) and emproyee benefits expenses(note 25) are as undel

Chartered Accounrants 
"f 

I;i;:r;,;ri;;;
considered as defined benefit plans

The details ofthe funr.l and plan asset position are as follows:

used determi

,r,,,b v!q,rua,v I J, Llrptuyse Den9Ut

benefits involving employer established provident l'unds, rvhich require interest shortfalls to be re-compensated. are to be

"As publisbed by Insurance ReguJatory and DeveJop
India eff'ective April 1,2013

Gratuity Plan
The Group has a defined benefit gratuity plan Every employee who has completed live years or more ofservice gets a gratuity on departure at l5 days salary (basedon last drawn basic) for each completed year ofseruice The scheme is funded rvith an insu.ance Corrpanl, In the lbrm ofa qualifuing insurance poljcy

Particula rs

-

Lontrtbutlon to orovident fnnd

Rs. in
March 31.2018 March 3t.2017

713 573
111 <n1

Particulars
P1,;;..t* the

In c

March 31,2018 March 31.2017
lll59
rlt 59

94 27

94 27

Pa rticula rs
Discount Rate
Fund Rate

EPFO Rate

Withdrawal Rate
Mortality

nAs pubhsbed bv Insurance

March 31.2018 March 31. 201?
7 600/o

9 30%
I 550/o

5 00%
Indian Assured

Lives
Mortaliry
(2006-08)

r/'n^rlifiFi\l Ilt *

7 l00l
9 5001

8 60%

5 00o/a

Indian Assured

Lives
Mortalrty
(2006-08)

/,-^;:c^r\r rr. *

Balance Sheet
Particu la rs Rs. in cr

Present value ofdefined b"n.fit oblisotion
Fair value ofplan assers
Plan rscpt / /li"hil;1.

lVlarch 31.2018 March 31.2017
76 44

48 98
58 49

37 95

2.7 46 (20 55

in the present value of the rlefinerl benefit tion are as follorys:
Rs. in crore)Part c a

March 31.2018 March 31.2017

Transferred to / lransfer from the Group
Nerv acquisitions
lnlerest cost

Current sewice cost
Past seflice cost
Benefits paid

Acluarial {garns). los5es on ohlrgation
Discontinued operations
Closing dellned benefi1 obligation

58 49

397
886
637

(5 e0)

458
007

16 44

50 50

(0 39'

3 t9
807

(6 92)
405

(001)
58 49



GMR f,nterprises private Ltd.
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 3l,20lg

,uwdrus gratuity fund in next year

an assets as a ofthe fair value oftotal plan assets is as follows:

Notes :

irhelongterrrestimateoftheexpectedrateofreturnonfundassetshasbeenarrivedatbasedontheprevailingyieldsontheseassels 
Assumedrateofreturnonassets is expected to vary frorr year to year reflecling the returns on matching governrlent bonds

ii rhe estirnates offuture increase in compensation levels, considered in the actuarial valuation, have been taken on account ofinflation, seniority, promotion andother relevant factors such as supply and dernand in the employment market
iii AsperlndianAssuredLivesMortality(2006-08)(rnodified)UJt.(March 31.2016:AsperrndianAssuredLivesMortaliry(2006-08)(modified)Ult)

Amounts for current year and previous trvg yg215 are as fbliows

Other defined post employment benefit
Certain entities in the group located outside India have defined untirnded post employment benefits, tbr its employees

The following tables sulnmarises lhe components of net benefit expens€s recognised in the statement ofprofit and loss and amounts recognrsed in the balance sheetfor these defined post-employrnent benefits..

Statement of profit and loss

AluenCh

Benefits paid

Actuarial gain / (loss) on plan assets
Discontinued operations

(Rs. in
March 11,2018 March 31. 2017

) | oz

(0 i0)

076
l6 67

(6 38)

0.13
(0 r2)
48 98

37 66

(0 le)

239
344

(6 e2)
123

Investments with insurer March 31,2017

lhe ions used in determin
Pa rticula rs

Discount rate (in %)

Salary Esca)ation (in %)

Expected rate ofreturn on assels

Attrition rate (in %)

Mortality Rate

March 31.2018 March 31.2017

7 ljYo

6 00%

7 80%

5 00yo

Indian Assured

Lives
Mortality
(2006-08)

(modified)Ult

7 l)Vo

6 00yo

7 80%

5 00yo

lndian Assured

Lives

Mortality
(2006_08)

(modified)Ult

March 31,2018 March 31,2017 nlr*t ft, ZOtO
Rs in Crore Rs in Crore Rs in Crorevalue of defi nerl benelit obliuatron

48 98 3'7 57

Experience adjustment on plan liabilitiei
Experience adjustment on plan asscts 073 | 23

r) Net empl
Pariiculars

benellt exoense
Rs. in

Current service cost
Actuarial loss / (gain)
lnterest cost on benefit obliuation

March 31.2018 j\f a rch 31 . 201 7

048
(0 05

020

048
(0 0,s)

020
061 06i

the deltncd bcnefit ion are as follows:
Pa rticu la rs
Onenino dcl

Rs. in
Ma rch 3l . 20l8 l\'la rch 31. 2017

lnleresl cost

Currenl sewice cosl
BenefiLs paid

Actuarial (gains), losscs on oblisalion
Closing dellned benclll oblilrrron

l tl
020
0 4tl

(r 48)

(0 05)

626

196
020
018

(r48
(0 0s

7 tl

PR



GMR Enterprises Private Ltd
Notes to the consolidated financial slfltenrents for the period cnded Mirch 31,201g

44.Segment Reporting
a) The segnent reportilg ofthe Group has been prepued in accordatce with AS I 7 on Segmenl Reportbg, uotified under section I 33 ofthe Compmies Act, 201 3
b) For the purpose ofreporting business segnents are prinary segnents ild tJte geographical segnents are secondary segnents
c) The business segments ofthe Group comprise oftJle following;

ation md mir

d) Geographical segments ile categorised as'India' and 'Outside lndia' and ue based on the domjcile oftle customen
e) Vuious business segments comprise of tl:e following cornpmres:

rpro Airport IT Sewices Limited

Aviation Private Limited

(Badrinath) Hydro Power

GMR InFastructue t)verseas Limited

GMR Infrastructue (LlK) Limiled

GMR hfrastructue (clobal) Limited

Era Mitra Seluas (PTEMS; Energy (Global) Limited

GMR Lion Enerry Limited Berkat Satria Abadi (PTBSA)

Aero Tecbnic Limited(GATL)

GMR Energy Trading Linited GMR Coal Resources Pte Linited

PT Golden Energy Mines Tbk Eila Properties Private Limited

Delhi l::temational Airport Limited GMR Coastal Energy Private Limited PT Rouudhill Capital Indonesia Pranesh Properties Pivate Limjted

Bajoli HoJi Hydropower Pr ivate

Delhi Aviation Services Privale
PT Kuorsing htti Mdcru

Travel Food Services (Delhi Temina-
Idka Properties Private Limited

Delhi Duty Free Seryices Prjvate Coal N4ine md EnergXr
Lillim Properties Private Limited

Deihi Aviation Fuel Facility Private
Lnllted Chlattisgarh EnelpXr Lirnited PT Bara Hmorris Batmg Astun Larkspu Propertjes Private Limited

Enerry lNetJrerlands) B V

PT Berkat Nusmtara Pernai Suzone Properties Pivate L;nited
Delhi Arporr Prkmg Seruices Prrvate

PT Tanjrurg Belit Bua ULama

akalpa Properties Private Limited

Energy Pro.lects (Mauritius)

PT Karya lt4ining Solution (KMS)

PT GEN4S Energy lndonesia

adhapriya Properies Pilvate Limited vama Really Private Limited

Atrports (Malta) Lmited GMR Rajdmudry Energy Lunited

Tradmg Resouces Pte Limited Real Estates Private Linited

SEZ and Port Holdings Limited a Properties P!{ Ltd

tar Jurggrrang Energy Co Ltd
GMR Corporate AIIairs Private

Iabilli Properties Prt Ltd

Dlnvi Secuities Private Limited

Wahana Rimba (PTS/R)

Solu Porver Private Lunited

GMR League Games Private Limrted

Healthcde DestinatioD PvL LtdCaderce Retail Private Lilnited

NfR Holdings ( Overseas) Ltd

iNlR Barmerghtta Propenies Pm Lld

lnfrastrrctrxc Servrces Pr1

Ku$i Tirnbe^ P!.t Lld



GMR Enterprises Privrte Ltd
to thc statenrents for the March 31.20

(smgapore) 
Interzone capital Limited
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GMR ENTERPRISES PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 3r. 20lg

45. Other Matters

The cornpany recognized Rs 7,358.60 crores Goodwill in the consolidated financial statements as at 3lstMarch'2018' The tnanagentent is reviewing this position continuously ancl based on the assessment there is noprorasion/impairment is required for the saidGoodwill, accorclingly no ad.lustments carried out in these consolidate<lhnancial statements

Matters related to certain airport sector entities:

r. DF Order

a) AERA DF order No' 281201 1-12, 30/ 2012-13 and AERA tariff order No. 03/2012-13 on determinarion ofAeronautical rariff; issued onNovember 14,2011, December 2g,2ol2and April 24,2ll2respectively.

DIAL has accrued DF amourting to Rs. 350 00 crore cluring the year 2012-2013 eannarked for construction of AirTraffic control (ATC) tower, which is currently unde. p.ogr"r, as at March 31 , 201 g. DF amounting to Rs. 350 crore(March 31'2rJ17: Rs. 350.00 crore) has been adjusted against the expenditure on construction of ATC tower incurrecltill March 31,2018.

The total
2017 Rs. s Rs. 398.62 crore till March 31,2018 (March 31,

secunty. t. 350 crore, as the construction got <lelayed due to

A Meeting held on May 11, 2017,the DIAL has written a letter to AAI lbrre However, pending acceptance by AAI, additional amount of Rs. 4g.62 croreis ess (cwP) as at Marchll, zolti(March 31,2017:Rs. 43.07 crores).

b) AERA has passed an order vicle order No 30/2012-13 dated December 2g,2012 in respect of ler.ry ofDevelopment fee at Delhi Airport. As per the said order, the rate of Airport Development Fee (ADF) has been reducedfrom Rs. 200 to Rs. 100 and from Rs. 1,300 to Rs.60
, as per the senger

.rectlon perl ' 2013
/2015-20.l6,restri collectionofADFuptoApril3o,20l6.Aspertheorder.AERA

has granted AAI six Inonths'time after cutoff date (i.e April 30.2016jto reconcile ancl close the account- and toarnve at the over recovery / under recovery of ADF. Howeier, the same iras not yet been finalized rlls over / underrecovery will be accounted for on final reconciliation of ADF pencling with AAL However, DIAL has collected theDF receivable in flill and settled the DF loan on May 2g.2016.

hority 1,AERa') passed
GHIAL filed an appeal-
on of its tariff u,ith the

said order Due to non-constitution of AERAAT Bench-
rt at Hyderabad which is yet to be heard. GHIAI, t-rled an

20l6 to March 3r, 202l incrudins true up r-or shortfalr "ri$l'*""H:ilffi,""TL':il:11,T::1.:i';lj;l"'
on Decen.rber 19, 2017- AERA also issuecl a consultation paper inviting comments tiom all stakeholclers in

airport for the second control period. However, as the
rssues arising out of the tariff order for the t-rrst control

d consultation paper before the Hon'ble High court at
existing matters of the TaritT Order for the i'irst control
February 7, 2018 in respect of further proceedings in

Pending detenlrinatior.r of Aerouautical tariff, AERA vide its order dated March 2g. 201g has allowed to contrnlre totheAeronauticaltariff asprevailedonMarch3I.2018tbraflirtherperiodof 6monthsrvef April I-201gortilldeter'ri'ation of tariiT tbr the atbresaid period whiche'er is earlier



GMR ENTERPRISES PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31. 201g

rlr' GATL has been incurring losses inclucling cash losses and has incurred net loss of Rs 34 06 crore for theyear ended March 31, 2018 ( March 31,2017 : Rs Oz.Oz crore) and accumulated losses of Rs. 447 l6 crore as atMarch 31, 2018 ( March 31,2011 : Rs 413.10 crores). The rnanagement of the Group expects that there will be asignificant increase in the operations of GATL that will
The Group has undertaken to provide such hnancial s
requirements as they arise and to meet its liabilrtres as
Group believes no adjustments are required to be done t

rv. . __ The Ministry 
_of 

Civil Aviation (MoCA) issued GHIAL, subsidianes of the GAL(collectively 'Airport Operations') requiring the Airport e the expenditure rncurrecl, sinceinception towards procurement and maintenance of securit and on creation of fixed assets outof Passenger Senrice Fee (Security component) I'PSF (sci] escrow account opened and maintained by the Airportoperators in a fiduciary capacity. Managements ortn" ai.po.i operators are of the view that such orclers are contraryto and inconsistent with Standard operating Procedure (soPs), guid"lin". ancl clarification issueci by the MocA fromtune to tirne and challenged the saicl orders before Hon'ble rtiln court oftheir respectivejurisdictions by way ofawnt petition' The Hon'ble courts had stayed the MocA order with an undertaking that, in the evelt the clecision ofthe writ Ftitions goes against the Airport operators, it shall reverse all the expenditure incurred from psF (SC)

The Airport operators had incurred Rs. 416.21 crore towards capital expenditure (including the construction costand cost of land mentioned below and excluding related marnte.run""."p.n." and interest thereon; till March 31,2018 out of PSF (SC) escrow account as per SoPs, guidelines and clarificatron issued by the MocA from time totime.

Fnrther, in case of DIAL, MocA had issued an order dated septemb er 18, 2oli stating the approxirnate amount of
levelsal to be made by the DlAl-lowards capital expenditure and interest thereon u-orrnti.rg to'Rs. zss.ss crore andRs. 368 l9 crore respectively, subject to the order olthe Hon'ble High court of Delhi.

Based on the intemal assessments and pending final outcome of the aforesaid w,rit petitions, no ad.iust'rents havebeen made to the accompanying consolidated financial st tements of the Group fbr the year ended March 3 I - 20l g

debited to the PSF(SC) Fund with intirnation to MoCA. The Comptroller ancl
during their audits of PSF (SC) Fund- observecl that, GHIAL had not obtained
urring such cost from the PSF (SC) Funcl as requirerJ by the guiclelines datedJannary 8, 2010 and April 16'2olo issuecl by MocA. However. managenrent of the Group is of the opinion thatthese guidelines were issued subsequent to the construction of the said iesidential quarters and approached MocAfor approval to debit such costs to the PSF (SC) Fund account and also- rnade an application for increase rn pSF (SC)tariffto recover these dues and to meet the shortfall in clischarging other liabilitiei from pSF (SC) Fund.

In earlier years' MoCA respondecl that, it is not in a position to consicler the request for enhancernent in the pSF (SC)tariff As a result, GHIAL requested MoCA to aclvice the AERA for consiclering the cost of land,/ constructron anclother related costs with regard to the aforesaid residential quarters in determination of Aeronautical 'l-arifr lbr the
Hyderabad airport. Pending hnal instruction from MoCA, cost of residential quarters continue to be accounted in thePSF(SC) Fund and no adjustments have been made to the accotnpan),ing consolidated t-inancial stateurents of theGroup tbr the year ended March 31. 2019

u.-,",^" ERA passed an Aerona issuecl on April 24. 2012wnrcn cal tariff to be levied at fth },.ear of tarilf period oftlrst fi 2009 - 2Ol4). DIAL ha on certain drspured issuesin the



GMR ENTERPRISES PRTVATE LIMITED
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year entled March 31. 20lg

subsequently, AERA also released the tarifforderNo. 40/2015-16 dated December 0g,2015 fbr second controlperiod i e' 2014 -2019. DIAL filed an appeal with AERAAT against some of the matters in the tariff order for thesecond control period' subsequently, the Hon'ble Delhi High"court vide its Final order dated January 22, 2016ordered that the tariff determined by AERA for the First conirol Periocl shall continue till the disposal of the appealspending against the said tarifforder by AERAAT.

Fnrther, Ministry of Finance vide the notification dated May 26,2017, diected the merger of Appellate Tribunalunder the Airports Economic Regulatory Authority Act, 200"g ('AERA Act,') i.e AERAAT into l.elecom DisputesSettlement and Appellate of Tribunal (.TDSAT')

The Hon'ble Supreme court of India, on SLP filed by Air India, vicle its-ludgement dated July 03, 2017, vacated theorder of Honorable High court of Delhi and directed rDSAT to dispose of the appeals of DIAL in the next twomonths.

As per the directors of Director General of civil Aviation dated July, 2ol7, DrALimplemented the Tariff order No.40/2015-16 dated December 0g, 2015 with irnmediate effect i.e., from J.i,y o7 ,2017

DIAL's appeal no' lo/2012 with respect to first control period has been concluded along with the appeal by certainairlines' TDSAT vide its order dated April 23,2018has passed the order, which provides clarity on the issues whichwere pending for last six years and has laid down the principles to be followed ly AERA in dltermination of tariffof the third control period starting from April 1, 2019. DIAL expects the uplift impact of the TDSAT order to befactored in the tariff determination by AERA for the next period i e.,2019-2024. DIAL,s appeal agarnst the secondcontrol period shall be heard in due course.

Basis the cash projections prepared by the managenent of DIAL for next one year, the rnanagement expects to havecash profit' Further, considering DIAL's business plans and the availability of sufhcient cashleserve as at March 3 l,2018, the management do not foresee any turcertaii.rty in continuing its business/ operations and meetrng its liabilitiesfor the foreseeable future and accordingly, the financial statern-ents of DIAL are continued to be prepared anclconsolidated on a going concem basrs

vr' DIAL has received advance clevelopment costs of Rs 660 06 crore (March 3l , 20li:Rs. 660.06 crore) fromvarious Developers at commercial Property District towards facilitating the development of common infrastructurethere in As per the tenn of the agreentent, DIAL r,r,ill tricilitate the <tlevelopment of common infiastructure upolrreceipt of advance towards developrnent cost in accordance with the instructions and specifications in the agreement.Further, DIAL has no right to escalate the developrnent cost and in case any portion of the advance development costis not utilized by DIAL towards <ievelopntent of any infrastructrlre faciiity, the sarne shall be retumed to theDevelopers upon earlier of the expiry of the injtial tenn of agreement or upon termination of the developmentagreement' As at March 31, 2018. DIAL has incr-rrred development expenditure ofRs. 519 19 crore (March 3l,2ol: :Rs' 469 '72 crore) which has been adjusted against the aforesaid acluance ar cl balance amount of Rs 1 40 g7 crore(March 31,2017 Rs. 190.34 crore) is disclosed *rcler other liabilities

vii DIAL is collecting "Marketing Fund" at a specilied percentage frorn various concessionaires as per theagreetnent with respective concessionaires and to be uiilized towards sal-es promotronal activities as delined in suchagreentents in accordance wjth the Marketing Fund policlr adopted by DIAL The financial statements of suchmarketing fund are being audited by one of the Joint Statutorv auditors of DIAL. As at March 31,2017, DIAL hasbilled Rs 116'62 crore (March 31-2017: Rs 92 48 crore) tow.aids such Marketing Fund and has incurred expenditurearDountlngtoRs 65'llcrore(March3l-2017: Rs 3905crores)(netofincorneonternporaryinvestnents)tillMarch
3 1 ' 201 8 fron the amount so collected. The balance anlount of Rs 5 I 5l crore (March i ,20t1,53.43 crore) pendingutilization as at March 31,2018 as rnarketing fun<l billing ar.r<l utilization rvas not fonning part of narketing funclagatnst such sales prourotion activities is includecl ur.rder "other clrrrent liabilities" o, sp""iir" f,-d to be used for thepurposes to be approved by the Marketing hrnd comrnittee constitllted lbr this p.r.por.

v111 a) The consolidated financial staternents of the Group do not include accounts for pSF (sC) of DIAL andGHIAL as the sanre are maintainerl separatel-v in the tiduciaiv capacitv bY hese entities on behalf of GoI and aregoverned by soP issued vide letter nutnber Avl13o24lo47/2d03-ss/Ab datecl Jalruarv 19.2009 issued by MocA.Gol

t
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statements of the Grt)up do not include billing to Airlines for DF by DIAL, as the
eves that DIAL's responsibility is restricted only to the billing on behalf of AAI in
of AAI (Major Airports) Developrnent Fee Rures, 20r l ancl oi s'p.

lx The comptroller and Auclitor General of ln<lia ('CAG') had conducted the perforrnance audit of public
Private Parhership ('PPP') project of AAI at Delhi Airport io. tt. p"rioa 2006 to20l2. aAG hacl presented its reportbefore the Rajya Sabha on August l'7,2012 wherein they hacl made certain 

"b;;.;;;';;DIAL. The public
Accounts Committee ('pAC'), constitutecl by the parli
its observatio's ancl recor*rendations to Loi sabha vi :Til'$"tl|-".iiriil'f,: .l::lx|:1ofthe Group is ofthe view that the observations in th pAC report do not have any financialimpact on these consoliclated financial statements of th

x. For Preference Shares iss'ed by subsidiaries, refer note 33

xr DIAL had entered in to an IT serwice
services at the Airport on its behalf. As per
depending upon the actual billing and sribsis
customer and it is not economically feasible for WAI
DIAL concluded that the arrangement contains a lease
as a finance lease at inception of the arrangetnent and payrnents were split into lease payments ancl payments relatedto the other elements based on their relative fair values. The irnputecl finun"" costs on the liability were determinedbased on incremental borrowing rate of interest

However, during the year ended March 3l, 201.7,there is rnodification in the terms of arrangement and as per thetnodified tenns; this arangement no longer contains an embedded lease. Accorclingly, DIAL has derecog'ised the
assets and liabilities recognised under finance iease.

x1l DIAL had entered into 'Developntent Agreement' and the 'Infrastructure Development zmd ServiceAgreenent' with Silver Resort Hotel India Private Lirnited (hereinafter referred as .Developer,) 
on l.ebnrary 26,

roperty area located in Aerocity for a period of 30 years: further
s, Developer was required to pay the License fee ancl other

issued termination notice on account of failure by the
d to be paid under the agreements executed between

r has invoked the arbitration process as per Lrfrastructure

The Arbitral Tribunal which was 0g-2017. The fa r -^-ri..^ n^ r r r
it to settle th 

I granting Rs l l5'8 lng

crores to the 
88 crores lying with .99

has passed the dissenting order granting award in favor ofDeveloper autonntiug to Rs. 416.86 crores. Dissenting award granted by one ofthe arbitrators is not entbrceable /binding o'r the parties, being trre'rinority order /disseriting opiiion.

Accordingly. DIAL has deposited pavment of Rs 76 13 crore (net of recovery of arbitration cost of Rs 0 g6 crore)in the Hon'ble High Court of Delhi as per arbitratron award.

Further^ both the parlies have their respective rights to challenge the Arbitral Awarcl gh co'rtof Delhi as per Section 34 of the Arbitration and Conciliatiorr.A="t, 1996 (..Arbitration tiom thedate of receipt of ara'ard order Co'seq.ently. Sihrer resort has hled an appeal again d betbre
the Hon'ble High court 'fhe tilattcr u'as heard for arguruents on April 26- 2018 und th".lrr,lgrrrent is reserved

xiii India Scheme (SEIS) under Foreign Trade policv
s rs entitled to Duty Credit Scrips as a percenta€le
payment of basic custorn duty on inports or can
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Pursuant to above, during the year encled March 31 , 201
validity till September 30,2}lg. DIAL has so far utiliz
expanslon plans at the IGI airport, DIAL is
accounted the amount utilized and remainins
value of the scrips.; as ..Other Incomes" in tlie

The Scrips received under SEIS are in nature of Government Grant and is srmilar to the Scrips recerved earlier underServed from India Scheme (sFIS) of Foreign Trade Policy 2010-ls; *r".rr is presently under litigation with respectto Amual Fee payable towards AAI on the same.

Further' based on the legal opinion obtained, the Govemment Grants are not part of ..Revenue,, 
under oMDA.Accordingly, Management believes that, no Annual Fee is payable u. p., th" provisions of oMDA, and has not beenproraded in the consolidated hnancial statements.

xlv In accordance with the provisions of the am
Novernber 16, 2010 executed by GHIAL with Menzies
(MACL), Menzies Aviation (India) private Limited and
GHIAL exercised its Buy Back Rights to buy
position as regards exercising the buyback rigir
conclusion of proceedings the Arbitral Tribuna
GHIAL with costs stating that the fair market value was
thus not exercised its buy back rights validly and hence
believes that there shall be no impact on the control eval
post the Final Award.

Matters related to certain road sector entities:

1' GACEPL, a subsidiary of the GIL has been incurring losses since the commencement of its comrnercial
at March 31.2019. The management of the Group
of revenue arising as a resull of diversion of partial
on and the arbitration tribunal has passed an interim

thernanagement orthe Group.isconrrdentthat iHinHnil:ftr#"ilt"',TXt;:'tr::ffiH'**T*:?#ff;
loss it has suffered due to such diversion of trafhc and considering 

"*p".Ld future traffic flow, the management ofthe Group believes that the carrying value of carriage ways n ca6ppi of Rs. 43 9 g4 crore as at March 3 I . 201 g isapproprlate

It GMR Hyderabad Vijayawada Expressways Private Limited ('GHVEPL') a subsidiary of the GIL has beenrncurring losses since the comrnencernent of its commercial operations and has accurnulated losses of Rs. 546.43

ed reasons and accordingly trlecl its claim for the loss ofrevenlre till the year ended March 31, 201'7 with National Highways Authority oi traio (.NHAI') The claim ofGI{VEPL was rejected by NHAI and accorclingly cluring the
proceed with arbitration and accordingly Arbitral Tribunal wa
u,as irutially developed from existing 2 lanes to 4 lane ancl wil
l4th anniversary of the appointed date). If 6 lanurg s not
GIIVtrPL)- concession periocl will be restricted to l5 v us as
canred otrt.

1.he ulauageurent of the Group is confident that it will be able to clairn coilrpensation fionr the relevant authorities
ch is significantlv dependent on the fructification ofthe

drngly. based on the at-oresaid legal opinion- espected
tlon assessntent bv an evental erpert, the nanagel.nent
vs of Rs. 2-089 57 crore oi GHVEPL as at March 3 l -
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II. Matters related to certain porver sector entities:

(i) The Group entered into a Subscription and Shareholders Agreement with Tenaga Nasional Berhad (Te'aga)
and its affiliate' Power and Energy Intemational (Mauritius) Limited ('lnvestors') whereby the investors have
acquired a 30% equity stake in a select portfolio of GEL assets on a fully cliluted basis for a consideratio' of
USD 30 00 crore through prirrary issuance of equity shares of GEL The transaction was completed on
November 4,2016 and GEL allotted equity shares to the lnvestors for the said consideration of USD 30 00 crore.

As per the conditions precedent to the completion of the transaction. GEL's tnvestr.nent rn certain entities was
transferred from GEL to other subsidiaries of the GIL along with novation of loans taken fron the GIL to GMR
Generation Assets Limited ('GGAL') (formerly'GMR Renewable Energy Limited') towards discharge of the
purchase consideration
(ii) GEL and its certain underlying subsicliaries/ joint ventures/ associates are engaged in energy sector
including mining operations. GEL and some of its underlying subsiciiaries/ joint ventures as ftirther detailed in
notes (iv), (vii) and (viii) below have been incurring losses. Baseci on the valuation assesslllent by the extemal
expert during the year ended March 31,2018 and the sensitivity analysis carried out for sorne ofthe afbresaid
assumptions, the value so determined after discounting the projectecl cash flows using discount rate ranging frorn
l4.00yo to 16.00% across various entities indicates that there exists an impairrnent loss of Rs '765 OO crore in the
value of Group's investment in GEL and its subsidiaries/joint ventures/ associates as at March 3l,2OIg
However, for reasons as detailed in notes (iv), (vii) and (viii) belolv, the managernent is of the view that no
further adjustment has to be made in the consolidated hnancial statements for the year enclecl March 3l , 20l g in
this regard

(iii) The Group has investments of Rs 3,151 65 crore in PTGEMS. a joint venture of the Group as at March 31,
2018 PTGEMS along with its subsidiaries is engaged in the business of coal mining and trading activities fhe
cost of investments made by the Group is significantly higher than the book valr-re of assets of pTGEMS and
includes certain future benefits including Coal Supply Agreeruent ('CSA') of GCRPL r.vith pTGEMS rvhereby
the Group is entitled to offtake stated quantity of coal as per the temrs of the CSA at an agreed discount. -lhe

Group has not significantly comrnenced the offtake of the coal under the CSA. however an arnencled CSA has
been exectited during tl.re year ended March 31 . 201 8. pursuant to which the supplies are expected to cornmence
in the next financial year. Further, during the ),ear ended March 3 I . 20 1 7. Group had restructured its loan facility

"vith 
the lenders whereby the loan is repavable over a period of 5 vears conrmencing .lanrurry 2017 After a

significant decline Ln2016 and2017,the coal prices in the intemational nrarkets have exhibited stability cturing
the last few quarters making the operations of the nines more protitable Though the shares of pTGEMS are
listed on the overseas exchanges- the tnanagement is of tl're vierv that the quoted prices are not retlective of the
underlying value of the urines as in the past l-erv vears the sl.rares have been verv thinly traclecl and tracling is
suspended as at March 31, 2018. Based on these factors and valuatiorr assesslllent carried out by an external
expert during the year ended March 31. 2018- the uranagement of the Group believes that the no adjustnent is
required in the Consolidated t-rnancial staternents as at March 3l- 201g

(iv) In view of lower supplies / availability of natural gas to the po\\'er gcnerating courpanies in Inclia, GMR
Energy Limited ('GEL'), GMR Veuragiri Porver Generation Lilltitect ('GVPGL') and GMR Rajatlnundry
Energl' Limited ('GREL') are tacing shortage of natural gas supplv and dela,,s in securing gas linkages As a
result- GEL has not generated and sold electrical energv srnce April 2013 GVPGL and GREL eurerge<l as
successful bidders in the auction process organised bt the Ministn' of Pos,er and operated on an internittent
basis liorn August 2015 and October 2015 respcctir,elv till Septenrber 2016 Thcse eltities have ceasecl
operattotls and have been incurring losses including cash losses orr accolLnt ofthe atbrcsaid shortage ofnatural
gas supply During the year ended March 3l.2Ol7 - GEL hacl entered into a MOU r,r,ith an e\ternal party tbr sale
of its 220 MW gas based por'ver plant. hou,ever the sale \\as not contltlcted l)resenth., the rnanagernent olthe
GIL is actively identifying the custourers 1-or the barge mour.rt plant helcl br (jEL GREL l.rad not cournrenced
conutlercial operations pendrng lintriages of natural gas sr-4t1>h Aoru the Mirustrr 6f l)etroleu'r a'4 Natural Gas
till the period ended September 30. 201 j As a result- the const'rrtium ol- lendcrs of GREL dccided to implenent
Strategic l)ebt Restructuring Schcure- uuder the Frameu'ork of Re sen'e ]lank o1'lndia lbr Revitalizing Distressed
Assets in the Econorny, u'herebv the lelrders have tt'r collectivelr l-rold 5l7o or ntore ol- the etluit_r, share capital rn
such assets by cotlverting part of tl-re debt outstandirrg into equitv and to rrnderlake llerible stmcturing gf balar-rce
debt post conversion as a Corectile Aclion Plan for iurproving riabilrtr and rcrival ol-tl-re prolect hrrsnalt tcr
tl-tc scl-rcmer.borrou,ings aggregating to Rs l.-308 j7 crore and interest accnrccl thercon antourlting to Rs l0j -{2
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crore was converted into equity shares of GREL on May 12,2016 for 55% stake in equity share capital of GREL
and the Group has given a guarantee of Rs 2-571.71 crore to the lenders against the rernaining debt Under the
sDR Scheme- the bankers had to find new promoters for GREL within the periocl as prescribed under the scherne,
which expired duriug the year ended March 31, 2018. Meanwhile, Reserve Balk of India (RBI) has rssued a
circular "Resolution of Stressed Assets - Revised Framework" on February 12, 2018. With this crrcular, all
existing frameworks for stressed asset resolution including SDR stand discontinued and the resolution plan is to
be implemented within 180 days from the reference date,viz.,March 01, 2018 The lenders and the managernent
are exploring various options for revival of the project and is conhdent of implementing a resolution plan with
in the period of 180 days- as allowecl by the RBI circular The lenders have advised the GIL and GGAL to ensure
payment of their dues failing which the lenclers shall be constrained to invoke the guarantees. Consequent to the
SDR and the conversion ofloans into equity share capital by the consortium oflenders, GREL ceased to be a
subsidiary of the Group and the Group has accountecl its investments in GREL under the Equity Method as per
the requirenents of AS - 23. Further, chiring the year enclecl March 31, 2Ol4,ncase of GVpGLis litigatron with
APDISCoMs, Appellate Tribunal for Electricity ('APTEL') had passed orders declaring that natural gas for the
purpose of Power Purchase Apgeement ('PPA') includes Regasified Liquefied Natural Gas (.RLNG,). Dwing
the year ended March 3 I , 201 8, pursuant to the appeal filecl by APDISCOMs, the Honorable Supreme Court has
held that RLNG is not natural gas for the purpose of the said PPA and accordingly GVPGL cannot be entitled
for capacity charges based on availability declaration for generation of power on the basis of RLNG. The
managetnent of the Group is evaluating various approaches / altematives to deal with the situation and is
confident that Govemment of India ('GoI") would take further necessary steps / initiatives in this regard to
lmprove the situation regarding availability of natural gas from altemate sources in the foreseeable future. The
management of the Group carried out a valuation assessment of GVPGL and GREL during the year ended March
31' 2018 which includes certain assunptions relating to availability and pricing of domestic and imported gas,
future tariff and otlrer operating pararneters, which it believes reasonably reflect the future expectaiions from
these projects. The managetnent of tl.re Group will rnonitor these aspects closely and take actions as are
considered appropriate and is confident that these gas based entities will be able to generate sufficient profits in
future years and rneet their financial obligations as they arise. Based on the aforernentioned reasons and business
plans, the management is of the vierv that no further adjustments are to be done to the consolidated linancial
statementsasatMarch3l-2018 Themanageurentisconfidentofimplementingaresolutionplanwiththelenclers
for the guarantee provided to the lenders against the remaining debt.

(v) The Group has investurents of Rs 1-579 l0 crore in GMR Chhattisgarh Energy Lirnitecl (.GCEL') after
providing for diminution in the value of investrnent ancl accounting uncler equity rnethod. GCEL has declared
comtnercial operations of Unit I on November l, 2015 and Unit II on March 3\,2016 of its 1.370 MW coal
based thermal power plant at Raipur district. Chhattisgarh GCEL does not have any long - term ppAs currently
and has been incurring losses since the commencen-rent of its commercial operations and has accumulatecl losses
of Rs 3,146 56 crore as at March 31- 2018. Druing the year enrlecl March 31, 2018, GCEL has been successful
in its bid under the Toiling Linkage rr-ritiative of the Govemment of India ancl has won a power purchase
Agreement for suppll,of pou'er to the extent of 500MW to Gujrat Urja Vikas Nigarn Limited (.GUVNL,) for a
period of 8 uonths u4rich has cornmenced during the -vezr ended March 3 1 , 201 8 GCEL has experienced certain
delays and incurred cost overrlrns in the completior.r of the project inclucling receipt of additional clairns liom the
EPC contractors The claims of the kev El)C contractor of USD 14 36 crore, Doosan power Systems tndia private
Limited ('DPS') is under arbitration in the Singapore Intemational Arbitration Centre (SIAC). Based on the legal
opinion- the tnanagetrlent is contider.rt that it has strong del-ence for the claims raisecl by the EpC contractor ancl
believes that the claims are not ter.rable in lar.r,and accorclingly no financial irnplications are expected out of the
said arbitration GCEL has also obtained provisional Mega Power status certificate frorn the Ministry of porver.
GoI- and accordinglv has availed an exetnptior-r of cnstours and excise duty against banli guarar-rtees of Rs 955 6g
crore and pledge oldeposits of ' i4 90 crore l1.re grant of llnal rrega power status of GCEL r,vas dependent o1
its aclrieving tie up lbr supplv of por.ver lor -/0%o of its installecl capacity through tl.re long temr por,ver purchase
agreetnents b-r' rvav of cornpetitive biddrng and tl-rc balarrce through regulateci rnarket within stipulated time (i e .
Marcl,2022) The tltanagement of GCEL is cerlain of hlltilling the conditions relating to Mega por,ver status in
tl-re tbreseeable ftiture, pending rvhich cost of customs and excise cluty has not been ilclucled inthe cost of tl.re
prolect Further- GCEL rvas allotted tuo coal urines at Ganeshpur and Taiabira to meet its fuel requirenrents
During the period er.rded Scptember 3(). 2017 GCIIL has tlled r,r,rit petition with Delhi High Court for
surendering bolh the coal blocks allotted durirrg the year er.rded March 3l- 2015 The management is o1.the
opini<'rt.t that in vier.r of the rccent decisiorrs bv the Dell.ri High Court in similar cases. no acljustntents rvill be
recluired to the accotllpanviltg ctrttsolirltte-rl Ihmrcial statcments of the Group in colnection tvith t6e surrender
of mine;,,.QCEL had entered into BLrlk Poucr'fransr.nission Agreernent ('BP1'A') u,itl.r porver Grid Cgrporatrpr.r
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of India Limited ('PGCIL'), per which GCEL was granted Long Term Access (LTA) of 3g6MW rn Western
Region and 430MW in Northem Region. GCEL has written letters to PGCIL for surrendering these transmission
lines and has filed a petition before Central Electricity Regulatory Commission ('CERa') for acceding to
GCEL's request. During the year ended March 31 , 201 8, PGCIL operationalizecl the LTA and issued two letters
calling upon the GCEL to schedule the transfer of power against LTA and establish a letter of creclit failing which
regulatory action would be initiated. GCEL has filed a petition before the Delhi High Court against the letters
rssued by PGCIL The Delhi High Court issued an interim order during the year encled March 31, 2018 staying
the operation of the irnpugned letters till GCEL has the opportunity to approach CERC for such relief and
accordingly GCEL has submitted an application with CERC on October 21 , 2017 to restrain pGCIL from
operationalizing LTA and consequently raising the bill for the same. GCEL based on an internal assessment rs
of the view that the factors adversely impacting the supply of power by GCEL is "Force Majeure,, as per BpTA
and accordingly' believes that this wrll not have financial implications on GCEL. During the year endecl March
31- 2017 , under a Framework for Revitalizing Distressed Assets in the Economy by RBI, the lenders of GCEL
have implerrented the Strategic Debt Restructuring ('SDR') Scherne on February 21 . 2ol:. pursuant to wSich
borrowings of GCEL aggregating t"o Rs 2,992.22 crore (including interest accruecl thereon of Rs 654 73 crore)
got converted into equity shares. The aforesaid conversion has resulted in loss of control by the Group over
GCEL and the Consortium of bankers have taken over 52.380% of the paid up equity share capital of GCEL and
the bankers have to find a new promoter for GCEL within the period as prescribed under the scheme, wluch
expired during the year ended March 31, 2018. Further, majority ofthe lenders have reduced interest rates for
GCEL Consequent to the SDR as stated above, GCEL ceased to be a subsidiary of the Group and has been
considered as an associate as per the requirement of AS -23 .Meanwhile, RBI has issued a circular "Resolution
of Stressed Assets - Revised Framework" on February 12,2018. With this circular, all existing frarneworks for
stressed asset resolution including SDR stand discontinued and the resolution plan is to be implemented within
180 days from the reference date, viz., March 01, 2018. Consortium of lenders are in the process of identifying
investors for GCEL so as to revive the operational and financial position ofGCEL and has shortlisted prospectlve
tnvestors, with whom discussions are currently in progress. The management of the Group carried out a valuation
assessrnent of GCEL during the year ended March 3l ,2018 which includes certain assumptions relating to future
revenlres, profitability in operation and servicing of its debts which is clependent upon tying up of its entire
generatlon capacrty at profitable rates through long term and medium term PPA in a power scarce market,
achievemeut of higher PLF, projected sales mix of PPA, fuel linkage tie ups, refinancing of existing loans with
lorver rates of interest with banks, achievernent of mega power status, successful gains from upcoming ppA Bicls.
successful outcome of all legal disputes and non-extraction of coal frorn Ganeshpur Mines The cash flor,vs so
projected based on the aforeurentioned assumptions are discounted using a discount rate of lj.\Oyo Ilased on
the atbresaid valuation assessment by the extemal expert ancl the sensitivity analysis carried out for some of the
aforesaid assumptions the value so determined inclicates that there exists a further diminution in the value of
GIL's investment in GCEL of Rs 1,485 00 crore as at March 31, 2018 As per the RBI circular clatecl February
12-2018 for resolution ofstressed assets stated above, the management ofthe Group, including the lenders' of
GCEL. u4lo also collectively are the majority shareholders, have initiated a process for'change of cor.rtrol'of
GCEL- u'l'rich entails sale of up to 100% equity stake of GCEL. The process is in an advanced stage and is
expected that the process of change in control would be completed by August 2018 as per the timelines indicated
rn tl-re RBI circular for resolution of stressed assets In view of the conficlentiality involved in the resolution
process: the ruanageluent is not in receipt of any bid value from the prospective buyers/ lenders and is confident
that it u'ill succeed in conpleting the change of control ancl subsequently the Group r,r,ill be able to recover the
calryrng Ialue of assets in GCEL and accordingly. the rnanageurent of the Group is of the vier,v that the carryrng
vahte of the iuvestntents in GCEL of Rs 1-579 10 crore (net of provision ibr dimimrtion in the value of
ir.rvestntents) as at March 3 I , 201 8 is appropriate

(\'i) GMR lladrinath Hlrdro Power Generation Private Lirnited ('GBHPL')- a susbsidiar_v of GEL- is in the
process of setting up 300 MW hydro based power plant in Alaknancia River- Chamoli District of Uttarakhand
f'he Hon'ble Supreme Court of India ('the Court'), while hearing a civil appeal in the rnatters of Alaklanda
Ilr'dro Porver Cornpan-v Limited- directed vide its order dated May 7, 2014 that r-ro fliilher construction r,r,ork
shall be nrldertaken by the 24 projects corning up on the Alaknanda and Bhagirathi basir.rs until irrther orders
Fr-Lrther- during tl.re vear ended March 3i - 2016, Ministrv of Environment Forest and Clirnate Char.rge ('MoEF.)
has represcttted to the Supreme Court of India that of the six hyclro prolects in Uttarakhantl, tr.r,o pro.jects
including GBIIPL reclttires certain design rnodil'ications as per the policv stipulations Drring the vear ended
Marclr 3 l. 2018- the validity of Environmental Clearance (EC') granted to GBHPL bv tl.re MoEF ceasecl to exist
Pttrsuaul to an application utade by GBHPL. thc MoEF vic]e its letter datecl April 17. 2018- proposed to extend
the IrC granted to GBFIPL lbr a period of 3 -r,ears- subject to the fl.ral outcoule of the ntatter pendir]g before the
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Court Based on its intemal assesstnent ancl a legal opinion, the management of the Group is conhclent of
obtaining the requisite clearances and basecl on business plan and a valuation assessrnent carried out by an
extemal expert during the year ended March 3l , 2018, the rnanagernent of the Group is of the view no adjustment
is required to be done to consolidated financial starernems.

(vii) GWEL is engaged in the business of generation and sale of electrical energy frorn its coal based power
plant of 600 MW situated at Warora. GWEL has accumulated losses of Rs 718.26 crore as at March 31,201g
which has resulted in substantial erosion of GWEL's net worth. GWEL has achieved the COD of Unit I in March
2013 and of Unit II in September 2013 and has tied up entire polver supplies capacity with customers and has
completed the refinancing of its term and other loans with the lenclers which has resulted in the reduction in the
rate of interest and extended repayment period Though the net worth of GWEL is fully eroded, the management
of GWEL expects that the plant will generate sufficient prohts in the future years and based on business plans
and valuation assessment by an extemal expert during the year ended March 31,2018, the rnanagement of the
Group is of the view that no adjustments are required to be done to the consolidated hnancial statements.

(viii) GKEL is engaged in development and olxration of 3 *350 MW under Phase I and I *350 MW under phase
II, coal based power project in Kamalanga village, orissa and has commenced commercial operation of phase I
oftheproject GKELhasaccumulatedlossesofRs1,817.55croreasatMarch31,201 8,*hi"Lhu,resultedin
substantial erosion of GKEL's net worth due to operational difficulties faced drrring the early stage of its
operations. GKEL has a fuel supply agreement for 500 MW with Mahanadi Coal Fields Limited, a subsidiary of
coal Lrdia Limited. Further, GKEL has fuel supply agreement for 493 Mw with shakti Linkage. pursuant to the
Reserve Bank of hrdia's framework for revitalizing distressed assets in the economy (including strategrc debt
restrucfuring scheme), the consortium of bankers have amended the rupee term loan agreement on June 29,2015
and accordingly loan is to be repaid in 66 quarterly structured instalments from October 1,2017 Further, GKEL
received certain favourable orders with regard to its petition for 'Tariff Determination' and .Tariff Revision,
with its customers. In view of these matters, business plans, valuation assessment by an external expert during
the year ended March 31,2018, the management is of the view tl.rat no adjustments are required to be done i1
consolidated fi nancial statements.

(ix) GPCL, a subsidiary of the GIL, approached Taniil Nadu Electricity Regulatory Commission (.TNERC') to
resolve the claims / counterclairns arising out of the Power Purchase Agreement ('ppA') ancl Land Lease Agreenent('LLA') in respect of the dues recoverable frorn Tarnil Nadu Generation and Distribution Corporation Limited
('TAGENDCO') on account of sale of energy includir.rg reimbursement towards interest on working capital,
Minimurn Altemate Tax ('MAT'), rebate. start / stop charges ancl payment of land lease rentals to 'IAGENDCO
GPCL received a favourable order from TNERC and in pursuance of the Order, filecl its claim on April 30, 2010
amourting to Rs. 481 68 cr ore and recognised Rs 79 55 crore as income in the books of account.

TAGENDCO filed a petition against TNERC order in Appellate Tribunal for Electricity ('ApTEL') In terms of an
interim order frorn APTEL, TAGENDCO cleposited Rs 537 00 crore including interesi on delayej payment of the
clairn amount APTEL vide its Order dated Febmary 28. 2012. upheld the claim of GpCL and fwiher iirected GpCL
to verify and pry counterclaims of TAGENDCO in respect of the benefits eamecl if any, by GpCL with regard to the
delayed payment towards fuel supply that are not as per the tenns of the FSA. GPCL hacl appealecl to the Hon,ble
Snpreure Court in Civil Appeals seeking certain interim relief rvith respect to the benefits pointed out by. ApTEL on
credit period of Fuel Supplies in tenns of the FSA The Flon'ble Suprene Court vide its Orcler clated April 24.2014.
has referred the dispute to TNERC for examining the claini of the contesting parties in so far as the quantum of
atnount rs concerned. GPCL and TAGENDCO have llled their respective petitions before TNERC during August
2014. The matter was heard by TNERC attd has been reserved for Order Further, TAGENDCO has filecl the petition
in the Hon'ble Supreme Court against APTEL orcler u'hich is pending before the Hon'ble Suprenre Court.

GPCL was availing tax holiday under Sectiorl 8OIA of the Income Tax Act, l96l ('Il'Act') in respect of its income
from power generation. Considering that tl.re substantial antount, though unrJer protest- has been received by GpCL-
based on an expert opinion, GPCL ofl-ered the clairns r-4rto March 31-2014 as incoure in its tax retums and clairned
the deduction as available under Section 80lA ofthe IT Act

Itl accordance with the above, the anlount received torvards the above mentioned claims after the date of Orcler is
beingdisclosedasadvancefromthecustouterinthebooksofacct)nnt Further,GPCLhasbeenlegallvadvisedthat
pending adindication ofpetition, the entire uratlcr is nou sub-judice ancl has not attained the finalitv
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Hence, pending acceptance of clairns by TAGENDCo and pending adjudication of petition before the Hon,ble
Supreme Court, the Group has not recognised such balance claim in the books ofaccount.

(x) In respect of a ssociates, the environmental clearance for Talabira - 1 Coal Mine vested to the Group lrom
Hindalco Industries Limited ('prior allotee') in terms of the Vesting Order received from the Nominated Authority,
Ministry of Coal, GoI has been challenged at the National Green Tribr.mal, Eastem Bench, Kolkata. The said dispute
is continuing from the time of Hindalco industries Limited and is pending as on the clate. However, the managernent
ofthe Gronp is ofthe opinion that the dispute raisecl does not have any legal validity ancl accorclingiy no adjustments
are required to be made in these consolidated hnancial statements for the year ended March 3l , 2bi S

III. Matters related to certain other entities:

t The GIL had given an interest free loan of Rs. I l5 00 crore to GMR Welfare Trust ('GWT') during the year
ended March 31 ' 201I for the purpose of ernployee benefit scherne. The trust had utilised the proceeds of the loan
received frorn the GIL in the followine manner:

In cro
VIarch 31, 2018 March 31.2017

Equity shares of GIL 101 .55 l0l 55
Equity shares of GAL 11.28 1 1.28
Jthers 217 217
Iotal 115.00 1r5.00

SEBI had issued Circular CIR/CFD/DIU3-2013 dated .Tanuary 1':. , 2013 prohibiting listed cornpanies frorn lraming
any enployee benefit schetue involving acquisition of its own securities from the secondary market SEBI had issued
Circular CIR/CFD/POLICYCELL/\412013 dated November 29, 2013 extencling the date of cornpliance to .Iune 30.
2014. The management of the GIL submitted the cletails of the GWT to the stock exchanges 

-SEBI 
lor issr-recl a

Notification dated October 28,2014 notifying "The Secwities ancl Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee
Benetits) Regulations, 201 4" ("SEBI Regulations") whereby the Companies having existing schemes to which these
regulations apply are required to comply with these regulations within one year of the effective date of the regulations
and the trusts llolding shares- for the purposes of irnplementing general employee benefit schemes^ which exceed ten
percent of the total value of the assets of the trusts- shall lrave a periocl of five years to bring down trusts' holcling i1
such shares to the pennissible limits SEBI published Frequently Asked Question ("FAe") on SEBI Regulations and
clarified that appropriation of shares towards ESPS/ESOP/SAR/General Employee Benefits Scheme / Retirement
Benefit Schenes by October 21 .2015 would be considerecl as compliance with proviso to regulation 3(12) of the
SEBI Regulations The GIL may appropriate towards individual employees or sell in the market clurrng netr trvo
years so that no unappropriated inventory remains thereal'ter The shareholders have approved the revised tenls and
conditions of the scheme by passing a special resolution in the Annual General Meeting of the GIL held o1 Septeurber
23- 2015 and that the GIL rvill ensure compliance r,vith other applicable provisions of the nelv regulations u,ithin the
perrnissible titne period

ii KSPL is in the process of acquiring land lbr irnpleurenting a Multi Product Special Economic Zone .,vithin
the rueaning of Special Econonic Zone Act 2005 and it has obtained an initial Notification frorn the Ministry of
Cotr.unerce. Govemment of lndia vide Notification No 635(E) datecl April 23,2007 t-or an extent of 1.035 67
hectares The formal approval for the sarne was initially given for 3 years tiom June 2006 Subsequentlt,. the said
fornial approval was extended till August 2016 KSPL has obtained further notification frorn Govemment of India
videNotificationNo 342(E)dated Febmary06.2Ol3 lbranexlentof l.0l364hectaresandthet-ormalapproval
was given rnitially lbr 3 -r'ears tiour Febntary 2012. rvhrch on application by KSPL.n,as estended l-urther gpto
February 201 6 KSPL's proposal fbr merger of both approvais is approved by Ministry of Coruurerce in I)ecember
201 5- hence extension offormal approval is no longer requirecl Out of2-049.3088 hectares land covere4 in existir.rg
r.rotitrcatron- the KSPL applied lbr de-notification of 170 0015 hectares druing the year ancl got the appror,,al tiorl
Ministry of Cotnmerce ar.rd Indr-tstries Subsequent to de-notification as statecl above 1.879 3973 l.rectares of lancl is
covered m-rder SI|Z r-rotrlled area.

,, ',]\.
.r'
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Land acquisition for SEZ project comprises direct
Infrastructure Corporation (.APIIC') and lancl awar
notification. The land acquired through awarcls by
solatium and interest from the date ofnotification till
acquisition cost.

clairns of different types pending before various judicial
ns filed against property acquisitions, ofland etc. As these
the hnal irnpact if any on hnancial statements of KSpL
as on the date of the consoliclatecl financial statements.

Further to the acquisition ofland for development
initiatives to relocate the inhabitants residine in
toward s rehabilitation and resettlement initiat=ives
treated as part of land acquisition cost KSpL had esti
rncurred towards rehabilitation and resettlement. Howe
consolidated financial staternents, as the negotiations
necessitating the rehabilitation is still going Jn.

During the
rncurred in
Iand acquis
with the on

The expenditure incurred during the earlier years in respect of the project includes Rs. 3 14. g9 crore towards non-prejudicial additional compensation for land owners and farmers amounced by special land acquisition to hasten theproposed proiect activities, which was in addition to the statutory compensatron alreadv paid An amount of Rs734'22 crore has been paicl by KSPL and renaining amount is shown uncler non-trade pavable

V. Trade receivables

i) GMR Warora Energy Limitecl (.GWEL'), o o ir
State Electricity Distribution Cornpany Limited (.MS of
contracted capacity of 200 MW, wherein power was requi pla
disputed place of evacuation of power with Maharashira Electricity Regr-rlatory commission (.MERC'). whereinNmRc has directed GWEL to construct separate lines for evacuation of"po*", through State Transnission Utility('STU') though GWEL was comectecl to Central Tra,rsmission Utility (iCru,). Aggrieved by rl.re MIrRC Order.GWEL preferred an appeal with APTEL. APTEL vicle its interim orclei clatecl February 11.2()l4directet.t GWEL tostart scheduling the power frorn GWEL's bus bar ancl bear transmission charges of inter-state translnrsslon svstemtor'vards supply of power. GWEL in terms of the interim orcler scheduled the power tioni its bus bar t;;; t;;;';;,201'4 and paid inter-state transrnission charges. APTEL vicle its final Order clated Ma\r g. 2015 r_rpheld GWEL,scontentlon of scheduling the power frotn bus bar and directed MSEDCL to reimburse tl.re inter-state h.ansmrssion

:lT*:ItltnobomebyGWELasperitsinterimorder AccordinglyasatMarch3t-20l8.cwELhasraisedclaini
oI t(s Jll'u4 crore towards reitnbursement of transmission charges frorr] March ll- 2014 till Marcl] jl. 20lgMSEDCL preferred an appeal me court of hclia and also applied tbr sta1, proceedings lbr theabove order of APTEL, which Hon'ble Supreme court of India. In vierv of the iavorable orderttoni APTEL' re-iection of stay L bv the Hon'ble Supreme court oilndia- receipt of substantialautormt towa and als recetved tiour legalcor-msel that
pending berb ;ii::: .';11,:l*i:[::J:of Rs 3l I 04 - 2Ol4 gg.2g crore tbr theyear ended March 31, 2018) in tl.re Statement of protrt and loss.

iit
fbr vari 

it.lolnt \renture of GEL had clainrecl coulpensation

coal rn 
itional f-uel cost on account ofshortage oflintriage

(CERC rvith Cer.rtral Electricitv Regulalorv Comurission
A-s and appeals are pendir-rg for acljndicatior-r. Hou.er,er.

Snprerrre court in its order dated April 11.2017 in casc ol Energf watchclog vs cllRC antl ors. corclucled thatder"iation in Nerv coal Distnbution Policy (NCDP) u'ould constirutlio change in lau,e'ent Sr-rbsetpre't to the sa're.GERC in the case of TANGEDCo ancl PTC India Lilritetl held cleviation rn NCDp as change in larr ercnt andallou'ed the GWEL's and GKEL's claint of coal Cost Pass through In vieu,ot-the Suprenrc cotrrl ()rder and CERC4" .t
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s per the legal opinion received tiom the legal zed
ore and Rs 170.92 crore respectively against ? l
disallowed by the CERC and rnanagement o ;;

iii) GWEL during the year has raised supplententary invoices with regard to claims towards change in Lawevents relating to the period from october 20151; Januarv )ol g on TANGED-CO arnorurting to ns zl.oz crore which
1e duly acknowledged by the customer and also accrued income of Rs 2 02 crore In view of the order of cERCdated March 16' 2018 with regard to petition filed by GWEL and supreme court's order, as detailed in ii) above,management of the Group is confident of recovering the receivables.

iv) GKEL has committed to seli uo
Harayana Brjli Vidyut Nigam Limited 1,H
the Electricity Act, 2003 (ie; competitive
considering the change in law impact of
submission by both the parties allowed GKEL's cjarm a
PTC has not paid GKEL's claim on change in law arnount
Rs 97'75 crore) from July 2016 onwards. GKEL hacl filed clarification application before cERC seekingconhrmation on such operational parameters which have been upheld in the favoui of GKEL uy Cnnc vide its orclerdated March 20,2018 The management of the Group is confident of recovering the receivables

refinery project at Kakinada with participation from
L) and IL&FS and Kakinada Seaports Limitecl.
ect (by withdrawing its nominees fiom the Board

come into participate and implement the project ancl
ose of these financial statements the KRpL is treated

project is still to be finalised.
this pre-construction periocl
ood and will be elisible for

v1) GKEL has entered into long-term PPAs with GRIDco Limited. cERC has issued favo*rable orders withregard to GKEL's additional tariff clainis for 2009-14 taritTperiod. pursuant to which GKEL has submitted bills anclrecognised revenue ofRs 612 ll crore till date The said bills have been acknowledged by the customers ancl
Rs 320 62 crore which will be
is contldent in recovery the rjue
s of GKEL. Further. GKEL wit

uary 04- 201 i- has recognised revenue with regard to thereimbursement of Electricity Duty on Auxillary consumplion tbr the perio<l frorn ianuary. 2ol3 to March, 201g forRs 16.19 crore.
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46. Cefiafinancia, J;#::rrtr"?:iir,fr.:lilTH*1"til:,Hr."fin'1:Tl;3;:'rT,?:?",ffi:.

i;rffiH:]ear's 
figures have been regrouped and reclassified, wherever necessary, to confirm to those of the current year,s
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